
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

September 22, 2022 
5:00 P.M. 

Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Zoom 
 

AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
The public may observe and/or participate in this meeting in many ways. 
 
OBSERVE: 
• To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP 
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland 
KTOP – Channel 10 
• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on the link below: 
When: Sep 22, 2022 5:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL 
BOARD MEETING- September 22, 2022 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86002540285  
Or One tap mobile :  
    US: +16699009128,,86002540285#  or +16694449171,,86002540285#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 669 900 9128  or +1 669 444 9171  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 253 
215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 386 347 5053  or +1 564 217 2000  or +1 
646 558 8656  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 309 205 3325  or 
+1 312 626 6799  
Webinar ID: 860 0254 0285 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kQH9hwqFi  
 
COMMENT: 
There are two ways to submit public comments. 
• To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button 
to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on an eligible agenda 
item at the beginning of the meeting. You will be permitted to speak during your 
turn, allowed to comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Instructions on how 
to “Raise Your Hand” are available here. 
• To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers. 
You will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to speak when Public 
Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to 
comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Please unmute yourself by 
pressing “*6”. 
 
If you have any questions, please email hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov. 

000001

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86002540285
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kQH9hwqFi
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raising-your-hand-in-a-webinar
mailto:hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov


2  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD SPECIAL 
MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. Comments on all agenda items will be taken at this time. Comments for 
items not on the agenda will be taken during open forum. 

4. CONSENT ITEMS 

a. Approval of Board Minutes, 9/8/2022 (pp. 4-11) 

5. APPEALS* 

a. T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong (pp. 17-161) 

6. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS 

a. Doodle Poll for Board Member's Availability: October-December 2022 

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

8. RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AMENDMENT OF TENANT AND OWNER 
FILING REQUIREMENTS (TWO ALTERNATIVE RESOLUTIONS) (pp. 12-
16) 

9. OPEN FORUM 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 

Note: Appeal parties do not need to comment on their case during public comment or 
open forum. 

 
*Staff appeal summaries will be available on the Rent Adjustment Program’s website and the 
City Clerk’s office at least 48 hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.070.B and 
2.20.090 
 
As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent board 
member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the consent calendar. 
 

Accessibility:   

Contact us to request disability-related accommodations, American Sign Language 
(ASL), Spanish, Cantonese, Mandarin, or another language interpreter at least five 
(5) business days before the event. Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) staff can be 
contacted via email at RAP@oaklandca.gov or via phone at (510) 238-3721. 
California relay service at 711 can also be used for disability-related 
accommodations.  
 
Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un 
intérprete de en Español, Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por 

000002

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


3  

favor envié un correo electrónico a RAP@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-
3721 o 711 por lo menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión.  
  

需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電

郵  RAP@oaklandca.gov 或致電 (510) 238-3721 或711 California relay service.  

 

000003

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


 
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

September 8, 2022 
5:00 P.M. 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 
OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES  

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and 
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for 
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order by Chair 
Ingram at 5:04 p.m. 
 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

R. NICKENS, JR.  Tenant  X*   

P. VIRAMONTES Tenant   X 

J. DEBOER Tenant Alt. X   

M. REAGAN Tenant Alt.   X 
D. INGRAM Undesignated X            

C. OSHINUGA  Undesignated X            

E. TORRES Undesignated    X 

Vacant Undesignated 
Alt. 

   

Vacant Undesignated 
Alt. 

   

 T. WILLIAMS   Landlord X            

 N. HUDSON   Landlord   X 
 Vacant Landlord Alt.        
 K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X           

 *Member Nickens joined the call at 5:09 pm. 

Staff Present 

 Kent Qian     Deputy City Attorney 
           Harman Grewal    Business Analyst III (HCD) 
 Emily Weinstein    Deputy Director (HCD)/Acting Program Manager (RAP) 
 Linda Moroz     Acting Senior Hearing Officer (RAP) 
 Allison Pretto     Project Manager (RAP) 
 Briana Lawrence-McGowan   Administrative Analyst I (RAP) 
 Mike Munson      KTOP 

000004



 
2  

 3.  AGENDA ITEM ORDER CHANGE 

a. Chair Ingram moved to place agenda item # 8 directly after agenda item # 5, 
followed by agenda items # 9, # 6, # 7, # 10, and # 11. Vice Chair Oshinuga 
seconded the motion. 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:   D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, J. deBoer, T. Williams, K. Sims 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

 4.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. Emily Wheeler from the Oakland Tenants Union spoke and stated that she 
supports agenda item # 9 and that it is a common sense resolution. Ms. 
Wheeler stated that the Oakland Tenants Union administers three 
counseling sessions per month, including private 101 ad hoc counseling—
and that they have been hearing from tenants who are unable to get their 
petitions heard by RAP because they are waiting on ERAP money. Ms. 
Wheeler mentioned that this is something that she believes goes against 
what the regulations are intended for, and that she strongly supports it being 
removed. Ms. Wheeler also stated that since not paying your rent is 
normally a just cause for eviction, she does not believe that removing this 
clause would harm landlords and that it would greatly benefit tenants. Ms. 
Wheeler encouraged the Board to vote yes on item # 9, and also stated that 
she’s excited to see the rent registry process moving forward. 

b. James Vann from the Oakland Tenants Union spoke and welcomed the 
Board back from their recess. Mr. Vann stated that the Board has a lot of 
interesting and challenging things coming up in the year ahead, and 
mentioned that it’s going to be a pleasure to see the Board work through 
them. Mr. Vann also stated that he’d like to echo the comments made by 
Ms. Wheeler. 

c. Joshua Polston, a small rental housing provider in Oakland spoke and 
stated that he’d like to address agenda items # 8 and # 9. Mr. Polston 
mentioned that in regards to the rent registry, his understanding is that the 
list of data being requested is very extensive, stating that he has seen the 
draft ordinance, and that based its language, staff has proposed that 
housing providers will not be in compliance unless they have actively taken 
actions to obtain all of the data being requested. Mr. Polston stated that he 
thinks it is incumbent on the City that if they have specific questions about 
tenancy or a tenant, the City should track down that data, and that it's not 
the job of the rental housing provider. In regards to agenda item # 9, Mr. 
Polston stated that it’s a terrible idea because it goes against the grain of 

000005



 
3  

what the HRRRB is supposed to do, which is to be an impartial body that 
improves housing for tenants and rental housing providers. Mr. Polston 
stated that the Board is supposed to facilitate good public policy and good 
outcomes. Mr. Polston also mentioned that when a petition is filed, if the 
rental housing provider has not paid all of their fees to the City, their petition 
will not be considered and will be rejected. 

d. Samantha Beckett, the interim co-directing attorney of the tenants’ rights 
practice at Centro Legal de la Raza spoke and stated that Centro Legal 
strongly supports agenda item # 9. Ms. Beckett stated that removing the 
requirement for tenants to be current on rent in order to file a RAP petition is 
extremely important to ensure that covered tenants have the right to enforce 
their critical rights underneath the Rent Adjustment Ordinance. Ms. Beckett 
mentioned that this is particularly important in light of the realities we are 
facing today, including an on-going pandemic, the financial impacts of the 
pandemic, rising inflation, and the on-going housing crisis. Ms. Beckett 
mentioned that this would also put RAP in line with other rent control 
jurisdictions, including Washington DC.  Ms. Beckett stated that tenants’ 
access to RAP’s process and the relief it could afford should not be 
contingent upon them being current on rent, and for these reasons, Centro 
Legal strongly supports this resolution. Ms. Beckett mentioned that any 
decision made by a Hearing Officer would account for any unpaid rent in 
terms of the relief and the restitution owed to the tenant. Ms. Beckett also 
expressed gratitude that the rent registry process is progressing.  
 

 5.  CONSENT ITEMS 

a. Renewal—Adoption of AB 361 Resolution & Approval of Board Minutes, 
7/28/2022: Chair Ingram moved to renew the adoption of AB 361 resolution 
and to approve the Board Minutes from 7/28/2022. Vice Chair Oshinuga 
seconded the motion. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:   D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, J. deBoer, R. Nickens, Jr. 
Nay:   T. Williams, K. Sims 
Abstain:  None 

The motion and minutes were approved. 

 6.  APPEALS* 

a. T22-0048, Prosterman v. Kinfu 

 
 

000006



 
4  

Appearances:      Aren Ash  Tenant Representative 
       Sam Kinfu  Master Tenant 
         
This case involved a subtenant petition alleging that the primary/master tenant 
charged a disproportionate amount of rent for the subtenant’s room. The petition 
alleged that the subtenant was charged $1100 per month for the room, while the 
total rent for the three bedroom apartment was $1870 per month. On April 19, 
2022, a notice of incomplete petition was issued, stating that the petition was 
missing a proof of service. On May 12, 2022, the parties were sent a notice of 
remote settlement conference and hearing scheduled for June 20, 2022 and the 
notice stated that all evidence must be submitted to RAP no less than seven 
days prior to the hearing. On June 17, 2022, the Hearing Officer issued an 
Administrative Decision, dismissing the petition on the basis that no tangible 
evidence was submitted at least seven days before the hearing.  
 
The subtenant appealed the Administrative Decision, arguing that the ordinance 
regulations allows the subtenant to introduce evidence at the hearing, and that 
the dismissal of the petition without a hearing to allow submission of sufficient 
evidence is inconsistent with the ordinance and regulations. The subtenant 
argued that an Administrative Decision under the O.M.C. requires both a petition 
and a response—therefore, the Administrative Decision was not proper in this 
case because there was no response filed. The subtenant also argued that the 
Administrative Decision should be overturned because there was no response 
disputing the tenant’s claim of legal overcharging; and dismissing a subtenant 
illegal overcharge petition against a private tenant on the basis of lack of tangible 
evidence raises a new policy issue because subtenants do not usually have the 
documentary evidence in their possession unless it is shared by the primary 
tenant.  

 
The tenant representative contended that the tenant is requesting for the Board 
to reverse the Administrative Decision that dismissed his petition and for the case 
to be remanded back to the Hearing Officer for a hearing. The tenant 
representative argued that the master tenant did not dispute the overcharging 
allegations, did not file a response to the petition, and did not file a response to 
the appeal. The tenant representative contended that the ordinance regulations 
allows a party to introduce evidence for the first time at the hearing, even if the 
notice of hearing requires for parties to submit evidence seven days before the 
hearing. The tenant representative argued that regulations regarding the conduct 
of hearings before Hearing Officers states that each party shall have the right to 
call and examine witnesses and to introduce exhibits at the hearing, among other 
things, including cross examining witnesses. The tenant representative argued 
that the amended notice of remote settlement conference and hearing that was 
cited in the Administrative Decision only requested that Mr. Prosterman submit all 
tangible evidence within seven days before the hearing “in order to minimize 

000007



 
5  

delays”, and did not say that he was required to submit all evidence before the 
hearing. The tenant representative contended that it also didn't state that he 
would not be given an opportunity to submit oral testimony or introduce other 
exhibits at the hearing. 
 
The tenant representative contended that due to the informal nature of a master 
tenant and subtenant relationship, the subtenant doesn't have access to the 
master lease and may have to rely on the oral testimony at the hearing to prove 
an overcharging case; whereas if a normal tenant was challenging a landlord or 
owner's illegal rent increase, the tenant will have tangible evidence proving the 
illegality of the rent increase, such as the lease with the landlord. The tenant 
representative contended that a subtenant who challenges the master tenant for 
illegal overcharging of rent usually does not have the necessary evidence 
because it's never shared by the master tenant and it's not required by law to be 
shared. The tenant representative argued that without the opportunity to cross 
examine witnesses and introduce exhibits at the hearing, a subtenant may not be 
able to prove a case of overcharging by a master tenant and that without access 
to the hearing and the right to question the parties to the petition under oath, the 
subtenant may be denied their right to this process entirely.  
 
The tenant representative argued that Mr. Kinfu initiated move out negotiations 
with Mr. Prosterman after it was discovered that he was overcharging rent; 
however, Mr. Kinfu didn't provide the required notices or anything else required 
by the tenant relocation ordinance. The tenant representative contended that he 
suggested for the tenant to accept $10,000 or just a little under because the 
minimum required under the tenant relocation ordinance is around $9970, and 
that the $6000 that Mr. Kinfu originally offered would have been well below the 
minimum for any move out agreement. 

 
The master tenant contended that he had no idea that he couldn't overcharge Mr. 
Prosterman because he is a novice and unfamiliar with this process, and that he 
reduced Mr. Prosterman’s rent to correct the situation. The master tenant argued 
that for the past nine months, Mr. Prosterman has not paid for any utilities, which 
totals up to $1300 per month and includes water, garbage, and internet. The 
master tenant argued that Mr. Prosterman has been late paying his rent for the 
past ten months, which causes an average of $80 per month in late fees. The 
master tenant contended that Mr. Prosterman is very contentious, engages in 
name calling, constantly picks fights, and harasses him. The master tenant 
argued that he has had to call the police three separate times and that he has 
contacted the tenant’s representative on the record to request for his client not to 
harass him and to stop sending harassing emails.  
 
The master tenant contended that he did want to pay back Mr. Prosterman back 
for the overpayments and that he offered Mr. Prosterman $10,000. The master 

000008



 
6  

tenant argued that his first offer to Mr. Prosterman was for $6000, but Mr. 
Prosterman declined, hired Mr. Ash, and then requested $10,000. The master 
tenant argued that he told Mr. Prosterman that in order for him to give him the 
money, it had to go through an escrow; but Mr. Prosterman said no and that he 
wanted a cashier's check. The master tenant contended that he has done 
everything possible to remedy the situation, including reducing Mr. Prosterman’s 
rent and not having him pay for utilities. 
 
After parties’ arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Vice 
Chair Oshinuga moved to remand the case back Hearing Officer for a hearing. 
Member K. Sims seconded the motion. 

 
 The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye:   D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, R. Nickens, Jr., J. deBoer, T. Williams,  

K. Sims 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

6. RESOLUTION TO ADOPT REGULATIONS FOR THE RENT REGISTRY 
ORDINANCE AND FORWARD TO CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL 

a. RAP’s Rent Registry Project Manager, Allison Pretto, presented a 
proposed resolution to the Board to adopt regulations for the Rent Registry 
Ordinance and to forward them to City Council for approval. After questions 
and Board discussion, Vice Chair Oshinuga moved to approve the 
resolution. Member R. Nickens, Jr. seconded the motion. 

 
 The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye:   D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, R. Nickens, Jr., J. deBoer 
Nay:   T. Williams, K. Sims 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

7. POLICY POSITION RESOLUTION 

a. Board Member J. deBoer presented a proposed policy position resolution 
to the Board. After questions and Board discussion, Chair Ingram moved to 
postpone this agenda item discussion to the next full Board meeting. 
Member T. Williams seconded the motion. 

000009



 
7  

 
 The Board voted as follows:  

 
Aye:   D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, R. Nickens, Jr., J. deBoer, T. Williams,  

K. Sims 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

8. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS 

a. RAP’s Acting Senior Hearing Officer, Linda Moroz, postponed her report on 
the Hearings Unit until the next full Board meeting. 
 

 
9. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Board Secretary, Briana Lawrence-McGowan, informed the Board that she 
will be absent from the 9/22 full Board meeting and that Acting Senior 
Hearing Officer, Linda Moroz, will attend and act as the Board Secretary on 
her behalf. 

b. Chair Ingram requested for the Board members to complete their doodle 
polls regarding their availability for the next quarter and briefly discussed 
guidance that was received by the City Attorneys regarding the Board 
having an in person meeting/gathering. 

 

10. OPEN FORUM 

a. James Vann from the Oakland Tenants Union spoke and stated that the 
Board’s discussion was interesting, but it’s being made more complicated 
than it needs to be. Mr. Vann mentioned that the Acting Senior Hearing 
Officer made an excellent point in regards to RAP and the regulations, 
which permits a person who is not current on their rent to cite the reason 
why they're not current, and if there is a justifiable reason, then their 
hearing proceeds. Mr. Vann stated that the problem has been that RAP 
staff looks at the non-payment of rent as not applying to the present 
pandemic situation and that there are people who may not be current on 
rent because they're involved programs which have not yet produced funds 
to pay their rent. Mr. Vann stated that if this was accepted by the staff as 
one of the allowable reasons, the matter would be cleared up. Mr. Vann 
mentioned that it is important to clear this matter up because RAP gets no 
money from the City budget at all and that the program is structured so that 
it pays for itself. Mr. Vann stated that if people are not willing to pay the 

000010



 
8  

RAP fee, then the program won't be able to function and that the Board 
needs to take this into consideration during their discussions when they 
come back to the subject. 

b. Emily Wheeler from the Oakland Tenants Union spoke and expressed her 
disappointment in Chair Ingram for postponing the policy position 
discussion and mentioned that she was deeply disturbed by the Chair’s 
willingness to accept the policy argument made by landlords. Ms. Wheeler 
stated that landlords have said very clearly that removing the regulation 
that requires for tenants to be current on rent would harm them because 
tenants would file more petitions, causing landlords to pay higher attorney 
fees. Ms. Wheeler mentioned that to her knowledge, tenants also do not 
get an attorney for free through RAP, and that this is not at all equivalent to 
having to pay a RAP fee. Ms. Wheeler stated that landlords, under normal 
circumstances, would be able to evict a tenant who does not pay their rent 
and that there is no remedy for tenants in regards to landlords who do not 
pay their RAP fee, as tenants cannot evict their landlord for not doing so. 
Ms. Wheeler mentioned that she doesn’t understand why the Chair would 
postpone the conversation under this pressure, and that she feels like there 
could have been a vote if the discussion was continued. 

c. Derek Barnes, CEO of East Bay Rental Housing Association (EBRHA), 
thanked and applauded the Board for delaying their decision regarding the 
policy position resolution. Mr. Barnes stated that housing in Oakland is 
extremely complicated, that there is no one-size-fits-all, and that there are 
mostly people who try to do the right thing. Mr. Barnes mentioned that he 
thinks we have to start from that place and then figure out policies and 
things that address the problems that a few people are making either on 
the housing provider side or the renter side. Mr. Barnes stated that 
Oakland’s rental business is estimated to be a $3 billion economy and that 
anything we do in establishing policies and ordinances should be thought 
through to make sure that we understand the impact and implications of 
those decisions. Mr. Barnes mentioned that there was good discussion 
from both sides during the meeting and the decision to postpone the 
discussion and to get some additional pieces of information was good 
sound judgment. 

 

11. ADJOURMENT 

a. The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

000011



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 

 

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

INTRODUCED BY ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER JOHN deBOER 

BOARD CHAIR DENARD INGRAM 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND HOUSING, 

RESIDENTIAL RENT AND 

RELOCATION BOARD (HRRRB) 

RESOLUTION NO. 

 
RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND AMENDMENT OF THE TENANT 

FILING REQUIREMENTS IN THE RENT ADJUSTMENT 

ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board may make 

recommendations to the City Council or appropriate City Council committee pertaining to Chapter 

8.22 of the Oakland Municipal Code (O.M.C.) or City housing policy when requested to do so by 

the City Council or when the Board otherwise acts to do so, pursuant to O.M.C. 8.22.040 D.4; and 

WHEREAS, in order for a tenant to file either a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program 

that alleges violation of the Rent Adjustment Ordinance or a response to a petition, O.M.C. Section 

8.22.090 A.4, and the corresponding Rent Adjustment Program Regulation Section 8.22.090 B, 

require that the tenant must provide “Evidence that the tenant's rent is current or that the tenant is 

lawfully withholding rent;” and 

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board seeks to ensure that all 

covered Oakland tenants and property owners have equitable access to the protections and relief 

provided by the Rent Adjustment Ordinance; now, therefore, be it 

3189979v4 

000012



RESOLVED: That the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board recommends the 

City Council amend O.M.C. Section 8.22.090 by removing the subsection A.4.b filing requirement, 

which would allow any covered tenant to file a petition or respond to petitions with the Rent 

Adjustment Program regardless of their rent payment status, provided they meet all other filing 

requirements. 

APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTENTION: 

ATTEST ____________________  

Date: BRIANA LAWRENCE-MCGOWAN 

Rent Adjustment Program, Housing & 

Community Development Department 

000013



3207894v2 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 

 
__________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
 
INTRODUCED BY: BOARD CHAIR DENARD INGRAM 

CITY OF OAKLAND HOUSING, 
RESIDENTIAL RENT AND 

RELOCATION BOARD (HRRRB) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______________  
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AMENDMENT OF TENANT AND 
OWNER FILING REQUIREMENTS IN THE RESIDENTIAL RENT 
ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM AND RENT PROGRAM SERVICE FEE 
ORDINANCES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board ( “Rent Board”) may 
make recommendations to the City Council or appropriate City Council committee pertaining to 
Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland Municipal Code (“O.M.C.”) or City housing policy when requested 
to do so by the City Council or when the Board otherwise acts to do so, pursuant to O.M.C. 
8.22.040 D.4; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order for a tenant, including a subtenant contesting overcharges by a 
primary tenant, to file either a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program that alleges violation of 
the Rent Adjustment Ordinance or a response to a petition, O.M.C. Section 8.22.090 A.4, and the 
corresponding Rent Adjustment Program Regulation Section 8.22.090 B, require that the tenant 
must provide “Evidence that the tenant's rent is current or that the tenant is lawfully withholding 
rent;” and  

 
WHEREAS, O.M.C. 8.22.010 C states that the purposes of the Rent Adjustment 

Ordinance include “providing relief to residential tenants in Oakland by limiting rent increases 
for existing tenants,” which is not furthered by barring residential tenants from both petitioning 
for relief from alleged violations or responding to owner petitions when the tenants are not current 
on rent; and 
 

WHEREAS, O.M.C. 8.22.500 H provides that a rental property owner who has not paid 
the rent program fee and any charges related to a delinquency in payment of the fee cannot respond 
to a petition brought by a tenant; and 

 

Q
 r f 

000014



 

WHEREAS, in order for an owner to file a response to a tenant petition, O.M.C. 8.22.090 
B.1 and the corresponding Rent Adjustment Program Regulations section 8.22.090 C require that 
the owner must provide evidence of payment of the Rent Adjustment Program service fee, among 
other requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Rent Adjustment Ordinance requires an owner to provide evidence of 

possession of a current city business license, payment of the Rent Adjustment Program service fee, 
and registration with the Rent Adjustment Program in order to petition the Rent Adjustment 
Program; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Rent Adjustment Ordinance and corresponding Rent Adjustment 

Program Regulations do not currently require an owner to provide evidence of possession of a 
current city business license, payment of the Rent Adjustment Program service fee, and 
registration with the Rent Adjustment Program at the time of filing an appeal or response to a 
tenant appeal, creating a scenario where an owner who did not respond to a tenant petition can, 
after the Rent Adjustment Program decision is issued, effectively bypass the initial filing 
requirements when filing an appeal or responding to a tenant appeal; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board seeks to ensure that 
covered Oakland tenants and property owners have access to the protections and relief provided by 
the Rent Adjustment Ordinance; now, therefore, be it 
 

RESOLVED:  That the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board recommends the 
City Council amend O.M.C. Section 8.22.090 by removing the subsection A.4.b filing 
requirement, which would allow any covered tenant to file a petition or respond to petitions with 
the Rent Adjustment Program regardless of their rent payment status, provided they meet all other 
filing requirements; and be it 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Rent Board recommends the City Council amend 

O.M.C. Section 8.22.090 B.1 to allow owners to file a response to a tenant petition without having 
to provide evidence of payment of the Rent Adjustment Program fee; and be it 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Rent Board recommends the City Council amend 
O.M.C. 8.22.120 A to require that an owner provide evidence of possession of a current city 
business license,  payment of the Rent Adjustment Program service fee, and registration with the 
Rent Adjustment Program at the time the owner files an appeal or a response to a tenant appeal, if 
such evidence was not already provided to the Rent Adjustment Program by the owner at the time 
of petitioning or responding to the petition; and be it 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

000015



FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Rent Board recommends the City Council eliminate 
O.M.C. 8.22.500 H.1, so that an owner who has failed to pay the rent program service fee is not
prohibited from responding to a petition brought by a tenant.

APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE 

AYES: 
NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTENTION: 

___________________   ATTEST_________________________ 
Date:         BRIANA LAWRENCE-MCGOWAN 

Rent Adjustment Program, Housing & 
Community Development Department 

000016



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT 

 

Case No.:      T18-0311   

Case Name:      Cervantes v. Fong   

Property Address:     1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 94601   

Parties:               May & Grant Fong (Owners) 

      Maria & Luis Cervantes (Tenants) 

      Centro Legal de la Raza (Tenant Representative)    

 

OWNER APPEAL: 

Activity      Date 

Tenant Petition filed    June 12, 2018  

Owner Response filed    November 13, 2018 

Hearing Date     June 3, 2019  

Hearing Decision mailed    October 3, 2019  

Owner Appeal filed    October 9, 2019 

Corrected Hearing Decision mailed  October 17, 2019 

Appeal Hearing Date    January 16, 2020 

Panel Appeal Decision mailed   March 10, 2020 

000017



Remand Decision mailed    December 18, 2020 

Owner Appeal filed    December 29, 2020 

Appeal Hearing Date    September 23, 2021 

Appeal Decision mailed    November 19, 2021 

Second Remand Hearing Decision mailed July 28, 2022 

Owner Appeal filed    August 16, 2022 

 

000018



CITY OF OAKLAND -·· • • ·Fordatestamp. 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRJtlU J lN 12 PM 3: s, 
P.O. Box 70243 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
(510) 238-3721 

TENANT PETITION 

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may 
result in your petition being rejected or delayed. 

Please print le2ibly 
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone: 

Maria Amezquita and Luis Ayala Cervantes 1791 28th Ave 510-927-1332 Oakland, CA 94601 
E-mail: 

Your Representative's Name Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: 

Email: 

Property Owner(~ name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: 
May Lee Fong an 358 Cerro Ct. 650-757-2988 Grant Wai Fong Daly City, CA 94015 

Email: 

Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: 
(if applicable) 

Email: 

Number of units on the property: _ 6 ____ _ 

Type .of unit you rent 
□ House □ Condominium Iii Apartment, Room, or 

(check one) Live-Work 
Are you current on Iii Yes □ No your rent? ( check one) 

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in 
your unit.) 

I. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the 
grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on 
one or more of the following grounds: 

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly. 

I 

I 
I 

000019



rent increase. 

X 
(d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice ofincrease(s) I am 
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.) 

)( (e) The property owner did not give me the required form "Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program" at least 
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s). • 
(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law. 

IX (g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period. 

K (h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems 
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete 
Section III on following page) 

X 
(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for 
services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an 
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.) 
(Complete Section III on following page) 
(i) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capital Improvement had expired. 

X '(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period 
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014). 
(1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on 
fraud or mistake (OMC 8.22, Article I) 
(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request. 

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080. 

II. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section) 

Date you moved into the Unit: __ A_ug_u_st_2_0_1s ____ _ Initial Rent: $ 945 /month ----------

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the 
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: 8/24/17 . If never provided, enter "Never." 

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes No 

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If 
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can 
contest all past increases. You must check "Yes" next to each increase that you are challenging. 

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase Are you Contesting Did You Receive a 
received the goes into effect this Increase in this Rent Program 

notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the 
(mo/day/year) From To Notice Of 

Increase? 

'I I J.i.te/1 Y 'fldk:/t9 $ 1200 $ 1400 _.llYes □ No □ Yes .,.6No 

8/24/17 10/3/2017 $ 945 $ 12.00 ,ef°Yes □ No ,res □ No 

8/24/17 9/5/2017 $ 945 $ 1233 fl'Yes □ No )i'J'Yes □ No 

$ $ □ Yes □ No □ Yes □ No 

"' "' ~ T• ~" ~" r, '11. T -

000020



* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the 
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (O.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If 
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you 
have 120 days to file a petition. (O.M.C. 8.22.090 A 3) 

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit? 
□ Yes 

,;zf No 

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions: 

III. DESCRIPTION OF DE<JREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES: 
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful 
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must 
complete this section. 

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? 
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? 
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? 

dves 
CYYes 
,P'Yes 

□ No 

□ No 

□ No 

If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a 
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the 
following: 

1) a list of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s); 
2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s) 
3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and 
4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s). 

Please attach documentary evidence if available. 

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an 
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381. 

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign: 

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said 
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the 
originals. 

Tenant's Signature Date 

_p=----x_-_1~-=---
000021



V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an 
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a 
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing 
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer. 

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an 
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If 
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees 
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties 
requesting the use of their services. 

Mediation will,be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner's response have 
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adiustment Program will not schedule a 
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A. 

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below. 

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge). 

Tenant's Signature Date 

VI. IMPORTANT INFORMATION: 

Time to File This form must be received at the offices of the City of Oakland, Rent Adjustment Program, 
Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 5313, Oakland, CA 94612 within the time limit for filing a 
petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22. Board Staff cannot 
grant an extension of time to file your petition by phone. For more information, please call: (510) 238-3721. 

File Review 
Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition within 35 days of notification by the 
Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the Property Owner's Response. The petition and 
attachments to the petition can be found by logging into the RAP Online Petitioning System and accessing 
your case once this system is available. If you would like to review the attachments in person, please call the 
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721 to make an appointment. 

VII. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM? 

__ Printed form provided by the owner 
__ Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program 
~Legal services or community organization 

Sign on bus or bus shelter 
Rent Adjustment Program web site 

____IL' Other (describe): ________________ _ 

000022



Owner Response ( 

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

Owner Response 

Case 

Property Address 

Party 

Tenant 

Owner 

TlS-0311 

1791 28th Avenue 

Name 

Maria & Luis Cervantes 
(510) 927-1332 

May & Grant Fong 
650-757-2988 

Business Information 

Date of which you aquired the building 

Total Number of Units 

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? 

Type of Unit 

Address 

1791 28th A venue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

358 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

Is the contested increase a capital improvements increase? 

Rent Histm·y 

The tenant moved into the rental unit on 

Initial monthly rent 

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland's form entitled Notice to 
Tenants of Residential Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP Notice") to all of the 
petitioning tenants? 

On what date was the notice first given? 

Is the tenant current on the rent? 

Exemption 

The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins 
Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption 
under Costa-Hawkins, please answer the following questions: 

rrintOwnerResponse.aspx?Responseld-5 8 

Mailing Address 

1-30-2015 

6 

No 

Apartment, 
Room or Live
work 

No 

8-24-2017 

1233 

Yes 

8-24-2017 

No 

No 

Page 1 of 4 

,..._, 
c::::> 

w 

11/13/2018 000023



Owner Response ( ( 

City of Oakland 

http ://apphub/RAP Admin/PrintOwner Response. aspx?Responseld==5 8 

Page 2 of 4 

I /'") 
I -

11/13/2018 000024



Owner Response ( 

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

Owner Response 

Case TlS-0311 

Property Address 179128th Avenue 

The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, No 
agency or authority other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. 

The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or No 
after January 1, 1983. 

On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, No 
or boarding house for less than 30 days. 

The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a-cost of 50% or more of the No 
average basic cost of new construction. 

The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility, No 
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an 
educational institution. 

The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of No 
the units continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one 
year. 

http ://apphub/RAP Admin/PrintOwnerResponse. aspx?Responseld==5 8 

Page 3 of 4 

11/13/2018 000025



Owner Response Page 4 of 4 

City of Oakland 21'2 

http:/ /apphub/RAP Admin/PrintOwner Response. aspx?Responseld=S 8 11/13/2018 000026



( ' ( v.J .,. .~oo i!'l->-11 l'}-

~ ,,, OAKLAND RENTAL AGREEMENT AND/OR LEASE -4t 

Landlord/1.essor/Agent: . ..Llt......,~.....,'-'-f--------T--~--,.------- Apartment Number _,]uZc...9..,1.__ __ _ 
Tenan~s)/Lessee: fA,/', ~ 
Tenan~s)/Lessee:_~_..;;..r '::....__~~~.:...u,::....;:c__-+-:,,,,,,;.,,.,,._,.=..:....:~µ<+~c.:........i<-..:.V'r-e Ct\ ~t°' 
Apartment Number. __,1 .... 7_9...,1._ ___ _ 
Apartment Address: 1 Z91-2Rth Avenue ~t>"'" 
City: Oaklao~ r ,s~e(a ,Zip946Q1 ,,~lP 
Monthly Rental Ra~~ 9 I 11'> ~ ~~~Is agreement shall commence on _9..,./_.1.,_/.._1.._7 ____ ~, and continue: (check one below) 

Rental Due Date: 1st nf month ~&:\~ ,r- i\. _D__ Month to Month Agreement 

Security Deposit: $=5DD 2PP M,,.~ ')J.. , A B. JZL. UnUI R/30/18 at which Ume thereafter shan become a month to 

Late Charge: $ 75 if not naid bv 3rd month tenancy. lfTenantshOuldmove from premises prior to the explraUon date, he shall be 

Parking Space: ....,__________ liable for all the rent due until such time the apartment Is occupied by Landlord-approved resident 

Storane Space: and/or expiration or said Ume period, whichever is shorter. 

1. This Rental Agreement and/or Lease shall evidence the complete terms and conditions under which the parUes whose signatures appear below have agreed. 
Landlonl/Lessor/Agent shall be referred to as 'OWNER" and Tenanl{sVLessee(s) shall be referred to as "RESIDENT." As conslderaUon for this agreement, OWNER agrees to 
rent/lease to RESIDENT and RESIDENT agrees to rent/lease from OWNER for use SOLEL V AS A PRIVATE RESIDENCE, the premises listed above. RESIDENT acknov.iedges that 
any false statements round In RESIDENrS application shall consUtute a non-curable breach of this agreement RESIDENT hereby agrees to complete an updated application, 
including a census as to the occupants in the unit upon seven days request of OWNER. 
2. PAYMENTS: Rent and/or other charges are to be paid at the office or apartment of the manager of the building or at such other place designated In writing by OWNER. For the \ -'\...-
safety ol lhe111.J11BSat. all payments are to be made by check or money ord@r and no cash shall be acceptable. OWNl;B ilrJ<n...Qwl.edges r I I pf the Fl~j!!O~'§.._ \.,. • o,.\ \ \ 1 
rent of: $._,-=··L'-'~"'--s __ ~andaSecuri Depositof$ "2.C.X)O foratotalpaymentolS ?,l-•rs ~ . v,,,...r '\~--, , 
All payments are to be made yable to: and delivered to • California, 
Telephone Number ~l.o,L......,,..........L.d""'-""---who is usually available on the following days:......,.....,.......,.......,....__ ___ during the following hours: 9am-5pm 
3. LA TE CHARGE/FEES: The late charge amount noted above, not to exceed 6% of the monthly rent, shall be added to any payment of rent nol made on the rental due dale or for 
whl~ a deficient (bounced) check shall have been given. Tenant shall be liable for $25 each Ume a check is returned to OWNER because the check was dishonored. A fee of$50.00 
will be Incurred each Ume the OWNER Is required to serve a 3-Day Notice to Pay the Rent due to the Tenant's !allure to pay rent on the day rent Is due, 
4. SECURITY DEPOSITS: The Security Deposit shall not exceed two Umes the monthly rent for unrumlshed apartments or three times the monthly rent for furnished apartments. The 
total of the above deposits shall secure compliance with the terms and condiUons of this agreement and shall be refunded to RESIDENT within 21 days after the premises have been 
completely vacated less any amount necessary .to pay OWNER: a) any unpaid rent, b) deaning costs, c) key replacement costs, d) costs for repair of damages to apartment and/or 
common areas above ordinary wear and tear, and e) any other amount legally allowable under the terms of this agreement. A written accounting of said charges shall be presented to 
RESIDENT within 21 days of move-out. If deposits do not cover such costs and damages, the RESIDENT shall Immediately pay said additional costs for damages to OWNER. During 
the term of tenancy, RESIDENT agrees to Increase the deposit upon 30 day.s written notice by an amount equal to any future increases in rent and.for an amount necessary to cover the 
cost of rectifying any damage or expense for which RESIDENT Is responsible. Security deposit is not to be used as last month's rent. 
5. UTILITTES: RESIDENT agrees to pay for alt utilities and/or services based upon occupancy of the premises except narbane . 
6. OCCUPANTS: Guest(s) staying over 14 days cumulative or longer during any 12-month period, without the OWNER'S written consent shall be considered a breach of this 
agreement ONLY the following Dsted Individuals and/or animals, AND NO OTHERS shall occupy the subject apartment for more than 14 days unless the expressed written consent of 
OWNER Is obtained In advance, (the 14 day period maybe extended by local Rent Control Laws): Oakland . RESIDENT shall 
pay additional rent at the rate of $100.00 per month or 25% (or the amount allowed under rent control) of the current monthly ren~ whichever amount is greater, for the period of 
time that each additional guest In excess of the above named shall occupy the premises. RESIDENT shall pay the same additional monthly rent for each additional anlmal In excess of 
the above named anlmal(s), which shall occupy the premises. Acceptance of additional rent or approval of a guest shall not waive any requirement of this agreement or convert the 
status of any 'guest' into a RESIDENT. 
7. PETS AND FURNISHINGS: Furnishings• No liquid-filled furniture of any kind may be kept on the premises. If the structure was built in 1973 or later RESIDENT may possess a 
waterbed If he maintains waterbed Insurance valued at $100,000.00 or more. RESIDENT must furnish OWNER with proof of said Insurance. RESIDENT must also comply with Civil 
Code Section 1940.5. Resident shall no! keep on premises a receptacle containing more than ten gallons of liquid, highly combustible materials or other Items which may cause a 
hazard or affect Insurance rates such as, musical instrument, ltem(s) of unusual weight or dimension, RESIDENT also agrees to carry Insurance deemed appropriate by OWNER to 
cover possible losses caused by using said Items. Pets - lio animal, fowl, fish, reptile, and/or pet or any kind shall be kept on or about the premises, for any amount of time, without 
obtaining the prior written consent and meeting the requirements of the OWNER. Said consent, If granted, shall be revocable at OWNER'S opUon upon giving a 30-day written notice. 
In the event laws are passed or permission Is granted to have any Item prohibited by this agreement or If for any reason such Item exists on the premises, there shall be minimum 
addiUonat rent of $25.00 a month for each such Item if another amount Is not stated in this agreement. In the event laws are passed or permission Is granted to have a pet and/or 
animal of any kind, an addiHonat deposit In the amount of$ 3 000 shall be required along with the signing or OWNER'S 'PET AGREEMENT.' 
8. PARKING/STORAGE: When and if RESIDENT Is assigned a parking space on OWNER'S property, the parking space shall be used excfuslvely for parking of passenger 
automobiles and/or those approved vehicles listed on RESIDENT'S 'Application to RenVLease· or attached hereto. RESIDENT may not wash, repair, or paint In this parking space or at 
any other common areas on the premises. (RESIDENT may not assign, sublet, or allow RESIDENT'S guest(s) to use this or any other parking space.) RESIDENT Is responsible for oil 
leaks and other vehicle discharges for which RESIDENT shall be charged for cleaning Ir deemed necessary by OWNER Only vehicles that are operalional may park In their assigned 
space. 
9. NOISE: RESIDENT agrees not to cause or allow any noise or activity on the premises that might disturb the peace and quiet of another RESIDENT. Said noise and/or activity shall 
be a breach of this Agreement. 
10. LOITERING AND PLAY: Lounging, playing, or unnecessary loitering in the halls, on the front steps, orin the common areas in such a way as to Interfere with the free use and 
enjoyment, passage or convenience of another RESIDENT Is prohibited. 
11. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: If the premises become totally or partially destroyed during the term of this Agreement so that RESIDENT'S use is seriously impaired, RESIDENT 
or OWNER may terminate this Agreement immediately upon three-day written notice to the other. 
12. CONDITION OF PREMISES: RESIDENT acknowledges that he has examined the premises and that said premises, all furnishings, fixtures, furniture, plumbing, heating, electrical 
faclllttes, all llems listed on the attached inventory shee~ if any, and/or all other Items provided by OWNER are all clean, and In good saUsfactory condition except as may be Indicated 
elsewhere In this Agreement. RESIDENT agrees to keep the premises and all Items In good order and condition and lo immediately pay for costs to repair and/or replace any portion of 
!he above damaged by RESIDENT, his guests and/or invitees, except as provided by law. At the termination of this Agreement, all of the above-enumerated Items In this provision shall 

~ 
AOA Form No. 101-OAKLAND (Revlaod 7/17) • Copyright 2010 -Apartment OWners Association of California, Inc, -www.eoauaa.com 

• Son fcmando Valley (NIKI 98H-9200• Los Angele, (l2ll 9l7•HHI I• Long ll<a<h (S621 S97-2422 • GudcnGrove(7141539-f,OOD • San Diego (6191280-7007 • Northcmt:atirotnia (SIDI 769-7521 

000027



( 

be returned to OWNER in dean and good condition except for reasonable wear and tear; the premises shall be free of all personal property and trash not belonging to OWNER. It is 
agreed !hat all dirt, holes, tears, bums, or stains of any size or amount in !he carpets, drapes, walls, fixtures, and/or any other part of the premises, do not constitute reasonable wear 
and tear. 
13. MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATIONS: RESIDENT shall not pain~ wallpaper, alter or redecorate, change or install locks, Install antenna or olher equipment, screws, fastening 
devices, excessively large nails, or adhesive materials, place signs, displays, or olher exhibits, on or In any portion of the premises without the written consent of the OWNER except as 
may be provided by law. RESIDENT shall deposit all garbage and waste In a dean and sanitary maMer into the proper receptades as provided and shall cooperate in keeping the 
garbage area neat and dean. RESIDENT shall be responsible for disposing of Items of such size or nature as Is not normally acceptable by the garbage hauler for the building. 
RESIDENT shall be responsible for keeping !he garbage disposal dean of chicken bones, toothpicks, match slicks, celery, pits, grease, metal vegetable ties, and all other Items !hat 
may tend to cause stoppage of the mechanism. RESIDENT shall pay for the cleaning out of any plumbing fixture !hat may need lo be cleared of stoppage and for the expense or 
damage caused by the stopping of waste pipes or overflow from bathtubs, washbasins, toilets, or sinks, if caused by negligence or misuse by RESIDENT or their guests. Tenant must 
notify landlord with a written notice slating what llem(s) need service or repair and give landlord a reasonable opportunity to service or repair that item(s). Should any charges be 
Incurred by the City as a result of not notifying the landlord In writing of such needed service or repairs, tenant shall be responsible for a minimum of $201.50 for each occurrence plus 
any additional fines or Inspection fees Imposed by a government office as a result of RESIDENT not notifying OWNER In writing of any deficiencies with !he residence. 
14. SMOKE/CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS: The rental unit Is equipped with properly functioning smoke and carbon monoxide detectors. Resident agrees to test the smoke 
and carbon monoxide deteclors In the rental unit monthly for proper function. Resident agrees not to interfere with their normal function or disable any detectors in any manner. 
15. HOUSE, POOL, AND LAUNDRY RULES: RESIDENT shall comply with all house, pool, pet, and laundry rules attached to this agreement which may be changed rrom time to time. 
These rules shall apply to, but are not limited to, noise, odors, disposal or trash, pals, parking, use of common areas, and storage of toys, bicycles, tools, and other personal items 
(Including signs and laundry), which must be kept Inside and out of view. OWNER shall not be liable to RESIDENT for any violation of such rules by any other RESIDENTS or persons. 
Rights of usage and maintenance of the laundry room and/or pool and pool area are gratuitous and subject to revocation by OWNER al any time. 
16. CHANGE OF TERMS: The terms and conditions of !his agreement are subject to future change by OWNER after the explrallon of !he agreed lease period upon 30 days written 
notice selling forth such change and delivered to RESIDENT. Any changes are subject to laws in existence at the time of the Notice Of Change OfTerms. 
17. TERMINATION: After expiration of the leasing period, this agreement is automatically renewed from month•lo-monlh, but may be terminated by either party. The owner giving a 60· 
day notice and the resident giving a 30-<lay written notice or intention to terminate. Where laws require "just cause," such just cause shall be so stated on said notice. The premises 
shall be considered vacated only after all areas induding storage areas are dear or all RESIDENfS belongings, and keys and other property furnished for RESIDENfS use are 
returned to OWNER. Should the RESIDENT hold over beyond the termination date or fail to vacate all possessions on or before the termination dale, RESIDENT shall be liable ror 
additional rent and damages, which may lndude damages due to OWNER'S loss of prospective new RENTERS. 
18. POSSESSION: If OWNER is unable to deliver possession or !he Apartment to RESIDENT on the agreed date, because of the loss or destruction of the Apartment or because of the 
!allure of !he prior RESIDENT to vacate or for any other reason, the RESIDENT and/or OWNER may immediately cancel and terminate this agreement upon written notice to the other 
party at their last known address, whereupon neither party shall have llabillty to the other, and any sums paid under this Agreement shall be refunded in full. If neither party cancels, this 
Agreement shall be pro-rated and begin on the date of actual possession. 
19. INSURANCE: RESIDENT acknowledges that OWNER'S Insurance does not cover personal property damage caused by fire, theft, rain, war, acts of God, acts of others, and/or any 
other causes, nor shall OWNER be held liable for such losses. RESIDENT HEREBY AGREES TO OBTAIN HIS OWN INSURANCE POLICY TO COVER ANY PERSONAL LOSSES. 
This does not waive OWNER'S duly to prevent personal Injury or property damage where !hat duty Is Imposed by law, however, RESIDENfS failure to maintain said policy shall be a 
complete waiver of RESIDENT'S rights to seek damages against OWNER for above stated losses. 
20. RIGHT OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION: OWNER or OWNER'S Agent by themselves or with others, may enter, inspect and/or repair the premises at any time In case of emergency 
or suspected abandonment. OWNER shall give 24 hours advance notice and may enter for the purpose of showing the premises during normal business hours to prospective renters, 
buyers, lenders, for smoke alarm Inspections, and/or for normal inspection and repairs. OWNER Is permitted to make an alterations, repairs and maintenance that in OWNER'S 
Judgment Is necessary to perform. In addition, OWNER has the right to enter pursuant to Civil Code Section 1954. If the work performed requires Iha! RESIDENT temporarily vacate the 
unit, then RESIDENT shall vacate for this temporary period upon being seNed a 7-day notice by OWNER. RESIDENT agrees that In such event RESIDENT will be solely compensated 
by a corresponding reduction in the rent ror those many days that RESIDENT was temporarily displaced. No other compensation shall be due lo the RESIDENT. If the work to be 
perfonned requires the cooperation of !he RESIDENT to perform certain tasks, then RESIDENT shall perfonn those tasks upon receiving a 24-hour written notice. (EXAMPLE: 
removing food Items from cabinets so that the unit may be sprayed for pests.) Upon 24 hours notice, RESIDENT hereby agrees to lend OWNER the keys to the premises for the 
purpose of having a duplicate made for OWNER'S use. 
21. ASSIGNMENT: RESIDENT agrees not to transfer, assign or sublet the premises or any part thereof and hereby appoints and authorizes the OWNER as his agent and/or by 
OWNER'S own authority to evict any person claiming possession by way of any alleged assignment or subletting. 
22, PARTIAL INVALIDITY: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as waiving any of RESIDENTS or OWNER'S rights under the law. If any part of this Agreement 
shall be In conflict with the law, that part shall be void to the extent that It is In conflict, but shall not Invalidate this Agreement nor shall it affect the validity or enforceability or any other 
provision of !his Agreement. 
23. NO WAIVER: OWNER'S acceptance of rent with knowledge of any default by RESIDENT or waiver by OWNER of any breach of any term or condition of !his Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of subsequent breaches. Failure to require compliance or lo exercise any right shall not be construed as a waiver by OWNER of said term, condition, and/or right, 
and shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 
24. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If any legal action or proceeding be brought by either party lo this agreement, the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for all reasonable attorneys' fees up to 
but not more than $500 In addition to other damages awarded. 
25. ABANDONMENT: California Civil Code Section 1951.2 shall govern Abandonment If any rent has remained unpaid for 14 or more consecutive days and the OWNER has a 
reasonable belief of abandonment of the premises, OWNER shall give 18 days written notice to RESIDENT at any place (including the rented premises) that OWNER has reason to 
believe RESIDENT may receive said notice of OWNER'S Intention to dedare the premises abandoned, RESIDENT'S !allure to respond to said notice as required by law shall allow 
OWNER to redalm the premises. 
26. The undersigned RESIDENTS are Jointly and severally responsible and liable for all obligations under this agreement and shaO Indemnify OWNER for liability caused by the actions 
(omission or commission) of RESIDENTS, their guests and Invitees. 
27. Pursuant to Section 1785,26 of the California Civil Code, as required by law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit history may be 
submitted to a credit reporting agency, If you fail to fulfill !he terms of your credit obligation. RESIDENT expressly authorizes OWNER/AGENT (including a collection agency) lo obtain 
Resident's consumer credit report, which OWNER/AGENT may use if attempting to collect past due rent payments, late fees, or other charges from Resident, both during the term of 
!he Agreement and thereafter. 
28. Lead Warning Statement: Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based palnl Lead from paint, paint chips and dust pose health hazards If not managed property. Lead 
exposure Is especlally hannful to young children and pregnant women. Before renting pre-1978 housing, OWNERS must disclose !he presence of known lead-based paint hazards In 
the dwelling. RESIDENTS must also receive a federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning prevention. 

~AGENT DISCLOSURE (Initial} 
OWNER'S lnllials (on left) mean OWNER has no knowledge of lead-based paint and/or lea~d hazards In or on !he Premises and OWNER has no reports or 

records pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in or on the Premises, and U RENTER'S Initial (on left) Indicate that RENTER has 
received a copy of a "Protect Your Family from Lead In Your Home", and that RENTER shall notify OWNER promptly In writing or any 
deteriorating and/or peeling paint. 

29. MOLD: The OWNER/AGENT has Inspected !he unit prior to lease and knows of no damp or wet building materials and knows of no mold contamination. Resident agrees to 
accept full responsibility and maintain the premises in a manner that prevents the occurrence of an Infestation of mold In the premises. Resident also agrees to Immediately 
report to the OWNER/AGENT any evidence of waler leaks, excessive moisture or lack of proper ventilation and evidence of mold that cannot be removed by deaning. 

~ 
AOA Form No. 101-0AKLANO (Revised 7117) • Capyrighl 2010 • Apanmen1 Owne111 Aasoclalian of Calffomia, lne .• www.aoausa.eom 

• Sm fcm,ndo Volley (BIHi 98Jl-9200 • Lo, Angele, (J:!31937-RRI I • Long O.Och (5621 597•2422 • Gnrdco Grove (714) 539-6000 • S.n Oiq;o (6191 2KQ.7007 • Northern ColiromiA (5 I0J 769•7521 

000028



( 

31. NOTICES: All notices to RESIDENT shall be served at RESIDENrS apartment I house whether or not RESIDENT Is present at the time of delivery and all notices to OWNER I 
AUTHORIZED PERSON shall be served by first class malling to: 

Person Authorized To Manage Property: 
Name ___________ Address _______________________________ _ 
Phone Number __________ _ 
Owner of property or a person who Is authorized to act for and on behalf of the owner for the purpose of service of process and for the purpose of receiving and receipting 
for all notices and demands. 
Name. ___________ Address. _______________________________ _ 
Phone Number __________ _ 
Person or Entity Authorized to Receive Payment of Rent: 
Naine ___________ Address. _______________________________ _ 
Phone Number __________ _ 
32. INVENTORY: The Apartment contains the following items for use by RESIDENT:,..asLLtO.....,.V,eP;.J.!re.:JfiLLC.ulO.AJP.:J[u:a ... t .... o.._r ____________ _ 

RESIDENT further acknowiedges that the subject premises are furnished with the additional furnishings listed on the attached Inventory and that said attached Inventory Is hereby 
made part of this agreement 
33. Proposition 65 Notice: Wamlng: Some areas may contain chemicals known to the State of California to cause cancer, birth defects or other reproductive harm. 
34. Notice Is hereby given of the existence of the Residential Rent Arbitration Board (RRAB) and the Rent Arbitration Program of the City of Oakland, the office of which Is located at 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, s~ Floor, Oakland, CA, 94612, phone number (510) 238-3721. The Ren! Arbitration Program (Oakland Municipal Coda, Chapter 8.22) lease addendum Is 
attached to this lease and acknowiedged In number 35 below as a lease addendum notifying tenants of the Notice to Tenants regarding Oakland's Rent Adjustment Program). In the 
event that OwnerlAgent elects not to implement an annual rent adjustment, the Ownertagent hereby advises Tenant that Owner/agent elects to bank any such rent adjustment to future 
year(s) pursuant to the provisions of the Oakland Rent Arbitration Ordinance. 
Note: Tenant and Landlord has adopted, and agree to comply with Measure EE 'Just Cause Eviction• Ordinance for the City of Oakland, CA., which requires landlords of specified 
residential properties, the right to evict a tenant only for reasons specified In the measure, such as non-payment of rent breach cif lease, damaging premises, drug or other Illegal 
activity, disorderly conduct, rehabilitation of unit, landlord or relative occupancy, except In certain circumstances where the tenant Is disabled, elderly or catastrophically Ill. Further, the 
ordinance provides for damages, penallles and attorneys' fees against landlords who violate this law. Should Tenant violate any portion of the ordinance, Landlord may exercise his/her 
right lo evict tenant for damages, penalties and attorneys' fees, 

35. RESIDENT acknowledges receipt of the following, which shall be deemed a part of this Agreement: (Please check) 

House Rules 
Laundry Rules 
Mailbox Keys 

i Pet Agreement 
Pool Rules 
Apartment Keys 

i Garage Door Opener 
Notice to Tenants: Oakland's Rent Adjusbnent Program 
Information About Bed Bugs Sheet 

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between OWNER and RESIDENT. No oral agreements have been entered Into, and all modifications or 
notices shall be In writing to be valid, The undersigned Residents are jointly and severally responsible for all obligations under this agreement and shall Indemnify Owner for liability 
caused by the actions (omission or commission) of residents, their guests and lnvttees. Renier has relied on his own judgment In entering Into this agreement. 
37. NOTICE: Pursuant lo Section 290.46 ofthe Penal Code, information about specified registered sex offenders is made avallable to the public via an Internet Web site maintained by 
the Department of Justice at www.meganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on an offender's criminal history, this Information wlli lndude either the address at which the offender resides or the 
community of residence and ZIP Code In which he or she resides. 
38. RECEIPT OF AGREEMENT: The undersigned RESIDENT hereby certifies that helshe is nuent in the English language and has read and completely understands this Agreement 
and hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this 'Rental Agreement andlor Lease.• (_) RESIDENT'S Initials: 
OR Pursuant to California CIYII Code 1632, whtch requires translation of specified contracta or agreements that are negotiated In Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog 
or !(o[ean: • I,. 
( tb;q A,J Resldent'1 lnl Is on left hereby acknowledge that this agreement was translated in their foreign language of: spao., n 

C>~ "'J' V I o c:;r/2'-1/17 
Date 

OwnerlAgent Date 

Owner/Agent Date 

NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR THE ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL ADVICE, CONSULT 
YOUR ATTORNEY. 

~ 
AOA Form No. 101·0AKlANO (Rov1aed 7/17). Copyright 2010 • Apartment owners Association of California, Inc. -www.aoausa.com 

• San fononilo Vall.y (KIKI 98K-9200 • Lo, A"lJck,(123)937,KKI I• Lons Beath (5621 S97•24ll • Ganlcn Grove (7141 SJQ.(,000 • Son Diego (619)280.7007 • North<:m("alifomio (SIDI 769-7521 

000029



( 

CITY OF OAKLAND ~ 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 ~ 
Department of Housing and Community Development TEL (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181 

TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP") that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. For more information on 
which units are covered, contact the RAP office. 

• Starting on February I, 2017, an owner must petition the RAP for any rent increase that is more than the 
annual general rent increase (''CPI increase") or allowed "banked" rent increases. These include capital 
improvements and operating expense increases. For these types of rent increases, the owner may raise your 
rent only after a hearing officer has approved the increase. No annual rent increase may exceed I 0%. You 
have a right to contest the proposed rent increase by responding to the owner's petition. You do not have 
to file your own petition. 

• Contesting a Rent Increase: You can file a petition with the RAP to contest unlawful rent increases or 
decreased housing services. To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition (I) within ninety (90) days 
of the notice of rent increase if the owner also provided this Notice to Tenants with the notice of rent 
increase; or (2) within 120 days of the notice of rent increase if this Notice to Tenants was not given with 
the notice of rent increase. If the owner did not give this Notice to Tenants at the beginning of your 
tenancy, you must file a petition within ninety (90) days of first receiving this Notice to Tenants. 
Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP drop-in office at the Housing Assistance 
Center: 2S0 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6th Floor, Oakland and at: 
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Govemment/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment. 

• ff you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 
If the increase is approved and you did not pay the increase, you will owe the amount of the increase 
retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more infonnation contact the RAP office. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 
owner is entitled to get halfofthe fee from you. Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the 
tenantportion of the fee. 

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance (''TPO") to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

• The owner fl is Jll. is not pennitted to set the initial rent on this unit without limitations (such as 
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act). If the owner is not permitted to set the initial rent without limitation, 
the rent in etlect when the prior tenant vacated was .... l..LZ_.,.9'-.1.1 __ 

N NTS' SMOKING OLICY DISC O URE 
• Smoking (circle one) IS or pennitted in Unit 1291 , the unit you intend to rent. 
• Smoking ( circle one) IS or pennitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant's building,_a:UtMtJIHrltsl of units in which smoking is pennitted.) 
• There (circle one) IS o SN a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ____ . 

1 received a copy of this notice on ··,g, '2. 4- \ "i- Mar, a Amerf':'i+a 
(Date) (Tenant's signature) 

tltiSUiiM (,!l1llM!) ififfl3ttU1JiiUDl!Htt~ q:i Jtl!&*• fflJ.!(fft (510) 238-3721 *llitltl*• 
La Notiflcaci6n del Derecho del lnqulllno esta dlsponlble en espai'iol. SI desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 

Revised 2/10/17 

000030



( 

CIUDAD DE OAKLAND 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Departamento de Desarrollo Comunitario y Vivienda 
Programa de Ajustes en el Alquller TEL. (510) 238-3721 

FAX (510) 238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

AVISO A LOS INQUILINOS DEL PROGRAMA DE AJUSTES EN EL ALQUILER 
RESIDENCIAL 

• Oakland tiene un Programa de Ajustes en el Alquiler (Rent Adjustment Program, RAP) que limita los 
aumentos en el alquiler (Capitulo 8.22 del Codigo Municipal de Oakland) y cubre a la rnayoria de las 
unidades residenciales en alquiler construidas antes de 1983, Para mas informacion sobre las viviendas 
cubiertas, contacte a la oficina del RAP. 

• A partir del IO de febrero de 20 I 7, un propietario debe presentar una peticion ante el RAP para todo 
aumento en el alquiler que sea mayor que el aumento general anual en el alquilcr ("aumento CPI") o 
permitido que los aumentos en el alquiler sean "invertidos", Estos incluyen mejoras de capital y aumentos 
en los gastos operativos. En lo que respecta a este tipo de aumentos, el propietario puede aumentar su 
alquiler solo despucs de que un funcionario de audiencia haya autorizado cl incrcmento. Ningun awncnto 
anual en el alquiler podra exceder el I 0%. Ustcd tiene derecho a disputar el aumento en el alquiler 
propuesto respondiendo a la peticion de! propietario. No es indispensable que usted presente su propia 
peticion. 

• Como disputar un aumento en el alquiler: Puede presentar una peticion ante el RAP para disputar 
aumentos ilfcitos en el alquiler o la disminucion de servicios en la vivienda. Pam disputar el aumento en el 
alquller, debe prescntar una peticion ( l) en un plazo de (90) dias a partlr de la fccha de) aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si el propietario tambien proporcion6 este Aviso a los lnquilinos con la notiticaci6n del 
aumento en el alquiler; o (2) en un plazo de 120 dlas a partir de la fecha de recepcion de) aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si este Aviso a los lnquilinos no fue entregado con la notificacion de aumento en el alquiler. 
Si el propietario no entrego este Aviso a los lnquilinos al inicio del periodo de arrendamiento, debera 
presentar una solicitud en un plazo de (90) dias a partir de la f echa en que recibi6 por primera vez este 
Aviso a los lnquilinos. Encontrara informaci6n y formularios disponibles en la oficina del RAP en el 
Centro de Asistencia de Vivienda: 2S0 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6° Piso, Oakland; tambien puede visitar: 
http://www2.oaklandnct,com/Oovernment/o/hcd/o/RentAdlustment. 

• Si usted disputa un aumento en el alquiler, debe pagar su alquiler con el aumento disputado hasta que 
presente la peticion. Si el aumento es aprobado y usted no lo pago, adeudara la suma del incremento 
retroactivo a la fecha de inicio de vigencia del aumento. 

• Oakland tiene controles de desalojo (Ordenanza de Desalojo por Causa Justa y Reglamentos, O.M.C. 8.22) 
que limitan los motivos de desalojo en las viviendas cubiertas. Para mas informacion contacte la oticina 
RAP. 

• Oakland les cobra a los propietarios una Tarifa de Servicio del Programa de Alquiler (Rent Program 
Service Fee) por vivienda al ai\o. Si la tarifa se paga a tiempo, el propietario tiene derecho a cobrar la mitad 
del costo de esta tarifa al inquilino, No se requiere que los inquilinos de viviendas subsidiadas paguen la 
porcion del inquilino de la tarifa. 

• Oakland posee una Ordenanm de Protecci6n al lnquilino (Tenant Protection Ordinance, TPO) para impedir 
el comportamiento abuslvo por parte de propietarios y para ofrecerles a los inquilinos recursos legales en 
instancias donde han sido vfctimas de comportamiento abusivo por parte de propietarios (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (Ordenanza del Concejo Municipal No. 1326S C.M.S.) 

• El propietario Il tiene JZL no tiene pennitido establecer el alquiler inicial de esta vivienda sin 
limitaciones (por ejcmplo, de conformidad con la Ley Costa-Hawkins). Si el propietario no tiene permitido 
establecer el alquiler inicial sin limitaciones, el alquiler vigente cuando el inquilino anterior desalojo la 
vivienda era de 2016 

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap201702b SP 

000031



( 

INFORMACION A LOS INOUILINOS S~BRE LAS POLiTICAS PARA FUMADORES 

• Fumar (encierre en un circulo) ESTA ~TA permitido en la Vivienda. ____ , la vivienda que usted 
prctcnde alquilar. 

• Fumnr (encierre en un clrculo) EST A ~TA permitido en otrns viviendns de su editicio. (Si hay disponibilidad 
de ambas viviendas, fumador y no furn , t.'ll el edilicio del inquilino, adjW1te una listn de las vivicndns en dondc se 
permitc fumar.) ~ 

• (Encierre en un clrculo), HAY o~ Y un area designadn al aire libre para fumar. Se encuentra en ___ _ 

Rccibi una copia de cste aviso cl Z-2 t{ - \ J H 0. '( \ °' Am~, [,t4 
(Fecha) (Pinna dcl inquilino) 

JltfilliMr (IU'llll) 'mffi$ffi"Jil0ll.ll#fl'i:t:i :SZ:llli*o ffli!t'il (510) 238-3721 *ll'9.'&\1J*o 
La Notlficaci6n del Derecho del lnqulllno esta disponible en espai'lol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
IICDrap201702b SP 

000032



(\ 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA. SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND. 

Housing and Community Development 
Department Rent Adjustment Program 

HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

DATE OF HEARING: 

DATE OF DECISION: 

T18-0311 Cervantes v. Fong 

1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

June 3, 2019 

October 3, 2019 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

APPEARANCES: Xavier Johnson, Attorney for Tenant 
Luis Ayala Cervantes, Tenant 
Maria Amezquita, Tenant 
Abigail Romero, Interpreter 
May Fong, Owner 

SUMMARY OF DECISION 

The tenant's petition is partly granted. 

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES 

On June 12, 2019, the tenant filed a petition contesting two (2) rent increases, and 
alleging that her housing services have decreased. The basis for the tenant's petition 
includes the following: 

• The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated 
incorrectly; 

• The increases exceed the CPI Adjustment and are unjustified or are greater 
than 10%; 

• I received a rent increase notice before the property owner received 
approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for such as increase and the 
rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked rent 
increase; 

• No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice 
of increases I am contesting; 

• The property owner did not give me the required form "Notice of the Rent 
Adjustment Program" at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent 
increases; 

000033



• The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-
month period; 

• There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, 
or there are serious problems with the conditions in the unit because the 
owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance; 

• The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received 
previously or is charging me for services originally paid by the owner; and 

• The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 
years. 

The owner filed a timely response denying the allegations. 

THE ISSUES 

(1) When, if ever, did the tenant receive the form Notice to Tenants (RAP Notice)? 
(2) Are the contested rent increases valid? 
(3) Have the tenant's housing services been decreased and, if so, by what 
percentage of the total housing services that are provided by the owner? 

EVIDENCE 

Rent History and RAP Notice 

On her petition, the tenant stated that she moved into the subject unit in August 
of 2015, at an initial monthly rent of $945.00. She did not sign a lease at that time but· 
paid rent directly to the owner. On August 24, 2017, the tenant signed a written lease 
for the subject property effective September 1, 2017 .1 The lease states that the tenant's 
rent shall be $1,233.00 for the first three (3) months and will increase to $1,400.00 in 
December of 2017. The tenant testified that she paid $1,233.00 in rent monthly for 
September, October, and November of 2017. In December of 2017, the tenant began 
paying $1,200.00 in rent monthly instead of the increased amount of $1,400.00. The 
tenant testified that she began paying $1,200.00 because she found out that she was 
paying more than other tenants in the building. The tenant is still paying $1,200.00 in 
rent monthly. 

The tenant further testified that the 2017 lease was negotiated in Spanish, with 
the tenant's minor son serving as an interpreter, but the tenant was only provided the 
written lease in English. The tenant also testified that she first received the RAP Notice 
on August 24, 2017, at the time she signed the lease.2 The RAP Notice was provided 
to her in English and in Spanish. Finally, the tenant testified that she signed the 2017 
lease under duress, because the owner told her that if she did not sign it, the owner 
would evict them because there were too many people living in the unit. The tenant 
testified that there are two (2) adults, and five (5) minor children living in the unit. 

I Exhibit I 
2 Exhibit I 

2 000034



The owner testified that she received a text from the tenant's son in August of 
2017, requesting a lease under the tenant's name. It was only at that time that she 
realized that the tenants did not have a lease for the property. She also found out that 
there were seven (7) people living in the unit. That is a fire hazard, so the owner told 
the tenant that she could only have three (3) people living in the unit. The owner also 
told the tenant her rent would be increased because there were so many people living in 
the unit. Finally, she testified that both parties came to an agreement that the rent 
would be $1,233.00 for the first three months after the lease was signed and would 
increase to $1,400.00 in December of 2017. The owner testified that the tenant has 
paid $1,200.00 in rent monthly instead of the increased amount of $1,400.00. 

Decreased Housing Services 

With the petition, the tenant submitted a list of decreased housing services. The 
parties testified as follows regarding the tenant's list of decreased housing services. 

Electrical Wiring: The tenant testified that some of the electrical outlets were 
broken. Sparks came out if anything was plugged into the outlets. She first noticed this 
issue shortly after moving into the unit, in August of 2015. She complained about the 
electrical outlets to the maintenance worker, Mateo, on three or four occasions over the 
years but nothing was done. The City of Oakland Code Enforcement Services did an 
inspection of the unit on April 23, 2018, and issued a Notice of Violation on April 25, 
2018.3 The Notice of Violation cited a code violation for the electrical outlets in the living 
room and bathroom. In response, the owner completed repairs and Code Enforcement 
reqords show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.4 The tenant testified that 
she has not had any issues with the outlets since July of 2018. 

The owner testified that she did not receive notice of this issue until she received 
the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018. She never received a verbal or written 
complaint from the tenant. In response to the Notice of Violation, she completed the 
necessary repairs and the violation was abated as of July 2018. 

Windows: The tenant testified that the windows in the bedroom do not open 
completely and the window in the living room is not installed properly. She noticed this 
issue when she first moved into the unit. She complained to Mateo, the maintenance 
worker, about this issue multiple times. The Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, 
cited a code violation for the windows, stating that the "windows in the bedroom do not 
open/close properly". In response, the owner completed repairs and Code Enforcement 
records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.5 The tenant testified that 
she has not had any issues with the windows since July of 2018. 

Mold in Bathroom: The tenant testified that there is mold in the bathroom, 
specifically around the sink and bathtub. She uses Clorox to clean the mold but it keeps 

3 Exhibit 3 
4 Exhibit 3 
5 Exhibit 3 

3 000035



returning. She complained to Mateo about the mold when she first moved into the unit 
but nothing has been done. The tenant submitted photographs of the mold.6 

The owner testified that she never received notice of the mold prior to the filing of 
the petition. Further, mold was not cited .in the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018.7 

Kitchen Drawers: The tenant testified that the kitchen drawers and cabinets do 
not open and close properly. The drawers get stuck because they do not fit properly 
into the cabinets. She complained to Mateo, the maintenance worker, about this issue 
approximately a year after moving into the unit. Mateo sanded the drawers but they still 
got stuck. The Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code violation for the 
kitchen drawers. Code Enforcement records show that the violation was abated on July 
6, 2018.8 

Splitting of Utilities: The parties did not provide any testimony on this issue, 
therefore, this claim is dismissed. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

. Invalid Rent Increases 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance states that an owner seeking a rent increase in 
excess of the CPI Rent Adjustment or available banking must first petition the Rent 
Program and receive approval for the rent increase before the rent increase can be 
imposed9. Any rent increase not based on the CPI Rent Adjustment or Banking that is 
not first approved by the Rent Adjustment Program is void and unenforceable. 10 

In this case, the contested rent increases exceed the CPI Rent Adjustment and 
available banking. The owner failed to petition the Rent Program to receive approval for 
the rent increases built into the 2017 lease before imposing the increases on the 
tenants. Therefore, the contested rent increases are void and unenforceable as a 
matter of law. The monthly rent remains $945.00, the rent amount prior to the rent 
increases imposed in the 2017 lease. Since the tenants have paid a portion of the rent 
increases, they are owed restitution for rent overpayments as outlined in the Table 
below. 

Although the tenant acknowledged receiving the RAP Notice in August of 2017, 
the timeliness requirements outlined in the RAP Notice only apply to rent increases 
based on the CPI, banking, or other claims such as decreased housing services, code 
violations etc. The timeliness requirements do not apply to rent increases that are void 
and unenforceable as a matter of law. 

6 Exhibit 4 
7 Exhibit 3 
8 Exhibit 3 
9 O.M.C. §8.22.065(A) 
10 O.M.C. §8.22.065(A) 

4 
000036



Timeliness of Decreased Housing Service Claims 

The Oakland Rent Ordinance provides that for a petition claiming decreased 
housing services: 

a. If the decreased housing is the result of a noticed or discrete change in 
services provided to the tenant, the petition must be filed within ninety days of 
whichever of the following is later: 

i. The date the tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased 
housing service; or 

ii. The date the tenant first receives the RAP Notice. 
b. If the decreased housing is ongoing, the tenant may file a petition at any 

point but is limited in restitution for ninety (90) days before the petition is filed and to the 
period of time when the owner knew or should have known about the decreased 
housing service. 11 

Therefore, the tenant's restitution for any decreased housing services shall be 
limited to March of 2018, ninety (90) days before the petition filing date of June 12, 
2018. 

Decreased Housing Services 

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services 
is considered to be an increase in rent12 and may be corrected by a rent adjustment. 13 

However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must be 
either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the start of the tenancy, or 
one that is required to be provided in a contract between the parties, or a violation of the 
housing or building code which seriously affects the habitability of the tenant's unit. 
Further, an owner must be given notice of a problem, and a reasonable opportunity to 
make repairs, before a claim of decreased housing services will be granted. 

Additionally, the tenants have the burden of proof with respect to each claim. 

Electrical Wiring: The tenant testified credibly that some of the electrical outlets 
were broken and she notified Mateo, the maintenance worker, about this issue multiple 
times. Mateo is an agent of the owner, and therefore, notice of this issue is imputed 
onto the owner. Further, the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code 
violation for the electrical outlets in the living room and bathroom. Code Enforcement 
records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018. 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

11 O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(A)(3) 
12 O.M.C. Section 8.22.070(F) 
13 O.M.C. Section 8.22.11 0(E) 

5 000037



Windows: The tenant testified credibly that the windows in the bedroom do not 
open completely and she notified Mateo about this issue multiple times. Further, the 
Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code violation for the windows, stating 
that the "windows in the bedroom do not open/close properly". Code Enforcement 
Records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.14 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

Mold in Bathroom: The tenant testified that she complained about mold in the 
bathroom to Mateo when she first moved into the unit. However, mold was not cited in 
the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018. The tenant has failed to sustain her burden 
of proof regarding the mold and compensation for this claim is denied. 

Kitchen Drawers: The tenant testified that the kitchen drawers and cabinets do 
not open and close properly. Further, the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited 
a code violation for the kitchen drawers. Code Enforcement Records show that the 
violation was abated on July 6, 2018. 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

VALUE OF LOST SERVICES 
Service Lost From To Rent % Rent Decrease No. Overpaid 

Decrease /month Months 

Electrical 1-Mar-18 1-Jul-18 $945 2% $ 18.90 5 $ 94.50 
Outlets 

Windows 1-Mar-18 1-Jul-18 $945 2% $ 18.90 5 $ 94.50 
Drawers 1-Mar-18 1-Jul-18 $945 1% $ 9.45 5 $ 47.25 

I TOTAL LOST SERVICES $ 236.25 

OVERPAID RENT 

Max 
Monthly Monthly Difference per No. 

From To Rent paid Rent month Months Sub-total 

1-Sep-17 1-Nov-17 $1,233 $945 $ 288.00 3 $ 864.00 

1-Dec-17 1-Oct-19 $1,200 $94(5 $ 255.00 23 $ 5,865.00 

I TOT AL OVERPAID RENT $ 6,729.00 

14 Exhibit 3 

6 
000038



RESTITUTION 

MONTHLY RENT 
TOTAL TO BE REPAID TO TENANT $ 

TOTAL AS PERCENT OF MONTHLY RENT 
AMORTIZED OVER MO. BY REG. IS 

OR 
OVER 24 MONTHS BY HRG. OFFICER IS $ 

ORDER 

1. Petition T18-0311 is partly granted. 

2. The 2017 rent increases are invalid. The tenant's base rent remains 
$945.00. 

$945 
6,965.25 

737% 

290.22 

3. The tenant is entitled to restitution for rent overpayments and past decreased 
housing services in the amount of $6,965.25. The restitution shall be 
amortized over twenty-four (24) months. The tenant's rent from November 
2019 to October 2021 is $654.78. In November of 2021, the tenant's rent will 
revert to the base rent of $945.00. 

4. The remaining claims of decreased housing services are denied. 

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 
Program. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal 
using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received 
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is shown on 
the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to 

· file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. 

Dated: October 3, 2019 ,·"172, ~~·· 

Maimo6~ahl Ahmad 
Hearing Officer 
Rent Adjustment Program 

7 

000039



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number TlS-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
Hearing Decision 

Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
358 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

Tenant 
Maria & Luis Cervantes 
1 791 28th A venue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson, Centro Legal de la Raza 
3022 International Blvd Ste. 410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on October 03, 2019 in Oakland, CA. 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000040



( 

.. ', ·r 
' ; ,\., 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAWf 9 
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
(510) 238-3721 

Appellant's Name 
00wner 

May Fong 
Property Address (Include Unit Number) 
1791-28th Avenue, Oakland, Ca 94601 

Appellant's Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number 
358 Cerro Court, Daly City, Ca 94015 T18-0311 

Date of Decision appealed 
October 3, 2019 

APPEAL 

D Tenant 

Name of Representative (if any) Representative's Mailing Address (For notices) 

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation mu~t 
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal !f~ed: '. 
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation. ;:; 1 -.., 

t ·-, .... , 
1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clea(t-JJ 

explain the math/clerical errors.) 

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required): 

,r:-
a) D The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior d~tisions 

.1 i 
,') 

l 

'1 
.J 

of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Boar'd i:i 
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.). 

b) D The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation, 
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.) 

c) D The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation, 
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.). 

d) 0 The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed 
statement as to what law is violated.) 

e) 

Rev. 6/18/2018 

0 The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why 
the decision is nots{ •• - • ··- • ·---- •• ------• --~ound in the case record.) 

' 

ne (510) 238-3721. 
1 

000041



t) □ I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner's claim. (In 
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what 
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a 
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.) 

g) D The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only 
when your underlying petition was based on a/air return claim. You must specifically state why you have been 
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.) 

h) 0 Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.) 

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent 
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first 
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.0lO(A)(S). 
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached: ~- • 

*Please listen to only the section of testimony on the audio day of hearing. 
• You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. • 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on October 8 , 20_1_9 _, 

I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial 
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, 
addressed to each opposing party as follows: 

~ 
Luis Cervantes AND Maria Amezquita 

Address 
1791-28th Avenue 

Ci!I. State Zip 
Oakland, Ca 94601 

~ 

Address 

~in:. S!il!e Zill 

10/8/19 

DATE 

For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 

Rev. 6/18/2018 

2 

000042



Tl8-031 l APPEAL EXPLANATION 

1) The hearing officer calculated the rent incorrectly. The rent for tenants Cervantes and 
Amerzquita was $1400 as per signed lease in Exhibit A. The application for habitability 
issues is also incorrect. The electrical issues was due to the tenants' overloading the 
circuits with expansive outlets with overloading appliances. Please see attached 
Exhibit B. This caused shortages and dangerous circumstances and is due to the 
overcrowding of the unit 1 bedroom unit. The hearing officer calculated the decreased 
housing from March 2018 to July 2018. She has to put into account that the Owner was not 
made aware of any problems until receiving notice regarding the issues from code enforcement 
in or about May 2, 2018. Owners are allotted a reasonable time period to make repairs. 
Electrical and cabinets were repaired on May 8,2018. Window Repairs were completed June 
1, 2018 due to ordering of windows. Please see attached receipts and email with the Code 
Enforcement Inspector. Please see attached Exhibit C. The hearing officer did not 
adhere to the decrease housing clause. [an owner must be given notice of a problem, and a 
reasonable opportunity to make repairs, before a claim of decreased housing services will 
be granted] These were all repaired within a reasonable time period which is exactly a day 
after receiving notice repairs had been made with exception of the windows that needed special 
ordering; therefore, there should be no compensation for decreased housing. The issues were 
abated in July only because the inspection for the unitwas scheduled for July. 

2) d) The decision violates Ca state law 2007 California Civil Code Article 2. Rental Agreement 
CA Codes (civ:798.15-798.23.5) CIVIL CODE SECTION 798.15-798.23.5. Tenant Luis 
Cervantes AND Maria Amezquita attempts to claim they should takeover the rent amount set 
at the original tenant lease. Nazana Nevarez was the original tenant that signed a valid lease 
with previous landlord on May 30, 2012. Please see attached Exhibit D. Owner May Fong 
purchased property January 30, 2015 and sent notices to existing tenants of new ownership 
information along with RAP information to the original authorized tenant. Please see attached 
Exhibit E. 
Nazana Nevarez subletted the unit to Luis Cervantes and Maria Amezquita without my 
approval or consent which is a breach of lease terms. Please see highlighted section regarding 
Subletting. It states the following: 

[Tenant will not sublet any part of the Premises or assign this agreement without the prior 
written consent of Owner. The named Tenants are the only "Original" Tenants. No person 
other than the named Tenants will be permitted to regularly or continuously use or occupy 
the Premises unless all of the following conditions are met: 1) Tenant notifies Owner in 
writing, signed by every Tenant, stating a request to have a new person occupy the 
Premises; 2) said prospective occupant completes and gives to Owner Owners rental 
application; 3) Owner approves of the prospective occupant's creditworthiness and 
references from prior landlords; and 4) the new occupant signs Owner's Change of Tenant 
Agreement for such occupancy before occupying the Premises, which agreement will 
include a provision that the new occupant will abide by and perform all the obligations of 

000043



this Agreement. The rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last 
Original Tenant(s) moves from the Premises. 

In the event that Owner consents to any sub-tenancy, is hereby agreed that the Original 
Tenant may not charge more to the sub-tenant(s) than that proportional share of the rent 
which is being charged by and paid to Owner. 

No action or inaction or acceptance of rent or knowledge on the part of Owner will be 
deemed to be a waiver of the provision of this Section on the part of Owner and will not be 
deemed an approval of any person as a "sub-tenant" for.any purpose.] 

Owner May Fong was totally unaware that Luis Cervantes and Maria Amezquita were illegal 
subtenants that moved into premises without authorization until the text sent by Luis Cervantes 
8/18/ 17 as stated at the hearing. Please see attached Exhibit F. Original tenants were given proper 
notices with RAP notices. Please see attached Exhibit E. 

When Owner was made aware of the Cervantes and Amezquita were illegal subtenants, Owner 
was to evict them based on violation of lease and unauthorized subtenants. Tenants begged owner 
to stay. With heart, On August 24, 2017, Owner decided to allow tenant to stay and have tenants 
fill out an application and sign new lease as per original lease ONLY based on 3 persons residing 
in Premises and abide by stipulation in the original lease that the rent for the Premises may be 
raised to market rates when the last Original Tenant(s) moves from the Premises. Tenants 
Cervantes and Amezquita professed on multiple occasions they only had 3 in their family. Owner 
would never have signed a new lease with 7 living in a 1 bedroom unit because it is an unsafe and 
unhealthy environment. 

Per original lease, Original Tenant(s) moved out or Premises and Cervantes and Amezquita had 
become the new tenant, the lease sign and agreed by both parties raised to market rate at $1400 
per month is valid according to the California state law. Please see attached Exhibit D. 

2.e. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. The Preponderance of evidence is 
upon the Petitioner to not give testimony but present factual supported documented evidence. All 
of the tenants' claim has not been supported with any documents and the evidence the hearing 
officer claims is not accurate. The hearing officer claimed the tenant did not receive the RAP until 
we signed a new lease which is correct. However, she neglected to acknowledge all the RAP 
notices Owner sent was to the original tenant Nanzania. Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita would 
not be sent these notices. Please see attached Exhibit F. 

The hearing officer did not take into account that tenants Cervantes and Amezquita were 
unauthorized subtenants until the new lease was signed. I emphasize they were not the authorized 
master tenants. Any rent payments the Petitioner claims was directly deposited in Owners account 
without disclosing to the Owner the rent payments were from anyone but the master tenants 
owners. Rent payments were also deposited in owners account with either cash or bank transfer 
masking who is depositing the rent. Please see Exhibit G. As evidenced in the application and 
lease signed and dated August 24, 2017. Please see attached Exhibit A. This is the Petitioners' 

000044



only and original lease as new tenants at the new marker rate of $1400 (market value is $1800). 
The attached stated the terms of lease as per California law and was based on the tenant's 
misrepresentation of facts regarding their claim was only 3 persons in the unit. 

The hearing officer incorrectly claims that Owner testified "told the tenant her rent would be 
increased because there were so many people living in the unit." This is TOTALLY UNTRUE. 
Please listen to audio. Owner never made any claims of raising the rent due to the amount of 
people in unit. The rent was raised to market value as allowed by law when the original tenant 
vacates premises which happened. It is a fact I stated only 3 tenants can reside in the Premises 
and the tenant misrepresented themselves. Owner did indicate and firmly believe 7 in a 300 
sleeping space is unsafe and hazardous but never claimed the rent is raised due to the amount of 
people that would be living there. 

Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita were unauthorized subtenants and as per original lease in 
Exhibit D, the rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last Original 
Tenant(s) moves from the Premises as well as State and local laws. 

h) The hearing officer did not adhere to the State or local laws. There was no 2017 rent increase 
as the hearing officer claims. This was a new lease to the new tenants of the unit. Prior to that 
they were unauthorized subtenants that never made me aware of their unauthorized residency until 
August 2017. Contracts matter and it is unjust to reward tenants who move into units without 
written authorization. Owners have the right to choose their tenants and charge market rent to new 
tenants once authorized. Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita deceived the Owner by moving into 
Premises without authorization and then misrepresenting themselves in order to avoid eviction and 
to obtain a new lease. This is not legally adhering to the laws. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on October 08, 2019 in Oakland, CA. -

-------~2 
May Fong, Owner 

000045



\ EXHIBIT A 

APPLICATION TO RENT OR LEASE 

PLEASE PRINT 
Driver's License # 

Email Address 

EMPLOYMENT 
Current Employment Prior Employment 

Employer 
I ~""'"'-"~ nv·vAt'1 en': .. :"~, 

Address " 
Employer Phone \. ~~f:iC,n ... 

o.,~n. C't :-. -,.. 
J!)b Title - ' \ 

Name of Supervisor 

Dates of Employment From: To: From: To: 

Income Per Month $ $ 

RESIDENCE 
Current Residence Previous Residence Previous Residence 

Street Address ,~q, 2.S'f ,t-\, w~ 
City ,c"'i,ra,.l,wvv.i rin I 
State & Zip Of ll Cl') r 
Dates of Stay 

Owner/Manager 
And 
Phone number 

Reason For Leaving 

Last Rent Paid $ $ $ 

VEHICLES 
Automobiles Make Model Color Year License No. 

Motorcycles 

Nearest Relative Living Elsewhere 

~ 
AOA Fann No. IOOA (Rev 10//13) - Copyltghl :!006 • ~Ill 0Wnol8 AnoclaflOn of Califomla, Inc.• www.aoauea.c,om 

• San Fernando Vallcy(Hl8) 988-9200 • 1.os 1,nscfnU!!JI 9l7-881 I i Lona lleoch ('62) 597°2422,•Gatdcn0rovo(714)539-6000 • San 1Jicso(619) 2II0-7007 • Notthcm<.'alibmia (510)769-7521 

000046



( 

CREDIT INFORMATION Please I/st all your financial obllaatlons 
Name of Bank or 5avlnas & Loan Branch or Addren 

I Checking 

I Savings 

Credit Accounts Account No. Address/Cltv Phone 

GENERAL INFORMATION Check answer that applies 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

Do-you smoke? 
Do you have any pets/animals? 
Have you ever filed for bankruptcy? 
Do you have any musical instruments? 
Do you have any water-filled furniture or do you intend to use 
water filled furniture in the apartment? 
Have you ever been convicted for selling, possessing, 
distributing or manufacturing illegal drugs or convicted of any 
other crime? • 
Have you ever been evicted or named as a defendant In an 
eviction for non-payment of rent or any other reason? 

Please explain any "yes" answers to the above questions: 

( 

AcmuntNo. 

Balance 

□ YES . 
□ YES 
□ YES 
□ YES 
□ YES 

Cl YES 

□ YES 

$ 

$ 

Balance 

Due Monthlv 

□ ·NO 
□ NO 
□ NO 
□ NO 
Cl NO 

Cl NO 

□ NO 

Why are you leaving your current residence? ________________________ _ 

The applicant hereby applies to rent/lease Apartment # ____ at _____________ _ 
_______________ for$ _____ per month, and upon owner's approval agrees to 
enter Into a Rental Agreement and/or Lease and pay all rent and security deposits required before 
occupancy. 

An application fee of $ _____ is hereby submitted for the cost of processing this application, to obtain 
credit history and other background information. 

Applicant represents that all information given on this application is true and correct. Applicant hereby authorizes 
verification of all references and facts, including but not Umited to current and previous landlords and employers, and 
personal references. Applicant hereby authorizes owner/agent to obtain Unlawful Detainer, Credit Reports, Telechecks, and/or 
criminal background reports. Applicant agrees to furnish additional credit and/or personal references upon request. Applicant 
understands that incomplete or incorrect information provided in the application may cause a delay in processing which may 
result in denial of tenancy. In the event that a material misstatement or misrepresentation is discovered after Applicant is 
accepted as a Resident, and whether or not a Lease or Month to Month Rental Agreement is executed, Owner may, at Owner's 
sole discretion, deem such misstatement or misrepresentation to be a material and non-eunble breach of any subsequent Lease 
or Month to Month Rental Agreement and grounds for rescission of the contract and immediate eviction. Applicant hereby 
waives any claim and releases from liability any person providing or obtaining said verification or additional Information. 

Appllcant:~Q A-meup Ji« 
(Sig re required) 

• Date:-~.---~-=a.~-"",-_r,-_.__ __ _ 

~ 
AOA Form No. 100A (Rev 10//13). Copyflghl 2006 • Apartment OWnera Alaoclallon of Cali!Omla, Inc. • www.aoall98.com 

• San Fernando Valli:y (KIK)'lllll,9200 .• ..... Angela 02.1111.17,8811 ! Lons Hach (~2) ,97,14~.• Ganim°""" (714) ~)~ • 5an Dicao (6191 lK0.7007 • No,11, .... l"alif'omb tSI0)769-1$21 

000047



J , .t_oo\ tl"ZAt ,1-- < 
~ v- 1t, OAKLAND RENTAL AGREEMENT AND/OR LEASE..,_ 

Landlord/1.essod~t:~av Ea~ Apa,tmentNumber 1791 
Tenanl(s}A.essee: ~~~L~wFt\ ~<!t~ ~ 
Tenanl(s}llessee: C _ ~~~s 7 .JQJ~\I\\ A:lt)t\\ IA AV\--t ,q~, ~ \ 1" 
Aparlment Number. 1 791 \ ,v\ \. \ 
ApartmentAddress: 1Z91-2Rth Avenue ~r~ M A 
City: Qakla=rl;r;{ ~ ,s~Ca ,ZiP.94601 'l\,-.\_£P " 
Monlhly Rental Rate~ t \ 1 i$$ ~-\~agreement shaU commence on .... 9.._11 .... { .... l ..... Z ____ , andconlfnue: {checlcOll9below) 

Rental Due Date: ..1st.of mnnth _;s6:\i.,W> i'-\ ..D_ Month to Month Agreement 

Security Deposit: ;..;iron io.P ~ M .. A B . .JZL Until 8/30/18 al which lime thereafter shaU become a month to 
Late Charge: s 75 if nnt na(d hv 3rd monlhtenancy. lfTenantShouldmovefrompremlsesprlortolheexpfrallondate,heshallbe 

Parking Space: ...,________ Hable for all the rent due until such «me the apa,tment Is occupied by Landlord-approved resident 

StoraAe Space: 0 and/or el!l)lratiOn ohald time period, whldlever is shorler. 

1. This Rental Agreement and/or Lease shall evidence the complete lem1s and conditions under Mllch Ille parties whose signatures appear below have agreed. 
Landlonl/Lessor/Agenl shall be referred lo as "OWNER" and Tenanl(s)/Lessee(a) shall be refened lo as 'RESIDENT." As consideration for this agreemen~ OWNER agrees lo 
rentllease to RESIDENT and RESIDENT ag,ees to rentnease tom OWNER for use SOLELY AS A PRIVATE RESIDENCE, Ille premises llsted above. RESIDENT acknowledges that 
any false statements l'ound In RESIDENT'S application shall oonslltute a non-curable bleadl of this agreement RESIDENT hereby agrees to complete an updated appllcatlon, 
includfng a census as to Iha occupants in the unh upon seven days request of OWNER. 
2. PA YMEN1S: Rent and/or other charges are to be paid at Iha office or apartment of the manager of lhe building or al &UCh other place designated in writing by OWNER. For the \ \ '""'-
safaty of lha,11}11119& all payments are to be made by check or money ord@r and no cash Shall be acceptable. OWNeB 11~dges pf the ~Dl]!h'L \... ~ °'' \ ~ ,-
rent of: $_,_-L.~_,__s ___ andpDeposllofS "2CQO ,foratotalpaymentofS~-;;3i:;..'-t...;:...:-S~S.-➔,. .,_,,. 'V • 1 -, 
All payments are to be made ~e to: ono and delivered to • California, 
Telephone Number 4] 5-M 2-99 who Is usually available on the following days: ..L..111:.s:aJL.M,lll,K.,. ___ during the following hOUIS: - . 
3. LATE CHARGEIFEES: The late charge amount noted above, not to exceed 6% of the monthly rent, &haU be added to any payment ol rent not made on the rental due dale or for 
which a delldent (bounced) check Shaff have been given. Tenant Shall be Hable for $25 each time a check Is returned to OWNER because the cheek was dishonored. A fee of $50.00 
will be Incurred each Ume Iha OWNER Is required lo serve a 3-Day Notice to Pay Ille Rent due to the Tenant's rallure to pay rent on the day renl Is due. 
4. SECURITY DEPOSITS: The Security Deposit shall not exceed two times the monlhly rent for unfurnished apartments or three times the monthly rent for furnished apartments. The 
total of the above deposits shaD secure compliance with lhe terms and conditions ol lhla agreement and shall be refunded lo RESIDENT within 21 days after the premises have been 
<XIIIIJ)lately vacated less any amount necessa,y to pay OWNER: a) any unpaid rent, b) deaning cosls, c) key replacement costs, d) costs for repair of damages to apartment and/or 
<lOllllilon areas above ordinary wear and tear, and e) any other amount legally allowable under the terms of this agreement A written accounting of said charges shall be p,esenled to 
RESIDENT within 21 days of move-out. If deposits do not cover such costs and damages, the RESIDENT shall Immediately pay safd additional costs for damages to OWNER. During 
the term of tenancy, RESIDENT agiees lo Increase the deposit upon 30 days written notice by an amount equal to any Mura lnaeases In rent and.lor an amount neoessaiy to cover Iha 
cosl of rectifying any damage or expense for which RESIDENT Is responsible, Security deposit Is not lo be used as last month's rent 
s. UTILITIES: RESIDENT agrees lo pay for au utiflties and/or se,v!ces based upon occupancy of Iha premises empt narhaae . 
6. OCCUPANTS: Guesl{s) staying over 14 days aJ1T1ulalive or longer during any 12-monlh period, without the OWNER'S written consen~ shall be oonsldered a breach of this 
agreemenL ONLY the following Dsled lndMduats and/or animals, AND NO OTHERS shall ocwpy the~ aparll!lent for IIIOl8 than 14 days unless lhe exp,eased written consent of 
OWNER Is obtained 1n advance, (the 14 day period maybe extended by local Rent Control Laws): Qaklaod . RESIDENT shall 
pay additional renl at the rate of $100.00 per month or 25% (or the amount allowed under rent contn>Q of the amen! monthly ren~ ~ver amount Is greater, for the period of 
time lhat each additional guest In excess of the above named shall occupy the premises. RESIDENT shall pay the same additional monlhly rent for each additional anlmal in excess of 
lhe above named anfmal(s), which 8haH oc:a,py the Pf8111lses. Acceptance of addlUonal rent or app,oval of a guest Shall not waive any requirement of !his agreement or convart Iha 
status of any 'guesr Into a RESIDENT. 
7. Pm AND FURNISHINGS: Furnishings • No Uquld-filled fumltUl8 of any kind may be kept on lhe premises. If the slRICIUre was built In 1973 Ot later RESIDENT may possess a 
watelbed If he maintains watecbed Insurance valued at$100,000.00 or more. RESIDENT must fumlsh OWNER with proof of said Insurance. RESIDENT must also comply With Civil 
Code Sacllon 1940.5. Resident shall not keep on premises a niceptade conlalnlng more than ten gallons of llquld, highly oombustible materlals or other Items which may cause a 
hazard or affect Insurance rates such as, musical instrument, ltem(s) of unusual weight or dimension, RESIDENT also agrees to carry Insurance deemed appropriate by OWNER to 
cover possible losses causad by using said Items. Pets -lio animal, fowl, fish, reptile, and/or pet of any kind shall be kept on or about the premises, for any amount of time, without 
obtaining the prior Written consent and meeting the requirements of the OWNER. Said consent, If granted, shaU be revocable at OWNER'S option upon giving a 30-day written notice. 
In the event laws &18 passed or pannlsslon Is granted to have any Item prohibited by this agreement or If for any ieason such item exiBts on the premises, there shall be minimum 
addilional rent of $25.00 a monlh for each such Hem If another amount Is not staled In this agreemenL In the event laws are passed or pennlsslon Is granted to have a pet and/or 
animal of any kind, an additional deposit In the amount of S 3 000 shall be required along wilh the signing of OWNER'S 'PET AGREEMENT," 
8. PARKING/STORAGE: When and if RESIDENT Is assigned a parking space on OWNER'S property, the parking space shall be used exclusively for parking of passenger 
automobiles and/or those approved vehlctes ftsted on RESIDENT'S 'AppllcaUon to Rent/Lease" or attached hereto. RESIDENT may not waSh, repair, or paint in this parking space or at 
any other common areas on the premises. (RESIDENT may not assign, sublet, or allow RESIDENT'S guesl(s) to use this or any other parking space.) RESIDENT Is responsible for oil 
leaks and other vehicle dlschaiges for which RESIDENT shall be charged for cleaning If deemed necessary by OWNER. Only vehldes Iha! 818 operational may palk In their assigned 
space. 
9. NOISE: RESIDENT agrees not to cause II' allow any nolse·or activity on the premises that might dlstuib the peace and quiet of another RESIDENT. Said noise and/or 8CtiYlly shall 
be a breach of lhla Agreement 
10. LOITERING AND PLAY: Lounging, playing, or unnecessary loiter!ng In the halls, on the flOnl steps, or in the common areas In such a W8'/ as to Interfere wilh Ille he use and 
enjoymen~ passage or convenience of another RESIDENT Is prohibited. 
11. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: If lhe premises become tolally or parUally destroyed during the tenn of this Agreement so that RESIDENTS use Is seriously Impaired, RESIDENT 
or OWNER may lennlnate this Agreement immed',ately upon tlvee-day written notice to lhe other. 
12. CONDfflON OF PREMISES: RESIDENT acknowledges Iha! he has examined Iha pramlsea and that said premises, all fumlshlngs, llxture&, furniture, plumblng, heating, electrical 
fac:llltles, all Items listed on the attached Inventory shee~ If any, and/or all other Items provided by OWNER 818 all dean, and In good sallsfactoiy condition except as may be Indicated 
elsewhere In this Agreement. RESIDENT agrees to keep the premises and all Items In good order and condition and to Immediately pay for costs to repair and/or replace any portion of 
the above damaged by RESIDENT, his guests and/or ln'iitees, except as prowled by law. At the tannlnatlon of this Agreement, all of the above-enumerated Items In lhla provision shall 

~ 
AOA FonnNo. 101-0AKlANI) (Revieod 71171• Copyright 2010, Apartment Owners Asaocialion of Calllomla, rno. -www.-usa.com 

•5an Femando Volloy(Rlll 981-9200• to, Aftsole1(32Jl 9JM1tll I • Lons llooch Cffll $97-2422 • Oatdcn<ln>w(7141 S».6000 •5an Di<go(61912II0•1U07 •NorthcmC11if'ornil (SIOI 769-7521 

~ ... ~fu ( J>epoS;J ti, 'f1ecn/c. ,j ~-v-: CA ,Ae.ur 4 

000048



( ( 

be relumed to OWNER in dean and good oondlllon except for reasonable wear and tear; the premises shall be flee of all personal property and trash not belonglng to OWNER. It Is 
agreed that au dirt, holes, tears, bums, or Slalns of any size or amount In lhe ca,peta, drapes, walls, fixtures, 8lldlor any olher part of the premises, do not constilute reasonalle wear 
and tear. 
13. MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATIONS: RESIDENT shaR not pain~ wallpaper, atter or redecorate, change or install locks, lnstaD antenna or other equlpme~ SCl'ews, fastening 
deviais, excesslvely large nails, or adhesive materials, place signs, displays, or other exhibits, on or In any portion of the premises without Ille written consent of the OWNER except as 
may be provided by law. RESIDENT shall deposit all QSJbage and waste In a dean and sanlta,y ffl8!1118r Into the proper receplades as provided and shall cooperate in keeping Ille 
gamage area neat and dean. RESIDENT shall be responsible for disposing of llems of &Uch size or nature as Is not normally acceptable by lhe garbage halder for !he bulldlng. 
RESIDENT shall be responsible ror keeping the QSJbage disposal dean of chicken bones, toolhplcka. match slicks, celery, pits, grease, melal vegetable lies, and aD olher Items that 
may tend to cause stoppage of the mechanism. RESIDENT shall pay for the deaning out of any plumbing fixture that may need lo be cleared of stoppage and for the expense or 
damage caused by the stopping of waste pipes or overftow from balhlubs, washbasins, toilets, or &Inks, If caused by negligence or misuse by RESIDENT or their guests. Tenant must 
notify landlord wllh a written notice staling what ltem(s) need service or repair and give landlord a reasonable opportunity to service or repair that ltem(s). Should any charges be 
IRCUR'ed by the City as a result or not no!lfyfng Iha landlOld In writing of such needed service or repalnl, tenant shaD be responsible for a minimum of $201.50 for each occwrence plus 
any additional fines or inspection raes Imposed by a government office as a result of RESIDENT not notifying OWNER In writing of any deflciencles with the residence. 
14. SMOKE/CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS: The rental unltls equipped v.ilh properly Amctlonlng smoke and carbon monoxide datactors. Resident agrees lo test the smoke 
and carbon monoxide detectors In the rental unH monthly ror proper function. Resident agrees not to interfere with their normal function or disable any detectors in any manner. 
15. HOUSE, POOL, AND LAUNDRY RULES: RESIDENT shall comply wilh all house, pool, pe~ and laundry rules attached lo this agreement which may be changed from time to time. 
These rules shaD apply lo, but are not Hmtled to, noise, odors, disposal of trash, pets, parl<lng, use of common areas, and storage of toys, bicycles, tools, and other personal items 
~ncluding signs and laund,y), \\fdch must be kept inside and out of view. OWNER shall not be liable to RESIDENT ror any violation or such rules by any other RESIDENTS or persons. 
Rights of usage and maintenance of lhe laundly room and/or pool and pool area a,e gretullous and subject to AIVOC81ion by OWNER at any time. 
18. CHANGE OF TERMS: The terms and conditions of this agreement are subject 10 future change by OWNER after Iha expiration of Iha agreed lease period upon 30 days written 
notice setting forth such change and delivered to RESIDENT. Arty changes are subject lo laws In existence al the time of Iha Nolice Of Change OfTerms. 
17. TERMINATION: After expiration of the teasing period, lhls agreement Is automallcally renewed from month-lo-month, but may be tennlnaled by either party, The owner giving a 60-
day nollce and the iesldent gMng a 30-day written notice of Intention lo terminate. Where laws require ']us! cause,■ such just cause shaU be so stated m said notice. The pAIITllses 
shall be ainsklered vacated only after aD areas induding sto,age areas are clear of all RESIDENTS belongings, and keys and other property fumished for RESIDENrs use 818 
returned to OWNER. Should the RESIDENT hoot over beyond the termination dale « faff lo vacate aD possessions on or before the tennfnation date, RESIDENT shaD be liable for 
additional rent and damages, which may include damages due to OWNER'S loss of prospectiva new RENTERS. 
18. POSSESSION: If OWNER Is unable to deliver possession of the Apartment to RESIDENT on the agreed dale, because of Iha loss or deslluc!lon of lhe Apartment or because of lhe 
failure of lhe prior RESIDENT to vacate or for any olher reason, the RESIDENT and/or OWNER may Immediately cancel and terminate lhls agreement upon written notice to the other 
party at lhalr last known address, Yttlereupon nellher party shaR have liability to the other, and any sums paid under this Agreement shall be refunded In full. If nellher party cancels, this 
Agreement shall be pro-rated and begin on Iha dale or actual possession. 
19. INSURANCE: RESIDENT acknowledges that OWNER'S Insurance does not cover personal property damage call88d by fire, theft, rain, war, acta of God, acta of olheis, and/or any 
other causes, nor shall OWNER be held liable for such losses. RESIDENT HEREBY AGREES TO OBTAIN HIS OWN INSURANCE POLICY TO COVER AJff PERSONAL LOSSES. 
This does not waive OWNER'S duly to prevent personal lnJu,y or property damage where !hat duty Is Imposed by law, however, RESIDENTS failure to maintain said po!fcy shall be a 
complete waiver of RESIDENrS rights to seek damagas against OWNER for above stated tosses. 
20. RIGHT OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION: OWNER or OWNER'S Agent by themselves or with others, may enter, Inspect and/or repair lhe premises al any time In case of emergency 
or suspecled abandonment OWNER shall give 24 hours advance nollce and may enter for the purpose or showing the premises during nonnal business hows to prospective renters, 
buyer&, lenders, for smoke alann lnspeclions, and/or for normal Inspection and repairs. OWNER Is permitted to make an alterations, repalis and maintenance that In OWNER'S 
Judgment ts necessa,y to perform. In addition, OWNER has the right to enter putSUBnt to Clvll Code 5et1ion 1954. If the WOik performed requires that RESIDENT lemporan'ly vacate the 
unit, then RESIDENT shall vacate forlhls lemJJ0181Y period upon being served a 7-day no!k:e by OWNER. RESIDENT agrees lhatln such event RESIDENT v.ill be solely compensated 
by a conesponding reduction in Iha rent for !hose many days that RESIDENT was temporarily displaced. No olhar compensation shall be due to the RESIDENT. If Iha WOik to be 
performed requires Iha cooperation of the RESIDENT IO perform certain tasks, then RESIDENT shall perfonn those tasks upon receiving a 24-hour written notice. (EXAMPLE: 
rentoWllJ food Items from cabinets so that the unit may be sprayed for pasts.) Upon 24 hours notice, RESIDENT hereby agrees lo lend OWNER Iha keys lo lhe p,emlses for Iha 
purpose of having a duplicate made for OWNER'S use. 
21. ASSIGNMENT: RESIDENT agrees not to 1ransrar, assign or sublet Iha premises or any part lheraof and hereby appoints and authorizes lhe OWNER as his agent and/or by 
OWNER'S own authority to evict any person claiming possession by way of any alleged assignment or subletllng. 
22. PARTIAL INVALIDITY: Nothing oonlained in lhis Ag,eement shall be consllued as waiving any of RESIDENTS or OWNER'S rights under the law. If any part of this Agreement 
shall be In conftlct wllh the law, lhat part shall be void to the extent thal It is in conflict, but shall not Invalidate thls Agreement nor shall It affect the validity or enforeeabfflly of any other 
provision of this Ag19emenl. 
23. NO WAIVER: OWNER'S acceptance of rent with knov.fedge of any default by RESIDENT or waiver by OWNER of any breach of any term or oondttlon of this Agreement shall not 
conslllUte a waiver of subsequent breaches. Failure lo requfle compllanoe or to exercise any right shall not be construed as a waiver by OWNER of said term, condlUon, and/or right, 
and shaU not affect the valldlly or enforoeablllty of any other provision of this Agreement. 
24. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If any legal action or proceeding be brought by either party lo this agreemen~ the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for all reasonable attomeys' fees up lo 
but not more than $500 In addition lo other damages awanled, 
25. ABANDONMENT: California ClvD Code Section 1951.2 shall govem Abandonmanl If any rent has remained unpaid for 14 or more consecutive days and lhe OWNER has a 
reasonable belief of abandonment ol lhe premises, OWNER shall give 18 days written notice IO RESIDENT at any place Qnctudlng the rented premises) that OWNER has reason to 
believe RESIDENT may teC8lve said notice of OWNER'S Intention lo dedare the premises abandoned. RESIDENTS failure 10 respond lo said nollce as required by law shall allow 
OWNER to redalm the premises. 
26. The undersigned RESIDENTS are Jolnlly and severalty rasponslble and liable for aD obllgallons under this agreement and shall indemnify OWNER for lialxlily caused by lhe actions 
(omission or commission) of RESIDENTS, their gueslS and Invitees. 
27. Pursuant to Section 1785.28 of lhe Callfomla Civil Code, as required bv law, you are hereby nolifted that a negative credit report reftecling on your credit history may be 
submitted lo a credit reporllng agency, If you faD lo fuffiD the terms of your credit obligation. RESIDENT expressly authorizes OWNER/AGENT fmcludlng a OOllecllon agency) IO oblain 
Resldenfs consumer credit report, which OWNER/AGENT may use If attempting to collect past due rent payments, late fees, or other charges from Resident, both during lhe leml of 
the Agreement and thereafter. 
28. Lead Warning Statement Housing bull! before 1978 may contain lead-based paint. Lead from paint paint chips and dust pose health hazanls If not managed properly. Lead 
exposure ts especially hannful to vcung chlldreq and pregnant women. Before renting pre-1978 housing, OWNERS must dlsdose the presence or known lead-based paint haz.anls In 
lhe dwe!llng, RESIDENTS must also receive a federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning prevention. 

Q\!N.D/AGENT DISCLOSURE (Initial) 
~ OWNER'S lnlllals (on left) mean OWNER has no knowledge of lead-based paint and/or laa.iklwed hazards In or on Iha Premises and OWNER has no reports or 
records pertaining to lead•based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards In or on lhe Premises, and~ RENTER'S Initial (on left) Indicate that RENTER has 
received a eopy of a "Protect Your Family from Lead In Your Home", and that RENTER shall notify OWNER prompll,v In writing of any 
de1erloratlng and/or peeling paint. 

29. MOLD: The OWNER/AGENT has inspecled the unit prior IO lease and knows of no damp or wet bul!dlng matelials and knows of no mold contamination. Resident agrees to 
accept full responslbi6ty and maintain lhe premises In a manner that prevents the oc:cummce of an Infestation of mold In the premises. Resident also agrees to bnmadlately 
report to lhe OWNER/AGENT any evidence of water leaks, excessive moisture or lack of PfOper ventilation and evidence of mold that cannot be removed by deaning. 

~ 
AOAFonn No. 101-oAKLANI) (Reviled 7117). Copyrtglll 2010. Apa,lmenl OWneraAuodatiOllof Califomla, Inc.. www.llOllllll8,com 

• San Femando V1Jloy (81RI 9111•9200 • Los Angdn(Jlll 931-Bal l • Lone lkoc!I (56l) 597-2422 • Glldc:a Grow (714) 539-6000 • Sa~ Diego (619) 2JI0.7007 • N111111cm Colifinuia (5101 769,ljll 

000049



( 

31. NOTICES: All notices to RESIDENT shalt be served at RESIDENTS apartment / house whether or not RESIDENT 1$ piesant at the time of delivery and all nollces to OWNER I 
AUTHORIZED PERSON shall be served by filst class malling to: 

Penion Authorized To Manage Propa,ty: 
Name, __________ Address _____________________________ _ 
Phone Number _________ _ 

owner of property or a pe110n who Is authorized to act for and on behalf of the owner for the purpose of service of process and for the purpose of receiving and racelpllng 
for all nollcea and demands. 
Name,_..,_ ________ Address 
PhOnaNumber ------------------------------
Person or Entity Authorized to Receive Payment of Rent: 
Name. __________ Address _____________________________ _ 
Phone Number __ - ______ _ 
32. INVENTORY: The Apartment contains the following Items !or use by RESIDENT: ... s.._tn......,ve...__r:..,.e.,&{i...,ri,..Q..,p..,r.i:1 .... t.,.n..,r.__ __________ _ 

RESIDENT fur1her acknowledges that the subjed premises are fumlshed with the additional furnishings listed on the attached Inventory and lhat said attached Inventory is he(eby 
made part of !his ag,eement. 
33. Proposition 65 Notice: Wamlng: Some 81889 may contain chemicals known to Iha Slate of C81ifomla to cause cancer, birth defects or other reprodudlve harm. 
34. Notice is hereby given of the exiStenoe of the Resklentlal Rent Arbitration Board (RRAB) and Iha Rent Arbitration Program of the City of Oakland, the office of which Is located at 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 51' Floor, Oakland, CA, 94812, phone number (510) 238-3721. The Rent Albltration Program (Oakfand Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22) lease addendum is 
allachad to this leasa and acknowledged In number 35 below as a tease addendum notifying tenants of Iha Notice to Tenants regarding Oakland's Rent Adjustment Program). In lite 
event that Owner/Agent elects not to fmplement an annual rent adjustment Iha ONner/agent hereby advises Tenant that Owner/agent elects to bank any such rent adjustment to future 
year(s) pu1SUanl to lhe provisions of lite Oakland Rent Arbitration Ordinance. 
Note: Tenant and Landlord has adopted, and agree to complywllh Measure EE 'Just causa Evlclfon" Ortllnance for the City of Oakland, CA., which requiles landlords of specified 
residential properties. the right to evict a tenant only ror reasons specified In the measure, such as non-payment of rent, breach of !ease, damaging premises, drug or other illegal 
activity, disolderly conduct. rehabilitation of unit, landlord or relative occupancy, except In certain circumstances Where lhe tenant Is disabled, elderly or catastrophlcalty ill. Further, lhe 
ordinance provides for damages, penalties and attorneys' fees against landlords who violate lhis raw. Should Tenant violate any portion of the ordinance, Landfold may exercise hf&lher 
right lo evict tenant for damages, penalties and attorneys' fees. 

35. RESIDENT ackncwledges receipt of lhe following, which shaR be deemed a part of this Agreement (Please dleck) 

House Rules 
Laundry Rules 
Mailbox Keys 

Pel Agreement 
Pool Rules 
Apartment Keys 

i Garage Door Opener 
Notice lo Tenants: 0akland's Rent Adjustment Program 
Information About Bed Bugs Sheet 

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This AgraemenloonsUtutes the entire Agieement between OWNER and RESIDENT. No oral agreements have been entered Into, and all modifications or 
notices shall be In writing to be valid. The undersigned Residents are JolnUy and severally responsible for all obllgelions under this agreement and shall Indemnify Owner for liability 
caused by Iha actions (omission or commission) of residents, their guests and lnvfleea. Renter has relled on his own Judgment In entering Into this agreement 
37. NOTICE: Pwsuanl lo Section 290.46 of the Penal Code, information about specified registered sex offenders is made avallable to Iha publle via an Internet Web sHe maintained by 
Ille Department of Justice at www.meganslew.ca.gov. Depending on an offender's erlmlnal history, !his Information wlll lnclllde either the address at \\filch lite otrender resides or the 
community of residence and ZIP Code In which he or she resides. 
36. RECEIPT OF AGREEMENT: The undersigned RESIDENT hereby certlftas Iha! hefshe Is fluent In lhe English language and has read and oompletely understands this Agreement 
and hereby ecknov.iedges receipt of a copy of this 'Rental Agreement and/or Lease.•(_) RESIDENT'S Initials: 
OR Pursuant to California Civil Code 1632, which 19qulres translatlon of specified contracts or agreements that are negotiated In Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog 
or t<or.ean: ~ 1,. 
( Jb,q A~ Realdent'1 In Is on left hereby acknowledge that this agreement was translatedfijnd lnts1~ In their foreign language of: St]tU\ 1,tn 

\I ;l'OVMI -"'JU\ , os,/21.//11 
Signature of lntarpreter Date 

Marla Arflez.r,rhr [--Z'-1-l~ 
Resident ~ Dale 

2 <I t$ ~ ,e..-,,.. I/ /i-r V r~ $,, 
Ovmer/Agent Date Resklent Datil 

·JQVDlr1 I f¾j0 (OI R ~ i 'f ... J-t 
Ovmar/Agent Dale Resident Date 

NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO 1HE LEGAL VALIDITY OR THE ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN 1HIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DESIRE I.EGAL ADVICE, CONSULT 
YOUR ATTORNEY. 

~ 
AOA Fann No. 101-C)AIU.AND (Re- 7/17) • ~ 2010 • Apallmanl °"'1ef8 Associallon of California, Inc. 0 www.-usa.com 

• Sin F"""""'o Voll,:y(SIHI 91111-9:ZOO • Lo1Aoa•lc•(J23J937,8HI I • Loni: llclldl (5621597-2422 • Oan1m aro ... (714) Sl'I-MOO • San Diego (619)280-7007 • Northam California (SIO) 769-7$21 

000050



CITY OF OAKLAND ~ 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 ~ 
Department of Housing and Community Development TEL (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181 

TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP") that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. For more infonnation on 
which units are covered, contact the RAP office. 

• Starting on February I, 2017, an owner must petition the RAP for any rent increase that is more than the 
annual general rent increase ("CPI increase") or allowed "banked" rent increases. These include capital 
improvements and operating expense increases. For these types of rent increases, the owner may raise your 
rent only after a hearing officer has approved the increase. No annual rent increase may exceed I 0%. You 
have a right to contest the proposed rent increase by responding to the owner's petition. You do not have 
to file your own petition. 

• Contesting a Rent Increase: You can file a petition with the RAP to contest unlawful rent increases or 
decreased housing services. To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition ( 1) within ninety (90) days 
ofthe notice of rent increase if the owner also provided this Notice to Tenants with the notice of rent 
increase; or (2) within 120 days of the notice of rent increase if this Notice to Tenants was not given with 
the notice of rent increase. If the owner did not give this Notice to Tenants at the beginning of your 
tenancy, you must tile a petition within ninety (90) days offirst receiving this Notice to Tenants. 
Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP drop-in office at the Housing Assistance 
Center: 2SO Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6th Floor, Oakland and at: 
http;//www2.oaklandnet.com/Govemment/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustrnent. 

• If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 
If the increase is approved and you did not pay the increase, you will owe the amount of the increase 
retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more infonnation contact the RAP office. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the 
tenani portion of the fee. 

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance (•'TPO .. ) to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

• The owner .D. is .Ill is not pennitted to se~ the initial rent on this unit without limitations (such as 
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act). lfthe owner is not pennitted to set the initial rent without limitation, 
the rent in effect when the prior tenant vacated was ... l ... Z .. 9 ..... 1 __ 

• Smoking (cin:le one) IS or N permitted in Unit 1791 , the unit you intend to rent 
• Smoking (circle one) IS or permitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant's buildin 1st of units in which smoking is permitted.) 
• There (circle one) IS o SN a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ____ . 

1 received a copy of this notice on ··s-'2. 4-, ,- Mar, a Amert1i+a 
(Date) (Tenant's signature) 

lltiiliHf (11:YlllJ) mfflfrfflflJii~llffl:fi 't=a JtJl,:*o lfflfttl (510) 238-3721 ••1q*• 
La Notlflcacion del Derecho del lnqullino estil dlsponlble en espal'iol. SI desea una copla, flame al (S10) 238-3721. 

Revised 2/10/17 

000051



CIUDAD DE OAKLAND 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Departamento de Desarrollo Comunitario y Vivienda 
Programa de Ajustes en el Alquller TEL. (510) 238-3721 

FAX(510)238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

AVISO A LOS INQUILINOS DEL PROGRAMA DE AJUSTES EN EL ALQUILER 
RESIDENCIAL 

• Oakland tiene un Programa de Ajustes en el Alquiler (Rent Adjustment Program, RAP) que limita los 
aumentos en el alquiler (Capitulo 8.22 del Codigo Municipal de Oakland) y cubre a la mayoria de las 
unidades residenciales en alquiler construidas antes de 1983. Para mas informacion sobre las viviendas 
cubiertas, contacte a la oflcina del RAP. 

• A partirdel 1° de febrerode 2017, un propietario debe presentar una peticion ante el RAP para todo 
aumento en el alquiler que sea mayor que el aumento general anua) en el alquiler ("aumento CPI") o 
permitido que los aumentos en el alquiler sean "invertidos". Estos incluyen mejoras de capital y aumentos 
en los gastos operativos. En lo que respecta a este tipo de aumentos, el propietario puede aumentar su 
alquiler solo despues de que un funcionario de audiencia haya autoriz.ado el incremento. Ningun aumento 
anual en el alquiler podra exceder el 10%. Usted tiene derecho a disputar el aumento en el alquiler 
propuesto respondiendo a la peticion del propietario. No es indispensable que usted presente su propia 
peticion. 

• Como disputar un aumento en el alquiler: Puede presentar una peticion ante el RAP para disputar 
aumentos ilfcitos en el alquiler o la disminucion de servicios en la vivienda. Para disputar el aumento en el 
alquiler, debe prcscntar una peticion ( 1) en un plazo de (90) dias a partir de la fccha del aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si el propietario tarnbien proporcion6 este Aviso a los lnquilinos con la notificaci6n del 
aumento en el alquiler; o (2) en un pJazo de 120 dfas a partir de la fecha de recepci6n del aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si este A viso a los lnquilinos no fue entregado con la notificacion de aumento en el alquiler. 
Si el propietario no entreg6 este Aviso a los lnquilinos al inicio del periodo de arrendamiento, debera 
presentar una solicitud en un plazo de (90) dias a partir de la f echa en que recibio por primera vez este 
Aviso a los lnquilinos. Encontrara informacion y formularios disponibles en la oticina del RAP en el 
Centro de Asistencia de Vivienda: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6° Piso, Oakland; tambien puede visitar: 
http:l/www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment. 

• Si usted disputa un aumento en el alquiler, debe pagar su alquiler con el aumento disputado hasta que 
presente la peticion. Si el aumento es aprobado y usted no lo pago, adcudara la suma del incremento 
retroactivo a la fecha de inicio de vigencia del aumento. 

• Oakland tiene controles de desalojo (Ordenanm de Desalojo por Causa Justa y Reglamentos, O.M.C. 8.22) 
que limitan los motivos de desalojo en las viviendas cubiertas. Para mas informacion contacte la oflcina 
RAP. 

• Oakland les cobra a los propietarios una Tarifa de Servicio del Programa de Alquiler (Rent Program 
Service Fee) por vivienda al afto. Si la tarifa se paga a tiempo, el propietario tiene derecho a cobrar la mitad 
del costo de esta tarifa al inquilino. No se requiere que los inquilinos de viviendas subsidiadas paguen la 
porcion del inquilino de la tarifa. 

• Oakland posee una Ordenanm de Proteccion al lnquilino (Tenant Protection Ordinance, TPO) para impedir 
el comportarniento abusivo por parte de propietarios y para ofrecerles a los inquilinos recursos legales en 
instancias donde han sido vfctimas de comportamiento abusivo por parte de propietarios (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (Ordenanz.a del Concejo Municipal No. 1326S C.M.S.) 

• El propietario Il tiene JlL no tiene permitido establecer el alquiler inicial de esta vivienda sin 
limitaciones (por ejemplo, de conformidad con la Ley Costa-Hawkins). Si el propietario no tiene pennitido 
establecer el alquiler inicial sin limitaciones, el alquiler vigente cuando el inquilino anterior desalojo la 
vivienda era de 2016 

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap201702b SP 

000052



INFORMACION A LOS INQUILINOS S9BRE LAS POLfTICAS PARA FUMADORES 

• Fumar (encierre en un circulo) EST A €?PTA permitido en la Vivienda..__ __ -'. la vivienda que usted 
pretende alquilar. 

• Fumar (encierre en un cfrculo) EST A ~TA permitido en otras viviendas de su edificio. (Si hay disponibilidnd 
de ambas vivienda.~ fumador y no futri , en el ediffcio del inquilino, adjunte una lista de las viviendas en donde se 
permite fumar.) ~ 

• (Enclerre en wt c{rculo), HAY o~ Y un area designada al aire fibre para fumar. Se encuentra en ___ _ 

Recibf una copia de este aviso el Z-24 -\:::i "1 <\ f \ G\ ~~, [fa 
(Fecha) (Fiona del in~o) 

JltfS}JilW (A1l■) ifjffl••'-'•~·llfffjcp Jtllli*o 011 (510) 238-3721 IIUf!Uil*o 
La Notlficacl6n del Derecho del lnquillno esta dlsponlble en espaftol. Si desea una copla, llame al (510) 238-3721. 

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCOrap20l702b SP 

000053



( ' 

EXHIBIT B 

MICHAEL MEHRETEAB 
ELECTRIC 

RECEIPIENT: 

May Fong 

LOCATION: 

179128th Ave 

Oakland 

('\ 

RECEIVED 05/10/18 

SENDER: 

Michael Mehreteab Electric 

6119 Market St, Oakland, Ca 94608 

Phone: (510) 978- 2489 

Replace burnt outlet in living room due to overloaded circuit. Checked circuit breaker for damages. $200 

Received payment 5/9/18 

Job#29 

000054



~ 
SPECIAL SERVICES CUSTOMER INVOICE EXHBIT c 
Notice of Cancellation (see Exhibit A) may be sent to this address: 
HOME DEPOT U.S.A., INC. Phone: (650) 755-9600 
Store 0639 COLMA II Salesperson: kxh6ggf 

Page 1 of 2 No. H0639-111901 
-------------------------------------------------------
' 

2 COLMA BLVD Reviewer: sv995 
COLMA, CA 94014 REPRINT 

Name Phone 1 

MAYFONG MAYFONG (415) 812-9908 
Address 358 CERRO CT Phone2 

' 
Company Name 

-----------------------------! 
!201a-os-oe 14:oo ----------------------------1 

City DALY CITY Job De,cnption 1791 ' 
----------------------------l ~------------------------------------------------------: 

State CA Zip 94015 County SAN MATEO 

• CUSTOMER PICKUP #1 MERCHANDISE AND SERVICE SUMMARY 
REF# W02 SKU # 0000-615-664 Customer Plcku I Will Call 

S.O. MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: S/0 MILGARD MFG INC REF# S01 
REF# SKU • QTY UM DESCRIPTiON 
S0101 0000-301-390 0.00 EA NA/ SINGLE SLIDER 29.5 X 47.5 VINYL XO/ SINGLE SLIDER29.5 X 

47.5VINYLXO #1 
SCHEDULED PICKUP DATE: Will be scheduled u on arrival of all S/O Merchandise 

CUSTOMER PICKUP #2 

S.O. MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: 
REF# SKU. QTY UM 
S0303 0000-301-390 1.00 EA NA/ SINGLE SLI 

47.5VINY. 

~~ 
WILL-CALL MERC~~~UP 
Will-Call Items ~n the store for 7 days only. 

Chac:k your current order atatua onllne at 
www.homedepot.com/orderstatua 

a9e 1 ot 2 No. H0639-111901 

47.5 VINYL XO/ SINGLE SLIDER29.5 X 

FOR WILL CALL 
MERCHANDISE PICK-UP 

PROCEED TO WILL CALL OR 
SERVICE DESK AREA 

(Pro Customers, Proceed To The Pro Desk) 
n 1ca es I em mar own 

Customer Copy 

$0.oo• 

$0.00 

000055



SPECIAL SERVICES CUSTOMER INVOICE - Continued Name: MAY FONG 

TOTAL CHARGES OF ALL MERCHANDISE & SERVICES 
Policy Id (Pl): 
A: 90 DAYS DEFAULT POLICY; 

'The Home Depot reserves the right to limit I deny returns. Please see the return policy sign in stores for details.' 

END OF ORDER No,' H0639-111901 

Page 2 of 2 No. H0639-111901 Customer Copy 

Page 2 of 2 No. H0639-111901 

ORDER TOTAL 

SALES TAX 
TOTAL 

BALANCE DUE 

$220.57 

$19.30 
$239.87 

$0.00 

000056



('' 
AT&T Yahoo Mall • Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue ·' 

EXHIBIT C 

Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue 

From: May Fong (mayfong@pacbell.net) 

To: HBarron@oaklandnet.com 

Date: Friday, June 15, 2018, 9:55 AM PDT 

Hi Hugo! 

The inspection passed on Wednesday. 

Please confirm the case has been abated. 

Thx 

May 
Sent from my iPhone 

On Jun 6, 2018, at 8:33 AM, Barron, Hugo <HBarron@oaklandnet.com> wrote: 

,out:blank 

Not, you need to call 238-3444 and schedule a final inspection once the permit is final 
please call me and let me know. Hugo. 

From: May Fong [rnailto:rnaY.fong@gacbell.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 05, 2018 12:47 PM 
To: Barron, Hugo <HBarron@oaklandnet.com> 
Subject: Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue 

Hi Hugo! 

I wanted to find if you are able to pass my inspection for my windows since you were at the unit 
yesterday? 

Thanks. 

May 

From: May Fong <maY.fong~acbell.net> 

10/7/19, 8:01 PM 

Page 1 of 2 

000057



AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue \ 10/7/19, s:01 PM 

about:blank 

To: "hbarron@oaklandnet.com" <hbarron@oaklandnet.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 2, 2018 2:49 PM 
Subject: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue 

<image001.jpg> 

To Inspector Barron, 

I received the above reference complaint. Please find attached the notice I sent to the tenants 
regarding a violation you have included. I was made aware of the dumping on April 18th by a tenant, 
not by Luis Ayala. I verified the issues and contacted Luis regarding the violations he has caused and 
sent over the notices. Mr. Ayala has never complained to me regarding electrical or cabinet issues. I 
was made aware of the window and my handyman will repair the drawers in the kitchen and window 
well as today. My electrician will take care of the electrical on Friday and I already had made 
arrangements for bulky item pickup next Wednesday. I warned the tenant with the red van not to park 
at the lawn and I installed yellow parking bumpers to prevent cars from entering the lawn as per 
picture. I also installed security cameras in hopes to prevent the dumping and illegal car parking. 

I will send you the confirmation that everything is taken care of and you can reinspect by May 14th. 

Thanks. 

May 

Page 2 of 2 

000058



( 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 EXH I 8 IT D 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
Owner rents to Tenants and Tenants rent from Owner the Premises subject to the following terms and conditions. 

owner 

Agent for 
Rent & Notices 

Tenants 

Premises 

Rent 

Parking 

Storage 

Rent Payments 

Security Deposit 

Late Charge 

Returned 
Payment 

Term of Tenancy 

Pets 

Owner's Utilities 

Tenant's Utilities 

Appliances & 
Fixtures 

Use and 
Occupancy 

Terms of Tenancy 

Jo5e..._r\, 5. ml'l-V--~\l.-\c_. 3 
f" ~" ~ ~,p 12/29/2014 

(DOB) 

~ (Name)---"'!5'-------'-l ']_,__-_9_.__".J"'""··· ___ (DOB) 

r=:-t:.><' \:'\a_\,!\.. \ ·e_O a__ ye., (Name) 10 - ] S •• q 1 (DOB) 

C.e,...So,J,,,.-~e_,Ga..... Y- 3 (Name) \.c, - .7. cl - 01j (DOB) 

______________________ (Name) _________ (DOB) 

\Lf9l 2._3l"v\ 1~0{2_,v\l(:£', Oa,\: ~O,,V\ r·\ cg_ q4/4{}((Address) 

..- DO 1 . -st 
$ 8 9 b e - per month payable in advance on the I day of each month. 

Patl<ing space assigned _ye-t-1~·-h ___ . Monthly charge$ NA 
Storage space assigned -'f+~.,.· ..,.C:.-"-7 __ • Monthly charge$ N J\ 
D Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) 

~ersonal check 

Grtashier's check or money order ,.., 

&Cash 

s 80o:.s._ 

, payable with monthly rent. 

, payable with monthly rent. 

r-!-1 
if Owner does not receive rent in full within D days after the due date. 

.2.1:c._oc:., $_~:i""'----.. ___ in the event any check or other fonn of payment by Tenant is returned for lack of sufficient 
funds, a "stop payment" or any other reason. 

The Tenancy begins ori De (,, I ~ <H ~and ends on •M0:..1130iJ.Ol-Z.and thereafter continues on a month-to-
month basis until terminated. , 

N r-... o"°.\ -
Approved pets ----~=u,,__---'1~~=--TS'----------------------

1. '\ \ s,1 no__\r~\oqp ,;.i _ 
Owner pays for __ 'J~,./_.O~.\..:=T~f-~~~~~---~--=a---'---~------s~--------------

Tenant pays for _ __:G=· -'--""''=-"s,c_· -=sc_-"1;_._\_-es__.-==-·_.__'\_~---'-t-"L=--.----r-------------

~.:; 1 o· L) ' ri () n , 
owner provides --=·-:::._,_t'~-~=--+--'-1"\..i.;:<-:.....:=-'--'~-"'"'-'---=="-'-""'-''-------------

General Terms and Conditions of Tenancy 
'· The Premises are to be occupied and used only as a private residence by Tenants, without Owner's prior written 

consent, subject to applicable state and local laws. Occupancy by additional persons for more than two weeks in 
any six-month period is prohibited without owner's written consent. Violation of the provisions of this Section is a 
substantial violation of a material term of the tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

I have reviewed this page_ N ._hl _____ (Tenant initials) 

Page 1 of4 

000059



( 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

( 

Rent 

Late Payments 

Returneq 
Payments 

. Individual 
Liability 

Failure to Pay 

Security Deposit 

Parking 

Storage 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
Rent will be paid in full to Owner or Owner's agent without offsets, deductions or credits Tenant bears the risk of 
loss or delay of any mailed payment, Owner reserves the right to refuse any partial payment. Payment will be 
applied to any outstanding obligation of Tenant to Owner, notwithstanding any other designation by Tenant. 

Tenant will pay Owner a late charge if rent is not received on time. By accepting a late charge, Owner does not 
waive the right lo insist on payment of the rent in full on the due date. Tenant and Owner agree that the late 
charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of costs incurred by Owner in thls circumstance. Tenant and 
Owner agree that paying rent more than five days late on three separate occasions in any 12-munth period is a 
substantial violation of a material term of the tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

Tenant will pay Owner a returned payment fee in the event any check or other form or payment offered by Tenant 
to Owner in payment of rent or any other amount due under this Agreement is returned for lack of sufficient funds, 
a ''slop payment" or any other reason. Tenant and Owner agree that this amount represents a fair and reasonable 
ilstin,afe of costs Incurred by Owner in this circumstance. A returned check may constitute late payment ofrent. In 
the event of a returned check, Owner reserves the right to demand payment by money order or certified Funds for 
the current and all future payments. 

Each person Who signs this /1,greement, whether or not they remain in possession of the Premises, will be jointly 
and severally liable for the fulf performance of this Agreement, including the payment of all rent due and the 
payment of costs to remedy damages to the Premises caused by Tenant, guests or invitees. 

As required by law, Tenant is notified that a negative credit report reRecting on your credit record may be 
submitted lo a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations, such as your 
obligations under the tem1s of lh\s Agreement. 

Tenant may not apply the security deposli to the las! month's rent or to any other.sum due under this Agreement. 
Within two weeks after Tenant has vacated the Premises, Owner Will furnish Tenant with an itemized written 
statement of the reasons for, and the dollar amount of, any of the security deposit retained by the Owner, along 
with a check for any deposit balance. Under Section 1950.5 of the California Civil Code, Owner may withhold only 
that portion of Tenant's security deposit necessary to: (1) remedy any default by Tenant In the payment of rent; (2) 
repair dari1ages to the Premises exclusive of ordinary wear and tear; and (3) clean the • • ary. 

any pa 1out the prior written consent 
Owner. The named Tenants are the only "Original' Tenants. No person other than the named Tenants will be 
permitted to regularly or continuously use or occupy the Premises unless all of the following conditions are met: 1) 
Tenant notifies Owner in writing; signed by every Tenant, stating a request lo have a new person occupy the 
Premises; 2) said prospective occupant completes and gives ro Owner Owner's rental application; 3) Owner 
approves of the prospective occupant's creditworthiness ahd references from prior landlords; and 4) the new 
occupant signs Owner's Change of Tenant Agreement for such occupancy before occupying the Premises, which 
agrnement will include a provision that the new occupant will abide by and perform alt the obligations of this 
Agreement. The rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last Original Tenant(s) moves from 
the Premises. 

In the event that Owner consents to any sttb-tenancy, it is hereby agreed !hat !he Original Ten1:1nfmay not charge 
more to the sub-tenant(s) than that proportional share of the rent which is being charged by and paid to Owner. 

No action or inaction or acceptance of rent or knowledge on the part of Owner will be deemed to be a waiver of 
the provision of this Sec;tion on the part of Owner and will not be deemed an approval of any person as a 'sub

ant" for any purpose. 

repair pe orme 111 . e pace, or any at er use a t e property wit out t e pr,orconsen o wner, s pro 11blte . 

Owner win not be liable for any damage done by bursting, leaking or running of any gas or water or any plumbing 
fixture in, above, upon or about the parking lot; for damage by water, snow or ice being upon or coming off the lot; 
damage arising from acts or neglect of other occupants of the lat or other molar vehicles; or theft or vandalism by 
others. It is encouraged that Tenants purchase insurance to cover the above-mentioned instances. 

Tenants release Owner from any liability for loss or damage lo Tenants' property while stored on the Premises. 
Any property stored in designated storage areas shall be removed on or before the date of termination of tenancy. 
In the event such property is not so removed, Owner may dispose of same without any liability to Tenants. 
Tenants waive any rights as defined in Civil Code Section 1980 et. seq. Owner reserves the right to inspect all 
such storage areas and require necessary removal or clean up as deemed necessary for the health and safety of 
the Premises, the building and/or its occupants. No storage of any kind will be permitted on fire escapes or in 
other common areas. 

I have reviewed this page_ \--J ~ _____ (Tenant initials) 

Page 2 of 4 

·------------------------- 000060



( 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

( 

Condition of 
Premises 

Appliances and 
Fixtures 

.Pets 

Trash 

Owner's Access 

Extended 
Absences 

Quite Enjoyment 

Repairs and 
Alterations 

Financial 
Responsibility 

Water~filled 
Furniture 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
Tenant agrees to: (1) keep the Premises clean and sanitary and in good repair and, upon termination of the 
tenancy, to return lhe Premises to .Owner in a condition identical to that which existed when Tenant took 
occupancy, except for ordinary wear and tear; (2) Immediately notify Owner of any defects or dangerous 
conditions in and about the Premises of whicl1 they become aware; and (3) reimburse Owner, on demand by 
Owner. for the cost of any repairs to the Premises damaged by Tenant or Tenant's guests or invitees through 
misuse or neglect. 

Tenant acknowledges that all appliances, window and floor coverings, attached light fixtures, and other altached 
or semi-attached Items are the property of Owner. 

Only Approved Pets are allowed on or about the Premises. Owner may require a photo of all Approved Pets. No 
other animals are allowed even temporarily or with a guest, without Owner's prior wrilten consent, excepting 
guide, service or signal dogs pursuant to California Civil Code Sections 54.1 and 54.2. Stray animals shall not be 
kept or fed in or around the Building. Strays can be dangerous and Owner must be notified immediately of any 
strays in or around the Building. 

Approved Pets are not permitted outside Tenant's unit unless on a leash. Tenant agrees to immediately clean up 
a11y defecation in a sanitary manor. If Tenant fails to prevent any Infestations of fleas, ticks, or other creatures, 
Tenant may be charged for cleaning, de-fleaing, deodorizing or shampooing any portion of the building or 
Premises. Tenant shall not permit the pets to cause any discomfort, annoyance, nuisance, or in any other way 
inconvenience any other Tenant. Any ''mess" created by the Pet(s) shall immediately be cleaned up by Tenant. 
Tenant shall be liable to Owner, and shall defend Owner, hold Owner harmless, and indemnify Owner for all 
injuries, damages, expenses, losses or obligations of any kind incurred by or in connection with the pet. 

Tenant agrees to dispose of their ordinary household trash by placing it in the Waste Management containers for 
periodic collection. Tenant agrees to dispose of extraordinary trash, such as datnaged furniture, broken 
appliances and the like. by Immediately hauling it to the dump themselves or by paying someone else lo remove 
it. fn the event that Tenant's trash is left outside the Premises, Owner will arrange to have ii removed at Tenant's 
expense. 

California law allows Owner to enter the Premises for certain purposes during normal business hours. Owner will 
provide written notice to Tenant prior to entering the Premises whenever required by state law (Civil Code Section 
1954). 

Tenant agrees to notify Owner in the event that Tenant will be away from the Premises for 14 consecutive days or 
more. During each absence, Owner may enter the Premises at times reasonably necessary to maintain the 
property and inspect for damage and needed repairs. 

Tenant will be entitled to quiet enjoyment of the Premises. Tenant and Tenant's guests or invitees will not use the 
Premises or adjacent areas in such a way as to: ('I) violate any raw or ordinance, including raws prohibiting the 
use. possession or sale of illegal drugs; (2) commit waste or nuisance; or (3) annoy, disturb, inconvenience or 
interfere with the quiet erijoyment and peace and quiet of any other tenant or nearby resident. 

Tenant will not. without Owner's prior written consent, alter, re-key or install any locks to the Premises or install or 
alter any burglar alarm system. Tenant will provide Owner with a key or keys capable of unlocking all such re
keyed or new locks as well as instructions on how to disarm any altered or new burglar alarm system. 

Except as provided by law or as authorized by the prior written consent of Owner, Tenant will not make or allow to 
be made any installation or modification of cable or telephone wiring, decorations (such as painting and 
wallpapering), alterations, or repairs {inclusively, ''Changes") to the Premises. Tenant agrees lo pay all costs of 
correcling any unauthorized Changes. 

Tenant agrees to accept financial responsibility for any loss or damage lo personal property belonging to Tenant 
and Tenant's guests and invitees caused by theft, fire or any other cause. Owner assumes no liability for any such 
loss. Owner recommends that Tenant obtain a renter's insurance policy from a recognized insurance firm to cover 
Tenant's liabflity, personal property damage and damage to the Premises. 

No waterbed or other item of water-filled furniture will be kept on the Premises. 

Smoke Detectors The Premises are equipped with functioning smoke detection devices. Tenant will be responsible for testing tile 
devices weekly and imrnediatel}' reporting any problems, maintenance or need for repairs to Owner. Tenant will 
not remove their batteries or otherwise disable them. 

Termination The tenancy may be terminated by Tenant by serving a 30-day wrillen notice of termination upon Owner, and by 
Owner by serving a 30-day written notice or lerrnination upon Tenant if Tenant has been in possession of the 
Premises for less than one year, or by serving a 60-day written notice of termination upon Tenant if Tenant has 
been in possession of the Premises for one year or longer. Any termination notice is subject to applicable local 
rent control ordinances and regulations. If !he Premises are damaged by fire, fiood, earthquake or any other 
cause so as to render them uninhabitable and therefore destroyed, the tenancy is terminated. 

I have reviewed this page _ __tL ~ ____ (Tenant initials) 

Page J of4 

000061



\ ( 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Attorney Fees 

Megan's Law 

Notices 

Validity of Each 
Part 

Captions and 
Headings 

Application 

Attachments 

Entire 
Agreement 

Tenant 

Tenant 

Rental Agreement (Month--to-Month) 

In any action or legal proceeding to enforce any part of this Agreement, each party will be responsible for their 
own attorneys' fees and court costs. subject to subject to local reril control ordinances and regulations that may 
apply. 

Pursuant to Section 290.46 of the California Penal Code, information about specified registered sex offenders is 
made available to the public via an internet web site maintained by the Department of Justice at 
WW'N.meganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on an offender's criminal histoiy, this information will include either the 
address at which the offender resides or the community of residence and the ZIP code in which he or she resides. 

Any required notices may be delivered to Tenant at the Premises and to Owner or Agent for Rent and Notices. 

If any portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, its invalidity will not affect lhe validity or enforceability of any 
other provision of this Agreement. 

The captions and headings in this Agreement are included to improve readability and are not part of the terms or 
provisions of this Agreement. 

Any rental application or related document submitted by Tenant is incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 
Any misrepresentations contained therein will be considered a substantial violation of a material term of the 
tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

The following attachments are incorporated as part of this Agreement: 
Disclosure of Information on Lead~Based Paint and Lead-Based Paint Hazards 

Move-In-Move-Out Checklist 
Oakland Notice to Tenants 

EPA booklet entitled "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" 
This document and Attachments identified above constitute the entire Agreement between the parties, and no 
promises or representations, other than those contained here and those implied by law, have been made by 
Owner or Tenant. Any modifications to this Agreement must be in writing signed by Owner and Tenant except that 
Owner may change th~ terms of the tenancy and this Agreement pursuant to Civil Code Section 827. 

Date Tenant Date 

Date --- Tenant Date 

Receipt 

By signing above, Owner acknowledges having received, and Tenant acknowledges payment of, the following: 

Security Deposit: $ ____ _ 

Rent: $ ______ for the period _____ to ____ _ 

Other: $ ______ for ______________ _ 

Total received: $ payment method _________ _ 

Form provided by the East Bay Rental I-lousing Association"' 
www.ebrha.com • 

Form Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month)© (06/11} 

Page4 of 4 

000062



( \ 

EXHIBIT E 

NOTICE TO TENANTS AT 28™ AVENUE 

Dear Tenants, 

I am writing in regards to the rules and maintenance of the building for 1783-28th 

Avenue. Thank you for those who have been doing their share in maintaining the 
cleanliness of the building and property including the carport, yard and garbage 
areas. Unfortunately, there seems to be some big problems we have been having 
with the garbage and . some tenants have been throwing diapers down their 
windows to the back and sides of the building; I hope all tenants are aware that 
garbage that is thrown on the property and not put in the proper containers will 
cause huge rodent problems. According to the lease, each tenant has a 
responsibility to maintain the property. As a courtesy to all the other tenants, 
please do your share in keeping the property in good condition. 

I want to clarify the rule that there is only 1 carport space per unit. If you have more 
than l car, you must not park it in any of the carport space or yard. Your car must 
be parked outside the gated area. 

Since there seems to be some problems with the moving of the garbage container, I 
will be looking into having individual garbage cans where each tenant would be 
responsible for moving out their garbage container outside on garbage day. We 
have recycle bins. Please be sure to use these for recycling plastic, glass and paper. 
This will help the environment. 

I will be slowly making repairs and improvement to the building to make the 
property more beautiful. Please do your part in helping to improve our building. 

I will be meeting with each tenant to sign leases. I do want to remind all tenants to 
write down their unit address on the deposit slips when making your rent deposits 
so I can credit you correctly. Please find attached the RAP sheet as required by the 
Oakland rent board in regards to your tenant rights. 

Thank you for your attention and cooperation. 

Sincerely, 

May Fong 
415-812-9908 

000063



( 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Department of Housing and Community Development 
Rent Adjustment Program 

( 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP") that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized 
units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units. For more information 
on which units are covered, contact the RAP office. 

• You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual 
general rent increase ("CPI increase"). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits, 
for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases ("banking"). 
No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the 
reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing. If the owner decreases 
your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial 
problems with the condition of a unit. 

• To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is 
later: (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice 
To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, 6th Fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment 

• If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 
After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have 
to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent 
you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will 
owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent. 
Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenant portion of the fee. 

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance ("TPO") to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

TENANTS' SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 

• Smoking (circle one) IS o!!lermitted in Unit 1791 , the unit you intend to rent. 
• Smoking (circle one) IS o ermitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant's building, t of units in which smoking is permitted.) • 
• There ( circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ___ _ 

I received a copy of this notice on _______ _ 
(Date) (Tenant's signature) 

Jlt1$3'.1111it (:!lJi'ifiti} mffl~ffUIJ l.m~ tl~fHf i:p Xit&*o !iill:ffl (510) 238-3721 *IfxMIJ:;fs:o 
La Notificaci6n del Derecho del lnquilino esta disponible en espafiol. Si desea una copia, !lame al (510} 238-3721. 
Ba0n Tho§ng Bauo quyean lo'ii cu0a ngoo¢i thue§ trong Oakland na{l!y cuong cou baeng tieang Vieat. Nea cou moat 
ba0n sao, xin go'ii (510) 238-3721. 

Revised 11/18/14 

000064



( ' (. •, 
THIRTY-DAY NOTICE OF CHANGE OF MONTHLY RENT 

TO: --------'-N=a=z=a ... na=-a..N,_e ___ v=a'""'re=z.,_, _,_T""'"e'""'re=s=a'""V""'a=z""q..,,u=e""s,...,F'""'e""'r'""'n""'a'""nd""'o:0-.:.:N=e"'-va=r:..:ec:z-=a=n=d-'C""'e""'s=a"-r-'-N=e .... v=ar'""e=z.,_1 =et=-a='-------
Att Residents (tenants and subtenants) in possession (full name) and all others in possession 

of the premises located at: 

_________ __.1_._7=-91..._-=2=8t...,h_,_A..,_,v..,.e,.,.nu...,e..__ _________ , Unit# (if applicable). ___ _ 
(Street Address) 

Oakland , CA --=94..,..6..,.0~1 __ 
(City) (Zip) 

You are hereby notified, in accordance with California Law, that 30 days after service upon you of this Notice, or 

8/1/16 , whichever is later, your monthly rent which is payable in advance on or before the 
(Date) 

___ 1_s-t __ day of each month, will be the sum of$ 9-9-5 _____ , instead of $..,.,9 ..... 4-5 ____ _, the current monthly 
rent. 

Except as herein provided, all other terms of your tenancy shall remain in full force and effect. 

If you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations, a negative credit report may be submitted to a credit reporting agency. 

6/30/16 
Date 

Proof of Service 
I, the undersigned, being at least 18 years of age, declare that I served this notice, of which this is a true copy, on the 30th 
day of June (month), 2016 (year}, on the above-mentioned resident(s) in possession, in the manner indicated below. (Select 
one) 

RI BY MAILING by first class mail on said date a copy to each resident by depositing said copies in the United States Mail, in a sealed 
envelope, with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the above-named resident(s} at their place of residence 

Place of Mailing: _______ _,S..,a.,..n.,_,_F .... ra.._n.,.c.,.js..,.c.,.o ______ _ Date of Mailing: ____ 6..,/..,.3...,0/..._.1..,.6 ___ _ 

□ BY DELIVERING a copy of the Notice to the following resident(s) PERSONALLY: ____________ _ 
□ BY LEAVING a copy for each of the above-named resident(s) with a person of suitable age and discretion at the residence or usual 

place of business of the resident(s}, said resident(s) being absent thereof; 
AND MAILING by first class mail on said date a copy to each resident by depositing said copies in the United States 
Mail, in a sealed envelope, with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the above-named resident(s) at their place of 
residence. 

□ BY POSTING a copy for each of the above-named resident(s} in a conspicuous place on the property therein described, 
there being no person of suitable age or discretion to be found at any known place of residence or business of said 
resident(s); 
AND MAILING by first class mail on the same day as posted, a copy to each resident by depositing said copies in the 
United States Mail, in a sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the resident(s) at the place where the 
property is situated. 

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing is true and correct and if called 
as a witness to testify thereto, I could do so competently. 

Executed this ...3Qtb_ day of _____ J,...u ... n .... e...__ (month), ..2.016... (year), in ____ S=a=n'-'-'-F"""ra=n=c=is""co=----(city), __.c.a_ (state). 

May Fong 
lame of Dec/arant (Print) (Signature of Dec/arant) 

c~ ·.,·· ,... 
C'atllolol• 

AP~<'l,;,~\it ,. ; 

AHOCiation 

California Apartment Association Approved Form 
www.caanet.org 
Form 5.1-SV- Revised 12114 - ©2014 - All Rights Reserved 
Page 1 of1 

Unauthorized Reproduction 
of Blank Forms is Illegal. 

Printed Using formsRus.com On-Line Forms Software 12114 

G:t 
000065



( 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Department of Housing and Community Development 
Rent Adjustment Program 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

TEL (51 O} 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238~6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP") that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized 
units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units. For more information 
on which units are covered, contact the RAP office. 

• You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual 
general rent increase ("CPI increase''). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits, 
for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases ("banking"). 
No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the 
reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing. If the owner decreases 
your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial 
problems with the condition of a unit. 

• To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is 
later: (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice 
To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, 6th Fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www2.oaklandnetcom/Govemment/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment 

• If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 
After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have 
to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent 
you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will 
owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent. 
Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenantportion of the fee. 

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance ("TPO") to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

TENANTS' SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 

■ Smoking ( circle one) IS o:lflii!~[ermitted in Unit ____ ~ the unit you intend to rent. 
■ Smoking (circle one) IS or ermitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant's buildin a 1st ofunits in which smoking is permitted.) 
■ There (circle one) IS or SNOT designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ___ _ 

I received a copy of this notice on _______ _ 
(Date) (Tenant's signature) 

Jttffl'M* (.YlifM) ilifff~ffUIJiiill.~!1~"PX!t&:;$;o ilUUI (510) 238-3721 ~Jfxill*o 
La Notificaci6n del Derecho del lnqulllno esta disponible en espaiiol. Si desea una copia, !lame al (510) 238-3721. 
Ba0n ThoAng Bauo quyean leiii cu0a ngo6(1)i thuea trong Oakland na(l)y cuong cou baeng tieang Vieat. F.lefl cou moat 
ba0n sao, xin goli (510) 238-3721. 

Revised 11/18/14 

000066



( 

EXHIBIT F 

TEXTS FROM LUIS 8/17/17 ESTABLISHED ILLEGALLY STAYING AT UNIT 

3:46 .. ,..,,,. 

< 0 
Luisi 

Hey this luis I just had a • 
• question if is possible if 
. you can change the 
• apartment name under 
our name because my 
social worker is asking 
. for the papers I waj just 
• trying to see if you can 
do us that favor 

Ok pl0.i•,c• ,,l,nd n:;, 11\e 

l!drne:::. ur -( .. 1l' 1 , 1one d!1 

leas,0 

Can you ,;end the name 

I!'» Q) 0 

< 

Aug 19, 2017, fl -i'.l M.~ 

Maria Amezquita Arceo • 

Luis Cervantes 

• Jovan! Ayala Amezquita 

Unda Ayala Amezquita 

Luis David Ayaia 
Amezquita· •• 

Ruby Ayala Amezquita 

J.essica Ayala • 
• Amezquita· . . 

7 oeopie a1e living 
1here ·, 

m e 1 o 

< 
,11<0JP1Jti 

Aug 10, 2017, G ,1? AM 

I u,•, I'm ino~mg at Ilic 
old lea;:,: ,lild I don't see 
dll',' of lhf:~ nfff(lE!S on tht~ 

!ea:.:,e ! thOthJl1t './OU 

wnre !tl,o F<:,n of Ma./:Jfld 

NFV/l/1',' 

Ho·t.1 ;n-ri •,'OU rr:latcd lo 
,wzana ·) 

H, Lu,s' p,,, my 

COr1Vt'::\ScltlOn 1,•nU1 \'OU 

and Hnncv vou are 
1e•.::i1dm9 (n the unit 
illeg;illy as N&1( '{ 
cannot allow oc sublet 

< 

mo,. o. me) o 
•oeeCDet.: • o• ~JDt,t; ••.• :•¢· .,. :: .• 0 •. ~I •. : •• '{. 

< 0 
Luis, 

3:47 

At this 1,me 1ticcc·s 7 
pc, 1jpie l1\1)n{I in t ► w unit 
nno n1,at t;; t~11tbrH:3eqng 

li)e- live;, ol \•OU .Jl\(j 

tt"iOS-2 rr:::-:~·(1'Pq ill ihe unit 

as i,•,eH a:i fl)~' OtllCl 

tenanls in lhP ;1pnr1111nnt 

coff1ple)a You rnust nol 
a!lcv.i ir,ure than 3 in the 
urnt as i1 agamst 

hous:no c·cdr, arid ct 

possible tne ha;;ard 

7t11s is ~11Jainst ttH~ fue 

code> 

Hey we are waiting for· • 
my mom to get o.ut of 
• work and I was frying to 
ask if we can pay less 
t • • u 

001 Oli'i01 0 

• O •··.e· 8 0 r: • O GI e CD O :: 

Hey.we are waiting for 
• my mom to get out of 
.work and J was trying to 
• ask if we can pay less 
because we really want· 

· to stay here • • • 

i will rneel }'OU on 
1 lltFsday ,,I 9,>nl 

Here are some non 
profit 01g,1n1zallons thal 
can ticrp you pe, our 
cot1vpr•;:a~1<in 

Sea'.con ol ,lla11ng 
Catr>ol«: cha11tms 

Ok thank you 

m ei o 
•Oeeee.--; 

000067



\ 
Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Deh, .. ~ I Account Activity 

( 
9/3/19, 5:33 PM 

EXHIBIT G 
Bank of America 9 Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 07/08/2019 

Amount: 1,200.00 

Type: Deposit, 

Description: CATLR transferBanking.CtrFRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0262910428 . . 

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
1 #0000546 CA Confirmation# 0262910428 

Transaction Income: Deposits 
category: 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000068



Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Dec .. ~~ Account Activity 
( 

9/3/19, 5:34 PM 

Bank of America♦ Online Banking-

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 06/05/2019 

Amount: 1,200.00 

Type: Deposit 

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1476793191 

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
!' #0000546 CA Confirmation# 1476793191 

Transaction Income: Deposits 
category: 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000069



Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Dec .. ~ ; Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:34 PM 

Bank of America• Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 05/06/2019 

Amount: 1,200.00 

Type: Deposit 

Description: CATLRtransfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0317314036 

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
?1 #0000546 CA Confirmation# 0317314036 

Transaction Income: Deposits 
category: 

1ttps://secure,bankofarnerica.com/rnyaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000070



\ 
Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Deh,,,.; I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:35 PM 

Bank of America♦ Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 04/05/2019 

Amount: 1,200.00 

Type: Deposit 

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1750389378 

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
Ji #0000546 CA Confirmation# 1750389378 

Transaction Income: Deposits 
category: 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000071



( ' 

Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Detb,,~ I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:35 PM 

BankofAmerica♦ Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 

Amount: 

Type: 

Description: 

Merchant name: 
'Ji 

Transaction 
category: 

03/06/2019 

1,200.00 

Deposit 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1789276445 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1789276445 

Income: Deposits 

https://secure.bankofarnerica.com/rnyaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000072



( \ 

Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Deta11~ I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:36 PM 

BankofAmerica♦ Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 

Amount: 

Type: 

Description: 

Merchant name: 
?, 

Transaction 
category: 

02/05/2019 

1,200.00 

Deposit 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 2740017444 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 2740017444 

Income: Deposits 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/rnyaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000073



\ 
Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Det~ .. ~ I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:36 PM 

Bank of America♦ Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 

Amount: 

Type: 

Description: 

Merchant name: 
'J: 

Transaction 
category: 

12/05/2018 

1,200.00 

Deposit 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720 

Income: Deposits 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000074



Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account De\. ... ~ I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:37 PM 

Bank of America♦ Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date: 

Amount: 

Type: 

Description: 

Merchant name: 
?,: 

Transaction 
category: 

03/05/2018 

1,200.00 

Deposit 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0511268718 

CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0511268718 

Income: Deposits 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 Page 1 of 1 

000075



Owrter Response ( 

I'-; 

,,: Ii ( ill 
· . :.:f"t(1 /d~Ut IF:/'-, i • 

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program • 

Owner Response 2l') i '' tlf)\! 2 7 f·'11 i l?: 2 B t U l ~, l.l t._. 

Case TlS-0311 

Property Address 1791 28th Avenue 

Party Name 

Tenant Maria & Luis Cervantes 
(510) 927-1332 

Owner May & Grant Fong 
650-757-2988 

Business Information 

Date of which you aquired the building 

Total Number of Units 

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? 

Type of Unit 

Address 

1791 28th A venue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

358 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

ls the contested increase a capital improvements increase? 

Rent History 

The tenant moved into the rental unit on 

Initial monthly rent 

I 

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland's form entitled Notice to 
Tenants of Residential Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP Notice") to all of the 
petitioning tenants? 

On what date was the notice first given? 

Is the tenant current on the rent? 

Exemption 

The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins 
Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption 
under Costa-Hawkins, please answer the following questions: 

http:/ /apphub/RAP Admin/PrintOwner Response. aspx?Responseld=5 8 

Mailing Address 

1-30-2015 

6 

No 

Apartment, 
Room or Live
work 

No 

8-24-2017 

1233 

Yes 

8-24-2017 

No 

No 

11/27/2018 000076



uwner Kesponse 

Case 

Property Address 

TlS-0311 

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

Owner Response 

179128th Avenue 

The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, No 
agency or authority other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. 

The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or No 
after January 1, 1983. 

On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, No 
or boarding house for less than 30 days. 

The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the No 
average basic cost of new construction. 

The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility, No 
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an 
educational institution. 

The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of No 
the units continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one 
year. 

http:/ /apphub/RAP Admin/PrintOwner Response. aspx ?Responseld= 5 8 11/27/2018 
000077



(, 

( \ ( •; 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA. SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND. 

Housing and Community Development 
Department Rent Adjustment Program 

CORRECTED HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: T18-0311 Cervantes v. Fong 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

DATE OF HEARING: June 3, 2019 

DATE OF CORRECTED DECISION: October 16, 2019 

APPEARANCES: Xavier Johnson, Attorney for Tenant 
Luis Ayala Cervantes, Tenant 
Maria Amezquita, Tenant 
Abigail Romero, Interpreter 
May Fong, Owner 

REASON FOR CORRECTED DECISION 

On October 3, 2019, a Hearing Decision was mailed to all parties. On page 3 of 
that Hearing Decision, it stated "The owner also told the tenant her rent would be 
increased because there were so many people living in the unit." After reviewing the 
audio recording of the Hearing, that sentence has been removed. Other than the 
removal of that sentence from page 3, the Hearing Decision remains the same. 

This CORRECTED HEARING DECISION does not set a new appeal period. 

SUMMARY OF DECISION 

The tenant's petition is partly granted. 

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES 

On June 12, 2019, the tenant filed a petition contesting two (2) rent increases, and 
alleging that her housing services have decreased. The basis for the tenant's petition 
includes the following: 

• The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice .1 was given was calculated 
incorrectly; 

000078



( 

• The increases exceed the CPI Adjustment and are unjustified or are greater 
than 10%; 

• I received a rent increase notice before the property owner received 
approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for such as increase and the 
rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked rent 
increase; 

• No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice 
of increases I am contesting; 

• The property owner did not give me the required form "Notice of the Rent 
Adjustment Program" at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent 
increases; 

• The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-
month period; 

• There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, 
or there are serious problems with the conditions in the unit because the 
owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance; • 

• The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received 
previously or is charging me for services originally paid by the owner; and 

• The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 
years. 

The owner filed a timely response denying the allegations. 

THE ISSUES 

(1) When, if ever, did the tenant receive the form Notice to Tenants (RAP Notice)? 
(2) Are the contested rent increases valid? 
(3) Have the tenant's housing services been decreased and, if so, by what 
percentage of the total housing services that are provided by the owner? 

EVIDENCE 

Rent History and RAP Notice 

On her petition, the tenant stated that she moved into the subject unit in August 
of 2015, at an initial monthly rent of $945.00. She did not sign a lease at that time but 
paid rent directly to the owner. On August 24, 2017, the tenant signed a written lease 
for the subject property effective September 1, 2017 .1 The lease states that the tenant's 
rent shall be $1,233.00 for the first three (3) months and will increase to $1,400.00 in 
December of 2017. The tenant testified that she paid $1,233.00 in rent monthly for 
September, October, and November of 2017. In December of 2017, the tenant began 
paying $1,200.00 in rent monthly instead of the increased amount of $1,400.00. The 
tenant testified that she began paying $1,200.00 because she found out that she was 

1 Exhibit 1 

2 

000079



paying more than other tenants in the building. The tenant is still paying $1,200.00 in 
rent monthly. 

The tenant further testified that the 2017 lease was negotiated in Spanish, with 
the tenant's minor son serving as an interpreter, but the tenant was only provided the 
written lease in English. The tenant also testified that she first received the RAP Notice 
on August 24, 2017, at the time she signed the lease.2 The RAP Notice was provided 
to her in English and in Spanish. Finally, the tenant testified that she signed the 2017 
lease under duress, because the owner told her that if she did not sign it, the owner 
would evict them because there were too many people living in the unit. The tenant 
testified that there are two (2) adults, and five (5) minor children living in the unit. 

The owner testified that she received a text from the tenant's son in August of 
2017, requesting a lease under the tenant's name. It was only at that time that she 
realized that the tenants did not have a lease for the property. She also found out that 
there were seven (7) people living in the unit. That is a fire hazard, so the owner told 
the tenant that she could only have three (3) people living in the unit. Finally, she 
testified that both parties came to an agreement that the rent would be $1,233.00 for the 
first three months after the lease was signed and would increase to $1,400.00 in 
December of 2017. The owner testified that the tenant has paid $1,200.00 in rent 
monthly instead of the increased amount of $1,400.00. 

Decreased Housing Services 

With the petition, the tenant submitted a list of decreased housing services. The 
parties testified as follows regarding the tenant's list of decreased housing services. 

Electrical Wiring: The tenant testified that some of the electrical outlets were 
broken. Sparks came out if anything was plugged into the outlets. She first noticed this 
issue shortly after moving into the unit, in August of 2015. She complained about the 
electrical outlets to the maintenance worker, Mateo, on three or four occasions over the 
years but nothing was done. The City of Oakland Code Enforcement Services did an 
inspection of the unit on April 23, 2018, and issued a Notice of Violation on April 25, 
2018.3 The Notice of Violation cited a code violation for the electrical outlets in the living 
room and bathroom. In response, the owner completed repairs and Code Enforcement 
records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.4 The tenant testified that 
she has not had any issues with the outlets since July of 2018. 

The owner testified that she did not receive notice of this issue until she received 
the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018. She never received a verbal or written 
complaint from the tenant. In response to the Notice of Violation, she completed the 
necessary repairs and the violation was abated as of July 2018. 

2 Exhibit I 
3 Exhibit 3 
4 Exhibit 3 

3 

000080



I 
\ 

/ ., 

Windows: The tenant testified that the windows in the bedroom do not open 
completely and the window in the living room is not installed properly. She noticed this 
issue when she first moved into the unit. She complained to Mateo, the maintenance 
worker, about this issue multiple times. The Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, 
cited a code violation for the windows, stating that the "windows in the bedroom do not 
open/close properly". In response, the owner completed repairs and Code Enforcement 
records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.5 The tenant testified that 
she has not had any issues with the windows since July of 2018. 

Mold in Bathroom: The tenant testified that there is mold in the bathroom, 
specifically around the sink and bathtub. She uses Clorox to clean the mold but it keeps 
returning. She complained to Mateo about the mold when she first moved into the unit 
but nothing has been done. The tenant submitted photographs of the mold.6 

The owner testified that she never received notice of the mold prior to the filing of 
the petition. Further, mold was not cited in the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018.7 

Kitchen Drawers: The tenant testified that the kitchen drawers and cabinets do 
not open and close properly. The drawers get stuck because they do not fit properly 
into the cabinets. She complained to Mateo, the maintenance worker, about this issue 
approximately a year after moving into the unit. Mateo sanded the drawers but they still 
got stuck. The Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code violation for the 
kitchen drawers. Code Enforcement records show that the violation was abated on July 
6, 2018. 8 

Splitting of Utilities: The parties did not provide 'any testimony on this issue, 
therefore, this claim is dismissed. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Invalid Rent Increases 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance states that an owner seeking a rent increase in 
excess of the CPI Rent Adjustment or available banking must first petition the Rent 
Program and receive approval for the rent increase before the rent increase can be 
imposed9. Any rent increase not based on the CPI Rent Adjustment or Banking that is 
not first approved by the Rent Adjustment Program is void and unenforceable. 10 

In this case, the contested rent increases exceed the CPI Rent Adjustment and 
available banking. The owner failed to petition the Rent Program to receive approval for 

5 Exhibit 3 
6 Exhibit 4 
7 Exhibit 3 
8 Exhibit 3 
9 O.M.C. §8.22.065(A) 
10 O.M.C. §8.22.065(A) 

4 

000081



( 

the rent increases built into the 2017 lease before imposing the increases on the 
tenants. Therefore, the contested rent increases are void and unenforceable as a 
matter of law. The monthly rent remains $945.00, the rent amount prior to the rent 
increases imposed in the 2017 lease. Since the tenants have paid a portion of the rent 
increases, they are owed restitution for rent overpayments as outlined in the Table 
below. 

Although the tenant acknowledged receiving the RAP Notice in August of 2017, 
the timeliness requirements outlined in the RAP Notice only apply to rent increases 
based on the CPI, banking, or other claims such as decreased housing services, code 
violations etc. The timeliness requirements do not apply to rent increases that are void 
and unenforceable as a matter of law. 

Timeliness of Decreased Housing Service Claims 

The Oakland Rent Ordinance provides that for a petition claiming decreased 
housing services: 

a. If the decreased housing is the result of a noticed or discrete change in 
services provided to the tenant, the petition must be filed within ninety days of 
whichever of the following is later: 

i. The date the tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased 
housing service; or 

ii. The date the tenant first receives the RAP Notice. 
b. If the decreased housing is ongoing, the tenant may file a petition at any 

point but is limited in restitution for ninety (90) days before the petition is filed and to the 
period of time when the owner knew or should have known about the decreased 
housing service. 11 

Therefore, the tenant's restitution for any decreased housing services shall be 
limited to March of 2018, ninety (90) days before the petition filing date of June 12, 
2018. 

Decreased Housing Services 

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services 
is considered to be an increase in rent12 and may be corrected by a rent adjustment. 13 

However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must be 
either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the start of the tenancy, or 
one that is required to be provided in a contract between the parties, or a violation of the 
housing or building code which seriously affects the habitability of the tenant's unit. 
Further, an owner must be given notice of a problem, and a reasonable opportunity to 
make repairs, before a claim of decreased housing services will be granted. 

11 O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(A)(3) 
12 O.M.C. Section 8.22.070(F) 
13 O.M.C. Section 8.22.11 0(E) 

5 

000082



Additionally, the tenants have the burden of proof with respect to each claim. 

Electrical Wiring: The tenant testified credibly that some of the electrical outlets 
were broken and she notified Mateo, the maintenance worker, about this issue multiple 
times. Mateo is an agent of the owner, and therefore, notice of this issue is imputed 
onto the owner. Further, the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code 
violation for the electrical outlets in the living room and bathroom. Code Enforcement 
records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018. 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

Windows: The tenant testified credibly that the windows in the bedroom do not 
open completely and she notified Mateo about this issue multiple times. Further, the 
Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited a code violation for the windows, stating 
that the "windows in the bedroom do not open/close properly", Code Enforcement 
Records show that the violation was abated on July 6, 2018.14 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

Mold in Bathroom: The tenant testified that she complained about mold in the 
bathroom to Mateo when she first moved into the unit. However, mold was not cited in 
the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018. The tenant has failed to sustain her burden 
of proof regarding the mold and compensation for this claim is denied. 

Kitchen Drawers: The tenant testified that the kitchen drawers and cabinets do 
not open and close properly. Further, the Notice of Violation dated April 25, 2018, cited 
a code violation for the kitchen drawers. Code Enforcement Records show that the 
viblation was abated on July 6, 2018. 

This claim affects the habitability of the unit and the tenant is entitled to 
compensation for past decreased housing services from March 2018, through July 
2018, as stated in the Table below. 

14 Exhibit 3 

6 

000083



Service Lost From 

Electrical 1-Mar-18 
Outlets 

Windows 1-Mar-18 
Drawers 1-Mar-18 

From 

1-Sep-17 
1-Dec-17 

VALUE OF LOST SERVICES 
To Rent % Rent Decrease No. 

Decrease /month Months 

1-Jul-18 $945 2% $ 18.90 5 $ 

1-Jul-18 $945 2% $ 18.90 5 $ 
1-Jul-18 $945 1% $ 9.45 5 $ 

I TOTAL LOST SERVICES $ 

OVERPAID RENT 

To 

1-Nov-17 
1-Oct-19 

Max 
Monthly Monthly Difference per No. 

Rent oaid Rent month Months 

$1,233 $945 $ 288.00 3 $ 

$1,200 $945 $ 255.00 23 $ 

I TOTAL OVERPAID RENT $ 

RESTITUTION 
MONTHLY RENT 

TOTAL TO BE REPAID TO TENANT $ 
TOTAL AS PERCENT OF MONTHLY Rl=NT 

AMORTIZED OVER MO. BY REG. IS 
OR 

OVER 24 MONTHS BY HRG. OFFICER IS $ 

ORDER 

1. Petition T18-0311 is partly granted. 

2. The 2017 rent increases are invalid. The tenant's base rent remains 
$945.00. 

Overpaid 

94.50 

94.50 
47.25 

236.25 

Sub-total 

864.00 
5,865.00 

6,729.00 

$945 
6,965.25 

737% 

290.22 

3. The tenant is entitled to restitution for rent overpayments and past decreased 
housing services in the amount of $6,965.25. The restitution shall be 
amortized over twenty-four (24) months. The tenant's rent from November 
2019 to October 2021 is $654. 78. In November of 2021, the tenant's rent will 
revert to the base rent of $945.00. 

4. The remaining claims of decreased housing services are denied. 

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 
Program. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal 
using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received 

7 

000084



(\ 

within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is shown on 
the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to 
file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. 

Dated: October 16, 2019 
Maimoon'a Sahi Ahmad 
Hearing Officer 
Rent Adjustment Program 

8 

000085



(\ 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number TlS-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
Corrected Hearing Decision 

Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
3 5 8 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

Tenant 
Maria & Luis Cervantes 
1791 28th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson, Centro Legal de la Raza 
3022 International Blvd Ste. 410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on October 17, 2019 in Oakland, CA. 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000086



CITY OF OAKLAND 

250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313. 
OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 • 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program • 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 

CA Relay Service 711 

Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board (HRRRB) 

PANEL APPEAL DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: 

APPl;:AL HEARING: 

T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong 

January 16, 2020 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1791 28th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 

APPEARANCES: May Lee Fong Owner Appellant 
Xavier Johnson· Tenant Appellee Representative 

Procedural Background 

On June 12, 2018, tenants Maria Amezquita .and Luis Ayala Cervantes 
filed a petition contesting rent increases and claiming code violations and 
decreased housing services. The contested rent increases included the following: 

• 4/26/18-from $1,200 to $1,400 
• 10/3/17-from $945 to $1,200 
• 9/5/17-from $945 to $1,233 

The decreased housing claims included (1) malfunctioning electrical 
wiring, (2) windows not closing or installed properly, (3) mold in the bathroom, (4) • 
kitchen drawers do not open properly and (5) splitting of utilities. 

Staff mailed a copy of the tenant petition and owner response form to the 
owners on August 17, 2018. The owners filed untimely Owner Responses on 
November 18, 2018, and November 27, 2018. 

On October 3, 2019, the Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision; 
stating the owners filed a timely response to the tenant petition (Owner May Fong 
was permitted to participate in the hearing). The Decision noted that the tenant 

1 

000087



( 

testified that her rent was $945 when she moved into the unit in August 2015 and 
that the owner testified that she realized in 2017 that the tenants did not have a 
lease. Regarding the decreased housing seNices claims, the Hearing Decision 
noted that the tenant testified that she complained to the building maintenance 
worker about the problems, that the City issued a Notice of Violation in April 2018 
related to the electrical wiring, windrows, and drawers, and that City records 
showed that the violations were abated in July 2018. 

The Decision denied the rent increases in the 2017 lease ($1,233 for the 
first three months, $1,400 thereafter) on the grounds that the owners did not seek 
prior approval from the Rent Adjustment Program of increases more than CPI or 
banking, and stated that the tenants' base rent remains $945.00. The Decision 
ordered restitution for rent overpayment and past decreased housing seNices in 
the amount of $6,965.25 ($6,729 for rent paid 9/1/17 to 11/1/17 and 12/1/17 to 
10/1/19; $236.25 for problems with electrical outlets, windows, and drawers, 
3/1/18 to 7/1/18), amortized over 24 months.· Finally, the Decision denied the 
remaining decreased housing seNices c:laims. The Decision did not address the 
Costa Hawkins issue of whether the 2017 lease constituted a new tenancy. 

Grounds for Appeal 

The owners filed an appeal on October 9, 2019, on the following grounds: 

• The decision violates federal, state or local law; 
• The decision is not supported by substantial evidence; 
• Other. 

Specifically, the owner contends that: 

(1) The Hearing Officer calculated the rent incorrectly, which is $1,400.00 
per the signed lease, not $945.00; 

(2) Regarding the decreased housing claim, the electrical outlet issue was 
caused by the tenants' overloading appliances and overcrowding of the 
1 bedroom unit, the restitution period was incorrectly calculated from 
March 2018 to July 2018, and the owners were not advised of any 
problems until May 2018 and made repairs by June 1, 2018; 

(3) The Hearing Decision violates California Civil Code Section Article 2, 
Rental Agreement, §798.15-798.23.5. The original tenant was Nazana 
Nevarez, who sublet his unit to the tenant without the owner's prior 
written consent. The owner was unaware that Ms. Amezquita and Mr. 
CeNantes were illegal tenants until August 24, 2017. The owners 
agreed to allow them to stay upon signing of a new lease, based on 3 
persons residing in the unit. The lease provides that the rent for the 
unit may be raised to market rates when the last original tenant moves 

2 000088



(/ 

from the premises. The original tenant moved out and the owner 
raised the monthly rent to $1,400.00; 

(4) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence because the 
tenants' claims are not supported with documents; 

(5) While the tenants did not receive the RAP notice until they signed the 
new lease, the RAP notice was sent to the original tenant. 
The owners also denied that they told the tenants that their rent would 
be increased because there were so many people living in the unit. On 
October 17, 2019, the Hearing Officer issued a Corrected Hearing 
Decision, removing the sentence on page 3 of the Hearing Decision 
stating "The owner also told the tenant her rent,would be increased 
because th€;:lre were so many people living in th'e unit." 

Appeal Decision 

After questions to the parties and Board discussion, R. Stone moved to 
remand the Hearing Decision to the Hearing Officer to address when the tenancy 
commenced; and state the reasoning as to when the tenancy commenced, and 
restate the monthly base rent, disregarding any evidence presented on appeal. 
K. Sims seconded the motion. 

The Board panel voted as follows: 

Aye: R. Stone, K. Sims 
Nay: • H. Flanery 
Abstain: 0 

The motion carried. 

CRANEE FRANKLIN MINOR 
BOARD DESIGNEE 
CITY OF OAKLAND 

E / 

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 

3 
000089



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number T18-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
HRRRB Panel Appeal Decision 

Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
358 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

Tenant 
Maria & Luis Cervantes 
1 791 28th A venue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson, Centro Legal de la Raza 
3022 International Blvd Ste. 410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on March 10, 2020 in Oakland, CA. 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000090



i 
I 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

REMAND HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: T18-0311 Cervantes v. Fong 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510)238-6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

DATE OF HEARING: June 3, 2019 

DATE OF DECISION: October 3, 2019 

DATE OF CORRECTED DECISION: October 17, 2020 

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING: January 16, 2020 

DATE OF APPEAL DECISION: March 10, 2020 

DATE OF REMAND DECISION: November 24, 2020 

INTRODUCTION 

A Hearing Decision in this case was issued on October 3, 2019. A Corrected 
Hearing Decision was issued on October 17, 2020. The Hearing Decision partly 
granted the tenant's petition. Specifically, the Hearing Decision denied the rent 
increases in the 2017 lease ($1,233.00 for the first three months, $1,400.00 thereafter), 
on the grounds that the owner did not seek prior approval from the Rent Adjustment 
Program for increases exceeding the CPI and banking, and stated that the tenant's 
base rent remains $945.00. Additionally, the Hearing Decision granted ,restitution for 
rent overpayments and past decreased housing services in the amount of $6,965.25. 
The owner filed an Appeal, which was heard by the Board on January 16, 2020. The 
Board remanded the case to the Hearing Officer to address when the tenant's tenancy 
commenced, and state the reasoning as to when the tenancy commenced, and restate 
the monthly base rent, disregarding any evidence presented on appeal. 

EVIDENCE 

A review of the evidence presented at the underlying hearing and the Hearing 
Decision shows the following: 

Commencement of Tenancy and Base Rent: The tenant stated on her petition 
and testified at the hearing that she moved into the subject unit in August of 2015, at an 

000091



( 

initial monthly rent of $945.00. She did not sign a lease at that time but paid rent 
directly to the owner. The tenant submitted copies of rent receipts verifying rent 
payments to the owner. 1 The tenant further testified that the owner was aware that they 
were living the subject unit as of 2015. 

The owner testified that she received a text from the tenant's son in August of 
2017, requesting a lease under the tenant's name. It was only at that time that she 
realized the tenants did not have a lease for the property. In response, she met with the 
parties and they signed a new lease effective September 1, 2017. At that time, they 
came to an agreement that the rent would be $1,233.00 for the first three months after 
the lease was signed and would increase to $1,400.00 in December of 2017. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

The tenant testified credibly that she moved into the subject unit in August of 
2015 at an initial rent of $945.00. Although the tenant did not sign a lease at the time 
she moved into the unit, she paid rent directly to the owner and provided rent receipts 
verifying these payments. 

The Rent Ordinance defines a tenant as "A person entitled, by written or oral 
agreement, to the use or occupancy of any covered unit"2. The tenant's credible 
testimony establishes that the subject tenancy commenced in August of 2015. The 
owner's acceptance of the tenant's rent since 2015, as shown by the rent receipts, is 
further evidence of a tenancy between the tenant and the owner. It is hereby found that 
the subject tenancy began in August of 2015, and the monthly base rent is $945.00. 

ORDER 

1. The subject tenancy commenced in August of 2015. 

2. The monthly base rent is $945.00. 

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed 
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be 
received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the decision. The date of 
service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is 
closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. 

Dated: November 24, 2020 

1 Exhibit 2 
2 Rent Ordinance, Definitions 

Maimoor7a5.Ahmaci; Hearing Officer 
Rent Adjustment Program 

2 ' 

000092



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number TlS-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached REMAND HEARING DECISION by placing a true copy of it in 
a sealed envelope in City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Tenant: 
Maria &Luis Cervantes 
1791 28th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson, Centro Legal de la Raza 
3022 International Boulevard, Suite #410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Property Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
358 Cerro Court 
Dali City, CA 94105 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on December 18, 2020 in Oakland, California. 

~~ 
/RobertF.Costa 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000093



1 
For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 

Rev.  6/18/2018 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM  
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612 
(510) 238-3721

For date stamp. 

APPEAL 

Appellant’s Name 
☐ Owner    ☐ Tenant

Property Address (Include Unit Number) 

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number 

Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices) 

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must 
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed 
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.  

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

c) ☐ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) ☐ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

e) ☐ The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

May Fong

1791-28th Avenue, Oakland, Ca 94601

T18-0311358 Cerro Court, Daly City, Ca 94015

Date of Decision appealed
November 24, 2020

CITY OF OAKLAND 

✓ 

000094



2 
For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 

Rev.  6/18/2018 

f) ☐ I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (In
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) ☐ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) ☐ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent 
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first 
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5). 
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached: _____.   

• You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. ●
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on            , 20        , 
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Name 

Address 

City, State Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State Zip 

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

19

Luis Cervantes AND Maria Amezquita

Oakland, Ca 94601

1791-28th Avenue

12/28/20

32

October 8

*Please listen to only the section of testimony on the audio day of hearing.

000095



T18-0311 APPEAL EXPLANATION 

1) The hearing officer calculated the rent incorrectly.  The rent for tenants Cervantes and 
Amerzquita was $1400 as per signed lease in Exhibit A.   The application for  habitability 
issues is also incorrect.  The electrical issues was due to the tenants’ overloading the 
circuits with expansive outlets with overloading appliances.  Please see attached 
Exhibit B.  This caused shortages and dangerous circumstances and is due to the 
overcrowding of the unit 1 bedroom unit.  The hearing officer calculated the decreased 
housing from March 2018 to July 2018.  She has to put into account that the Owner was not 
made aware of any problems until receiving notice regarding the issues from code enforcement 
in or about May 2, 2018.  Owners are allotted a reasonable time period to make repairs.  
Electrical and cabinets were repaired on May 8,2018. Window Repairs were completed June 
1, 2018 due to ordering of windows.  Please see attached receipts and email with the Code 
Enforcement Inspector.  Please see attached Exhibit C.    The hearing officer did not 
adhere to the decrease housing clause. [an owner must be given notice of a problem, and a 
reasonable opportunity to make repairs, before a claim of decreased housing services will 
be granted] These were all repaired within a reasonable time period which is exactly a day 
after receiving notice repairs had been made with exception of the windows that needed special 
ordering; therefore, there should be no compensation for decreased housing.  The issues were 
abated in July only because the inspection for the unit was scheduled for July.

2) d)  The decision violates Ca state law 2007 California Civil Code Article 2. Rental Agreement 
CA Codes (civ:798.15-798.23.5) CIVIL CODE SECTION 798.15-798.23.5. Tenant Luis 
Cervantes AND Maria Amezquita attempts to claim they should takeover the rent amount set 
at the original tenant lease.  Nazana Nevarez was the original tenant that signed a valid lease 
with previous landlord on May 30, 2012.  Please see attached Exhibit D.  Owner May Fong 
purchased property January 30, 2015 and sent notices to existing tenants of new ownership 
information along with RAP information to the original authorized tenant.   Please see attached 
Exhibit E.
Nazana Nevarez subletted the unit to Luis Cervantes and Maria Amezquita without my 
approval or consent which is a breach of lease terms. Please see highlighted section regarding 
Subletting.  It states the following:

[Tenant will not sublet any part of the Premises or assign this agreement without the prior 
written consent of Owner. The named Tenants are the only "Original" Tenants. No person 
other than the named Tenants will be permitted to regularly or continuously use or occupy 
the Premises unless all of the following conditions are met: 1) Tenant notifies Owner in 
writing, signed by every Tenant, stating a request to have a new person occupy the 
Premises; 2) said prospective occupant completes and gives to Owner Owners rental 
application; 3) Owner approves of the prospective occupant's creditworthiness and 
references from prior landlords; and 4) the new occupant signs Owner's Change of Tenant 
Agreement for such occupancy before occupying the Premises, which agreement will 
include a provision that the new occupant will abide by and perform all the obligations of 

000096



this Agreement. The rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last 
Original Tenant(s) moves from the Premises.  

In the event that Owner consents to any sub-tenancy, is hereby agreed that the Original 
Tenant may not charge more to the sub-tenant(s) than that proportional share of the rent 
which is being charged by and paid to Owner.  

No action or inaction or acceptance of rent or knowledge on the part of Owner will be 
deemed to be a waiver of the provision of this Section on the part of Owner and will not be 
deemed an approval of any person as a "sub-tenant" for any purpose.] 

Owner May Fong was totally unaware that Luis Cervantes and Maria Amezquita were illegal 
subtenants that moved into premises without authorization until the text sent by Luis Cervantes 
8/18/17 as stated at the hearing.  Please see attached Exhibit F.  Original tenants were given proper 
notices with RAP notices.  Please see attached Exhibit E. 

When Owner was made aware of the Cervantes and Amezquita were illegal subtenants, Owner 
was to evict them based on violation of lease and unauthorized subtenants.  Tenants begged owner 
to stay.  With heart, On August 24, 2017, Owner decided to allow tenant to stay and have tenants 
fill out an application and sign new lease as per original lease ONLY based on 3 persons residing 
in Premises and abide by  stipulation in the original lease that the rent for the Premises may be 
raised to market rates when the last Original Tenant(s) moves from the Premises.  Tenants 
Cervantes and Amezquita professed on multiple occasions they only had 3 in their family.  Owner 
would never have signed a new lease with 7 living in a 1 bedroom unit because it is an unsafe and 
unhealthy environment. 

Per original lease, Original Tenant(s) moved out or Premises and Cervantes and Amezquita had 
become the new tenant, the lease sign and agreed by both parties raised to market rate at $1400 
per month is valid according to the California state law.  Please see attached Exhibit D. 

 

2.e. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence.  The Preponderance of evidence is 
upon the Petitioner to not give testimony but present factual supported documented evidence.  All 
of the tenants’ claim has not been supported with any documents and the evidence the hearing 
officer claims is not accurate.  The hearing officer claimed the tenant did not receive the RAP until 
we signed a new lease which is correct.  However, she neglected to acknowledge all the RAP 
notices Owner sent was to the original tenant Nanzania.  Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita would 
not be sent these notices.  Please see attached Exhibit F.   

The hearing officer did not take into account that tenants Cervantes and Amezquita were 
unauthorized subtenants until the new lease was signed.  I emphasize they were not the authorized 
master tenants.  Any rent payments the Petitioner claims was directly deposited in Owners account 
without disclosing to the Owner the rent payments were from anyone but the master tenants 
owners.  Rent payments were also deposited in owners account with either cash or bank transfer 
masking who is depositing the rent.  Please see Exhibit G.  As evidenced in the application and 
lease signed and dated August 24, 2017.  Please see attached Exhibit A. This is the Petitioners’ 

000097



only and original lease as new tenants at the new marker rate of $1400 (market value is $1800).  
The attached stated the terms of lease as per California law and was based on the tenant’s 
misrepresentation of facts regarding their claim was only 3 persons in the unit.  

The hearing officer incorrectly claims that Owner testified “told the tenant her rent would be 
increased because there were so many people living in the unit.”  This is TOTALLY UNTRUE.  
Please listen to audio.  Owner never made any claims of raising the rent due to the amount of 
people in unit.   The rent was raised to market value as allowed by law when the original tenant 
vacates premises which happened.  It is a fact I stated only 3 tenants can reside in the Premises 
and the tenant misrepresented themselves.  Owner did indicate and firmly believe 7 in a 300 
sleeping space is unsafe and hazardous but never claimed the rent is raised due to the amount of 
people that would be living there.  

Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita were unauthorized subtenants and as per original lease in 
Exhibit D, the rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last Original 
Tenant(s) moves from the Premises as well as State and local laws. 

h) The hearing officer did not adhere to the State or local laws.  There was no 2017 rent increase
as the hearing officer claims.  This was a new lease to the new tenants of the unit.  Prior to that 
they were unauthorized subtenants that never made me aware of their unauthorized residency until 
August 2017.  Contracts matter and it is unjust to reward tenants who move into units without 
written or oral authorization.  Owners have the right to choose their tenants and charge market rent to new 
tenants once authorized.  Tenants Cervantes and Amezquita deceived the Owner by moving into 
Premises without authorization and then misrepresenting themselves in order to avoid eviction and 
to obtain a new lease.  This is not legally adhering to the laws. 

_____________________________________ 

May Fong, Owner 

and correct. Executed on December 28, 2020 in Oakland, CA.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

2 (a & b)  The hearing officer did not adhere to the evidence presented and did not include all evidence 
as with my past hearings including T12-0105, T17-0025,  where all evidence was taken into account 
and the hearing officer based the decision on facts and evidence including evidence attorneys brought 
into hearing on day of case and offered to extend to tenants more time for evidence for the case to be 
sure all facts were taken into account.

000098



EXHIBIT A

APPLICATION TO RENT OR LEASE 

PLEASE PRINT 
Driver's License # 

Email Address 

EMPLOYMENT 
Current Employment Prior Employment 

Employer 

Address 

Employer Phone 
~ 

Job Title 

Name of Supervisor 

Dates of Employment From: To: From: To: 

Income Per Month $ $ 

RESIDENCE 
Current Residence Previous Residence Previous Residence 

Street Address ,~q, 2. sr .+\.i A-ve 
City ~klnvv.J rin I 
State & Zip 10,4&!:)r 
Dates of Stay 

Owner/Manager 
And 

Phone number 

Reason For Leaving 

Last Rent Paid $ $ $ 

VEHICLES 
Automobiles Make Model Color Year License No. 

Motorcycles 

PERSONAL REFERENCES 
Address Ci 

Nearest Relative Living Elsewhere 

~ 
AOA Form No. 100A (Rev 10//13)- Copyright 2006-Apartment Owners Associabon of California, Inc.• www.aoausa.com 

• Sun Fernando Valley (RIK) 988-9200 • l.os Angcles(.123) 9.l7-8RI I ~ Long Beech (562) S97-24::?2.• Garden Grove (714) 539-6000 • San Diego (6191280-7007 • Northern California (510)769-7521 

000099



CREDIT INFORMATION Please list all vour financial obllaations 
Name of Bank or Savinas & Loan Branch or Address 

I Checking 

I Savings 

Credit Accounts Account No. Address/Citv Phone 

GENERAL INFORMATION Check answer that applies 
• Doyou smoke? 
• Do you have any pets/animals? 
• Have you ever filed for bankruptcy? 
• Do you have any musical instruments? 
• Do you have any water-filled furniture or do you intend to use 

water filled furniture in the apartment? 
• Have you ever been convicted for selling, possessing, 

distributing or manufacturing illegal drugs or convicted of any 
other crime? • 

• Have you ever been evicted or named as a defendant in an 
eviction for non-payment of rent or any other reason? 

Please explain any "yes" answers to the above questions: 

Account No. Balance 
$ 

$ 

Balance Due Monthlv 

□ YES □ ·NO 
□ YES □ NO 
□ YES □ NO 
□ YES □ NO 
□ YES □ NO 

□ YES □ NO 

□ YES □ NO 

Why are you leaving your current residence? _________________________ _ 

The applicant hereby applies to rent/lease Apartment # ____ at'---------------
________________ for $ _____ per month, and upon owner's approval agrees to 
enter into a Rental Agreement and/or Lease and pay all rent and security deposits required before 
occupancy. 

An application fee of $ _____ is hereby submitted for the cost of processing this application, to obtain 
credit history and other background information. 

Applicant represents that all information given on this application is true and correct. Applicant hereby authorizes 
verification of all references and facts, including but not limited to current and previous landlords and employers, and 
personal references. Applicant hereby authorizes owner/agent to obtain Unlawful Detainer, Credit Reports, Telechecks, and/or 
criminal background reports. Applicant agrees to furnish additional credit and/or personal references upon request. Applicant 
understands that incomplete or incorrect information provided in the application may cause a delay in processing which may 
result in denial of tenancy. In the event that a material misstatement or misrepresentation is discovered after Applicant is 
accepted as a Resident, and whether or not a Lease or Month to Month Rental Agreement is executed, Owner may, at Owner's 
sole discretion, deem such misstatement or misrepresentation to be a material and non-curable breach of any subsequent Lease 
or Month to Month Rental Agreement and grounds for rescission of the contract and immediate eviction. Applicant hereby 
waives any claim and releases from liability any person providing or obtaining said verification or additional information. 

Applicant: ~a Ameup ,# 
(Sig ture required} 

• Date:_g __ --~-=~'-1,,-------"\_5.___ __ _ 

~ 
AOA Form No. 100A (Rev 10//13) • Copynght 2006 • Apartmanl Owners Aasociallon of Califamia, Inc. • www.aoausa.com 

• San Fernando Valh.-y(KIK)988-9200 • l.o. .\ftgeles{l?.1)9l7-8&1 l i wr,g ll,:ach(~2) ~97-2422.•Cianlcn °""T(714) Sl'l-6000• San Diego (6191280-7007 • NosthcmCalilomia (SIOJ769-7521 

000100



~ v.J t .~ oo g'j'v-1( l r 
&- OAKLAND RENTAL AGREEMENT AND/OR LEASE -4, 

Landlord/LessodAgent: _..Mav En~ 
Tenanqs)/Lessee: Mt/./\ i M,t ttaw f ~ J>.r~t o 

Tenanqs)/Lessee: ~('. -✓~"'-_iiS I .:SoJ().v'\, 

Apartment Number: _,1....,7_.9._1.._ ___ _ 

ApartmentNumber ..... l ... Z-9 ... l~---

ApartmentAddress: 1791-281:b Avenue ~r~ 
City: Qaklaorl~.f ~ . ~ Ca . Zip 94601 '- ,1--\.cP 
Monthly Rental Ra~~ 1 \ 1 i.3~ ~-'{~ agreement shall commence on ..... 9 ... 1 ...... ].._/1.._7.__ ____ . and continue: (check one below) 

Rental Due Date: ..1.st.af mnnth _,..It\~""\ Il_ Month to Month Agreement 

Security Deposit t-35ffl} io-.P -f~ M ~A B . ..JZL Until 8/30/18 at which time thereafter shaD become a month to 

Late Charge: S 75 if nnt oaid hv 3rd month tenancy. If Tenant should move from premises prior to the expiration date, he shaD be 

Parking Space: ~-------
Slora!le Space: 

liable for all the rent due unlil such time the apartment is occupied by Landlord-approved resident 

and/or expiration of said time period, whichever is shorter. 

1. This Rental Agreement and/or Lease shall evidence the complete terms and conditions under which the parlies whose signatures appear below have agreed. 
Landlord/Lessor/Agent shall be referred to as "OWNER" and Tenant(s}/1.essee(s) shall be referred to as "RESIDENT." As consideralion for this agreement, OWNER agrees to 
rent/lease to RESIDENT and RESIDENT agrees to renlllease from OWNER for use SOLELY AS A PRIVATE RESIDENCE. the premises listed above. RESIDENT acknowledges that 
any false statements found in RESIDENTS application shall constitute a non-Qlrable breach of this agreement RESIDENT hereby agrees to complete an updated application. 
including a census as to the occupants in the unit upon seven days request of OWNER. 
2. PAYMENTS: Rent and/or other charges are to be paid at the office or apartment of the manager of the buDding or at such other place designated in writing by OWNER. For the \ '""-
safety of the,11J11119et. all payments are to be made by check or money ordpr and no cash shall be acceptable. OWNER ;M;lcn.Bledges t pf the FlWJn~s \.a. ,., 0\ \ \ I. ~ 
rentof: s_,....;;....::~L.S::;.._s ___ .anda~Depositof$ <'2U)O foratotalpaymentofS '3'-t~ So. - . .,_.,. '\'~ , 
All payments are to be made 81~ to: ona and delivered to • California. 
Telephone Number 415- 2-99ffi3 who is usually available on the following days:......,.....,_...._._.....,. ___ during the following hours: 9am-Spm 
3. LATE CHARGE/FEES: The late charge amount noted above, not to exceed 6% of the monthly rent. shall be added to any payment of rent not made on the rental due date or for 
which a deficient (bounced) check shaD have been given. Tenant shall be liable for $25 each lime a check is returned to OWNER because the check was dishonored. A fee of $50.00 
will be incurred each time the OWNER is required to serve a 3-Day Notice to Pay the Rent due to the Tenant's failure to pay rent on the day rent Is due. 
4. SECURITY DEPosrrs: The Security Deposit shall not exceed two times the monthly rent for unfurnished apartments or three times the monthly rent for furnished apartments. The 
total of the above deposits shaD secure compliance with the terms and conditions of this agreement and shall be refunded to RESIDENT within 21 days after the premises have been 
completely vacated less any amount necessary to pay OWNER: a) any unpaid rent. b) cleaning costs. c) key replacement costs. d) costs for repair of damages to apartment and/or 
common areas above ordinary wear and tear. and e) any other amount legaOy allowable under the terms of this agreement. A written accounting of said charges shall be presented to 
RESIDENT within 21 days of move-out. If deposits do not cover such costs and damages. the RESIDENT shall immediately pay said additional costs for damages to OWNER. During 
the term of tenancy, RESIDENT agrees to Increase the deposit upon 30 days written notice by an amount equal to any future increases in rent and/or an amount necessary to cover the 
cost of recllfylng any damage or expense for which RESIDENT is responsible. Security deposit is not to be used as last month's rent 
5. UTILmES: RESIDENT agrees to pay for aD utilities and/or services based upon occupancy of the premises except aarbaae . 
6. OCCUPANTS: Guesl(s) staying over 14 days cumulalive or longer during any 12-month period. without the OWNER"S written consent shall be considered a breach of this 
agreement ONLY the following listed individuals and/or animals. AND NO OTHERS shaD occupy the subject apartment for more than 14 days unless the expressed written consent of 
OWNER is obtained in advance. (the 14 day period maybe extended by local Rent Control Laws): Oakland . RESIDENT shall 
pay additional rent at the rate of $100.00 per month or 25% (or the amount allowed under rent control) of the a1rrent monthly rent; whichever amount is greater. for the period of 
time that each additional guest in excess of the above named shall occupy the premises. RESIDENT shall pay the same additional monthly rent for each additional animal in excess of 
the above named animal(s), which shall 0CCUpy the premises. Acceptance of additional rent or approval of a guest shan not waive any requirement of this agreement or convert the 
status of any •guest· into a RESIDENT. 
7. PETS AND FURNISHINGS: Furnishings· No Uquid-filled furniture of any kind may be kepi on the premises. If the structure was built in 1973 or later RESIDENT may possess a 
waterbed If he maintains waterbed insurance valued at $100.000.00 or more. RESIDENT must fumish OWNER wilh proof of said insurance. RESIDENT must also comply with Civil 
Code Section 1940.5. Resident shaO not keep on premises a receptade containing more than ten gallons of fiquid. highly combusbble materials or other Hems which may cause a 
hazard or affect insurance rates such as. musical instrument, item(s) of unusual weight or dimension. RESIDENT also agrees to carry insurance deemed appropriate by OWNER to 
cover possible losses caused by using said items. Pets - Ho animal. fowl. fish. reptile, and/or pet of any kind shall be kept on or about the premises. for any amount of time. without 
obtaining the prior written consent and meeting the requirements of the OWNER. Said consent. if granted, shaD be revocable at OWNER"S option upon giving a 30-day written nolice. 
In the event laws are passed or permission is granted to have any item prohibited by this agreement or if for any reason such item exists on the premises, there shall be minimum 
additional rent of $25.00 a month for each such Hem if another amount is not stated in this agreement In the event laws are passed or permission is granted to have a pet and/or 
animal of any kind. an additional deposit in the amount of S 3 000 shall be required along with the signing of OWNER'S "PET AGREEMENT." 
8. PARKING/STORAGE: When and if RESIDENT is assigned a parking space on OWNER"S property. the parking space shaD be used exclusively for parking of passenger 
automobiles and/or those approved vehicles listed on RESIDENT'S "Applicalion ID Rent/Lease• or attached hereto. RESIDENT mey not wash. repair. or paint in this parking space or at 
any other common areas on the premises. (RESIDENT mey not assign. sublet or allow RESIDENTS guesqs) to use this or any other parking space.) RESIDENT is responsible for oil 
leaks and other vehicle dischaiges for which RESIDENT shall be charged for cleaning if deemed necessary by OWNER Only vehicles that are operational may park in their assigned 
space. 
9. NOISE: RESIDENT agrees not to cause or allow any noise or activity on the premises that might disturb the peace and quiet of another RESIDENT. Said noise and/or activity shall 
be a breach of this Agreement 
10. LOITERING AND PLAY: Lounging. playing. or unnecessary loitering in the halls. on the front steps, or in the common areas in such a way as to interfere with the tee use and 
enjoyment, passage or convenience of another RESIDENT is prohibited. 
11. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: If lhe premises become totally or parliaOy destroyed during the tenn of this Agreement so that RESIDENTS use is seriously impaired. RESIDENT 
or OWNER may terminate this Agreement immed'iately upon three-day written nolice to the other. 
12. CONDmON OF PREMISES: RESIDENT acknowledges that he has examined the premises and that said premises. all furnishings. fixtures. furniture. plumbing, healing. electrical 
facilllies. all Items fisted on the atteched inventory sheet, if any, and/or all other items provided by OWNER are all dean. and in good satisfactory condition except as may be indicated 
elsewhere in this Agreement RESIDENT agrees to keep the premises and all items In good order and comfrtion and to immediately pay for costs to repair and/or replace any porlion of 
the above damaged by RESIDENT. his guests and/or invitees, except as provided by law. Al the termination of this Agreement. all of the above-enumerated items in this provision shall 

~ 
A0A Fann No. 101-0AKI.AND (Revised 7117I • Capyrtght 2010 • Apartmem Owneni Association of California, Inc.• -.aoeuaa.c:om 

• San Fernando Valley (818) 9811-9200• Los Angclcs(32Jl 937-8111 I • Lons Beach (S62) 597-2422 • Oardcn Orm<: (7141539-liOOO • San Diego (61912118,7007 • Northern Calilixnia (5101769-7521 

000101



be returned to OWNER in clean and good condition except for reasonable wear and tear; the premises shall be free of all personal property and trash not belonging to OWNER. It is 
agreed that all dirt, holes, tears, bums, or stains of any size or amount in the carpets, drapes, walls, fixtures, and/or any other part of the premises, do not constitute reasonable wear 
and tear. 
13. MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATIONS: RESIDENT shall not paint, wallpaper, alter or redecorate, change or install locks, install antenna or other equipment, screws, fastening
devices, excessively large nails, or adhesive materials, place signs, displays, or other exhibits, on or in any portion of the premises without the written consent of the OWNER except as
may be provided by law. RESIDENT shall deposit all garbage and waste in a clean and sanitary manner into the proper receptacles as provided and shall cooperate in keeping the 
garbage area neat and clean. RESIDENT shall be responsible for disposing of items of such size or nature as is not normally acceptable by the garbage hauler for the building. 
RESIDENT shall be responsible for keeping the garbage disposal clean of chicken bones, toothpicks, match sticks, celery, pits, grease, metal vegetable ties, and all other items that
may tend to cause stoppage of the mechanism. RESIDENT shall pay for the cleaning out of any plumbing fixture that may need to be cleared of stoppage and for the expense or 
damage caused by the stopping of waste pipes or overflow from bathtubs, washbasins, toilets, or sinks, if caused by negligence or misuse by RESIDENT or their guests. Tenant must
notify landlord with a written notice stating what item{s) need service or repair and give landlord a reasonable opportunity to service or repair that item(s). Should any charges be 
incurred by the City as a result of not notifying the landlord in writing of such needed service or repairs, tenant shall be responsible for a minimum of $201.50 for each occurrence plus 
any additional fines or inspection fees imposed by a government office as a result of RESIDENT not notifying OWNER in writing of any deficiencies with the residence. 
14. SMOKE/CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS: The rental unit is equipped with properly functioning smoke and carbon monoxide detectors. Resident agrees to test the smoke 
and carbon monoxide detectors in the rental unit monthly for proper function. Resident agrees not to interfere with their normal function or disable any detectors in any manner. 
15. HOUSE, POOL, AND LAUNDRY RULES: RESIDENT shall comply with all house, pool, pet, and laundry rules attached to this agreement which may be changed from time to time. 
These rules shall apply to, but are not limited to, noise, odors, disposal of trash, pets, parking, use of common areas, and storage of toys, bicycles, tools, and other personal items 
(including signs and laundry), which must be kept inside and out of view. OWNER shall not be liable to RESIDENT for any violation of such rules by any other RESIDENTS or persons. 
Rights of usage and maintenance of the laundry room and/or pool and pool area are gratuitous and subject to revocation by OWNER at any time. 
16. CHANGE OF TERMS: The terms and conditions of this agreement are subject to future change by OWNER after the expiration of the agreed lease period upon 30 days written 
notice setting forth such change and delivered to RESIDENT. Any changes are subject to laws in existence at the time of the Notice Of Change Of Terms. 
17. TERMINATION: After expiration of the leasing period, this agreement is automatically renewed from month-to-month, but may be terminated by either party. The owner giving a 60-
day notice and the resident giving a 30-day written notice of intention to terminate. Where laws require "just cause,· such just cause shall be so stated on said notice. The premises 
shall be considered vacated only after all areas induding storage areas are clear of all RESIDENTS belongings, and keys and other property furnished for RESIDENTS use are 
returned to OWNER. Should the RESIDENT hold over beyond the termination date or fail to vacate all possessions on or before the termination date, RESIDENT shall be liable for 
additional rent and damages, which may include damages due to OWNER'S loss of prospective new RENTERS. 
18. POSSESSION: If OWNER is unable to deliver possession of the Apartment to RESIDENT on the agreed date, because of the loss or destruction of the Apartment or because of the
failure of the prior RESIDENT to vacate or for any other reason, the RESIDENT and/or OWNER may immediately cancel and terminate this agreement upon written notice to the other 
party at their last known address, whereupon neither party shall have liability to the other, and any sums paid under this Agreement shall be refunded in full. If neither party cancels, this 
Agreement shall be pro-rated and begin on the date of actual possession. 
19. INSURANCE: RESIDENT acknowledges that OWNER'S insurance does not cover personal property damage caused by fire, theft, rain, war, acts of God, acts of others, and/or any 
other causes, nor shall OWNER be held liable for such losses. RESIDENT HEREBY AGREES TO OBTAIN HIS OWN INSURANCE POLICY TO COVER ANY PERSONAL LOSSES. 
This does not waive OWNER'S duty to prevent personal injury or property damage where that duty is imposed by law, however, RESIDENT'S failure to maintain said pollcy shall be a
complete waiver of RESIDENT'S rights to seek damages against OWNER for above stated losses.
20. RIGHT OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION: OWNER or OWNER'S Agent by themselves or with others, may enter, inspect and/or repair the premises at any time in case of emergency
or suspected abandonment. OWNER shall give 24 hours advance notice and may enter for the purpose of showing the premises during normal business hours to prospective renters, 
buyers, lenders, for smoke alarm inspections, and/or for normal inspection and repairs. OWNER is permitted to make all alterations, repairs and maintenance that in OWNER'S 
judgment is necessary to perform. In addition, OWNER has the right to enter pursuant to Civil Code Section 1954. If the work performed requires that RESIDENT temporarily vacate the 
unit, then RESIDENT shall vacate for this temporary period upon being served a 7-day notice by OWNER. RESIDENT agrees that in such event RESIDENT will be solely compensated 
by a corresponding reduction in the rent for those many days that RESIDENT was temporarily displaced. No other compensation shall be due to the RESIDENT. If the work to be 
performed requires the cooperation of the RESIDENT to perform certain tasks, then RESIDENT shall perform those tasks upon receiving a 24-hour written notice. {EXAMPLE:
removing food items from cabinets so that the unit may be sprayed for pests.) Upon 24 hours notice, RESIDENT hereby agrees to lend OWNER the keys to the premises for the 
purpose of having a duplicate made for OWNER'S use. 
21. ASSIGNMENT: RESIDENT agrees not to transfer, assign or sublet the premises or any part thereof and hereby appoints and authorizes the OWNER as his agent and/or by 
OWNER'S own authority to evict any person claiming possession by way of any alleged assignment or subletting. 
22. PARTIAL INVALIDITY: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as waiving any of RESIDENT'S or OWNER'S rights under the law. If any part of this Agreement
shall be in conflict with the law, that part shall be void to the extent that it is in conflict, but shall not invalidate this Agreement nor shall it affect the validity or enforceability of any other 
provision of this Agreement. 
23. NO WAIVER: OWNER'S acceptance of rent with knowledge of any default by RESIDENT or waiver by OWNER of any breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of subsequent breaches. Failure to require compliance or to exercise any right shall not be construed as a waiver by OWNER of said term, condition, and/or right, 
and shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 
24. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If any legal action or proceeding be brought by either party to this agreement, the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for all reasonable attorneys' fees up to 
but not more than $500 in addition to other damages awarded. 
25. ABANDONMENT: California Civil Code Section 1951.2 shall govern Abandonment. If any rent has remained unpaid for 14 or more consecutive days and the OWNER has a
reasonable belief of abandonment of the premises, OWNER shall give 18 days written notice to RESIDENT at any place {including the rented premises) that OWNER has reason to 
believe RESIDENT may receive said notice of OWNER'S intention to declare the premises abandoned. RESIDENT'S failure to respond to said notice as required by law shall allow 
OWNER to reclaim the premises. 
26. The undersigned RESIDENTS are jointly and severally responsible and liable for all obligations under this agreement and shall indemnify OWNER for liability caused by the actions 
{omission or commission) of RESIDENTS, their guests and invitees. 
27. Pursuant to Section 1785.26 of the California Civil Code, as required by law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit history may be
submitted to a credit reporting agency, if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligation. RESIDENT expressly authorizes OWNER/AGENT (including a collection agency) to obtain
Resident's consumer credit report, which OWNER/AGENT may use if attempting to collect past due rent payments, late fees, or other charges from Resident, both during the term of 
the Agreement and thereafter. 
28. Lead Warning Statement Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based paint. Lead from paint paint chips and dust pose health hazards if not managed properly. Lead
exposure is especially harmful to young children and pregnant women. Before renting pre-1978 housing, OWNERS must disclose the presence of known lead-based paint hazards in
the dwelling. RESIDENTS must also receive a federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning prevention. 

O�NDf AGENT DISCLOSURE (Initial) 
� OWNER'S initials {on left) mean OWNER has no knowledge of lead-based paint and/or lea�ed hazards in or on the Premises and OWNER has no reports or 
records pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in or on the Premises, and U RENTER'S initial (on left) indicate that RENTER has 
received a copy of a "Protect Your Family from Lead In Your Home", and that RENTER shall notify OWNER promptly in writing of any 
deteriorating and/or peeling paint. 

29. MOLD: The OWNER/AGENT has inspected the unit prior to lease and knows of no damp or wet building materials and knows of no mold contamination. Resident agrees to
accept full responsibinty and maintain the premises in a manner that prevents the occurrence of an infestation of mold in the premises. Resident also agrees to immediately 
report to the OWNER/AGENT any evidence of water leaks, excessive moisture or lack of proper ventilation and evidence of mold that cannot be removed by deaning. 

� 
AOA Form No. 101-OAKLAND (Revised 7/17) - Copyright 2010-Apartment Owners Association of California, Inc. - www.aoausa.com 

• San Fernando Valley (81K) 988-9200 • Los Angeles (323) 937-KKI I • Long Beach (562) 597-2422 • Garden Grove (714) S39-6000 • San Diego (619) 2K0-7007 • Northern California (SIOI 769-7521 

000102



31. NOTICES: All notices to RESIDENT shall be served at RESIDENTS apartment I house whether or not RESIDENT is present at the time of delivery and all notices to OWNER / 
AUTHORIZED PERSON shall be served by first class mailing to: 

Person Authorized To Manage Property: 
Name ____________ Address, __________________________________ _ 
Phone Number ___________ _ 
Owner of property or a person who Is authorized to act for and on behalf of the owner for the purpose of service of process and for the purpose of receiving and receipting 
for all notices and demands. 
Name ____________ Address. __________________________________ _ 
Phone Number ___________ _ 
Person or Entity Authorized to Receive Payment of Rent: 
Name. ____________ Address. __________________________________ _ 
Phone Number ___________ _ 
32. INVENTORY: The APartment contains the following items for use by RESIDENT: . ...:Sut.._o..,v,..e:;;...Jru.e::.it.LCu.i0.1.JP.::.Cua;J.JtuO.LJ[c__ ____________ _ 

RESIDENT further acknowledges that the subject premises are furnished with the additional furnishings listed on the attached inventory and that said attached inventory is hereby 
made part of this agreement 
33. Proposilion 65 Notice: Warning: Some areas may contain chemicals known to the State of California to cause cancer, birth defects or other reproductive harm. 
34. Notice is hereby given of the existence or the Residential Rent Arbitration Board (RRAB) and the Rent Arbitration Program of the City of Oakland, the office of which is located at 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 5ti Floor, Oakland, CA, 94612, phone number (510) 238-3721. The Rent Arbitration Program (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22) lease addendum is 
attached to this lease and acknowledged in number 35 below as a lease addendum notifying tenants of the Notice to Tenants regarding Oakland's Rent Adjustment Program). In the 
event that Owner/Agent elects not to implement an annual rent adjustment, the ONner/agent hereby advises Tenant that Owner/agent elects to bank any such rent adjustment to future 
year(s) pursuant to the provisions of the Oakland Rent Arbitration Ordinance. 
Note: Tenant and landlord has adopted, and agree to comply with Measure EE • Just Cause Eviction· Ordinance for the City of Oakland, CA., which requires landlords of specified 
residential properties, the right to evict a tenant only for reasons specified in the measure, such as non-payment of rent, breach of lease, damaging premises, drug or other illegal 
activity, disorderly conduct, rehabilitation of unit, landlord or relative occupancy, except in certain circumstances where the tenant is disabled, elderly or catastrophically ill. Further, the 
ordinance provides for damages, penalties and attorneys' fees against landlords who violate this law. Should Tenant violate any portion of the ordinance, Landlord may exercise his/her 
right to evict tenant for damages, penalties and attorneys' fees. 

35. RESIDENT acknowledges receipt of the following, which shall be deemed a part of this Agreement: (Please check) 

House Rules 
Laundry Rules 
Mailbox Keys 

Pet Agreement 
Pool Rules 
Apartment Keys 

i Garage Door Opener 
Notice to Tenants: Oakland's Rent Adjustment Program 
Information About Bed Bugs Sheet 

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between OWNER and RESIDENT. No oral agreements have been entered into, and all modifications or 
notices shall be in writing to be valid. The undersigned Residents are jointly and severally responsible for all obligations under this agreement and shall indemnify Owner for liability 
caused by the actions (omission or commission) of residents, their guests and invitees. Renter has relied on his own judgment in entering into this agreement. 
37. NOTICE: Pursuant to Section 290.46 of the Penal Code, information about specified registered sex offenders is made available to the public via an Internet Web site maintained by 
the Department of Justice at www.meganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on an offendefs criminal history, this information will include either the address at which the offender resides or the 
community of residence and ZIP Code in which he or she resides. 
38. RECEIPT OF AGREEMENT: The undersigned RESIDENT hereby certifies that he/she is fluent in the English language and has read and completely understands this Agreement 
and hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of this "Rental Agreement and/or Lease."( __ ) RESIDENT'S initials: 
OR Pursuant to California Civil Code 1632, which requires translation of specified contracts or agreements that are negotiated in Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog 
or Korean: ~ 1,. 
( }big '4,J Resident'p lni Is on left hereby acknowledge that this agreement was translated reted in their foreign language of: S()<A O I { rJ 

Cl~ ""J V l o lf/~l.//17 
Date 

/24/17 Marla Ar,1e?1";t" 8"-24-r~ 
Resident > Date 

Owner/Agent Date 
<r.,te..--,,..l/&k'.'}.Lr'le_> 

Date 

Owner/Agent Date 
JOVOlt'.11 ~~lO\ S-'2 'f-J~ 

Resident Date 

NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR THE ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL ADVICE, CONSULT 
YOUR ATTORNEY. 

~ 
AOA Form No. 101-OAKLAND (ReV1sed 7117) - Copyrtgh12010 -Apartrrent Owners Association of California. Inc. -www.aoausa.com 

• San Fcm:mdo Valley (SIM) <JMH-9200 • Los Arisck!i.(323) 937-881 I • Lon!: Beach (562) 597-2422 • Ganlcn Grove {714) 539-6000 • San Diego (619) 21-:0-7007 • Northern Cahfornia (510) 769-7521 

000103



CITY OF OAKLAND 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Department of Housing and Community Development 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program r·RAP") that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. For more information on 
which units are covere~ contact the RAP office. 

• Starting on February l, 2017, an owner must petition the RAP for any rent increase that is more than the 
annual general rent increase ("'CPI increase") or allowed ··banked" rent increases. These include capital 
improvements and operating expense increases. For these types of rent increases, the owner may raise your 
rent only after a hearing officer has approved the increase. No annual rent increase may exceed I 0%. You 
have a right to contest the proposed rent increase by responding to the owner's petition. You do not have 
to file your own petition. 

• Contesting a Rent Increase: You can file a petition with the RAP to contest unlawful rent increases or 
decreased housing services. To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition ( 1) within ninety (90) days 
of the notice of rent increase if the owner also provided this Notice to Tenants with the notice of rent 
increase; or (2) within 120 days of the notice of rent increase if this Notice to Tenants was not given with 
the notice of rent increase. If the owner did not give this Notice to Tenants at the beginning of your 
tenancy, you must file a petition within ninety (90) days of first receiving this Notice to Tenants. 
Infonnation and the petition forms are available from the RAP drop-in office at the Housing Assistance 
Center: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6th Floor, Oakland and at: 
http://www2.oak1andnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdiustment. 

• If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 
If the increase is approved and you did not pay the increase, you will owe the amount of the increase 
retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more infonnation contact the RAP office. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the 
tenant portion of the fee. 

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance {"TPO") to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

• The owner fl is Jll. is not pennitted to set the initial rent on this unit without limitations (such as 
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act). If the owner is not pennitted to set the initial rent without limitation, 
the rent in effect when the prior tenant vacated was _1~7_9_1 __ 

NANTS' SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 
• Smoking (circle one) JS or pennitted in Unit 1791 . the unit you intend to rent. 
• Smoking (circle one) IS or ....... ~ ...... pennitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking uniL<t 

exist in tenant's buildin isl ofunils in which smoking is penniltcd.) 
• There (circle one) IS o SN a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ____ . 

Mar\ a Amezovifa l received a copy of this notice on __ ·tg_-_'2._t{_-_\ T __ 
(Date) (Tenant's signaturefr 

Jlti)}Ji• {!ltJillf) ifUllfJrfflflJiiUIJ§ffllj ~ Jtfi&*o ffllj(flt (510) 238-3721 *fl>iilJ*o 
La Notificaci6n del Derecho del lnquilino esta disponible en espanol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 

Revised 2/10/17 

000104



CIUDAD DE OAKLAND 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Departamento de Desarrollo Comunitario y Vivienda 
Programa de Ajustes en el Alquiler TEL. (510) 238-3721 

FAX (510) 238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

A VISO A LOS INQUILINOS DEL PROGRAMA DE AJUSTES EN EL ALQUILER 
RESIDENCIAL 

• Oakland tiene un Programa de Ajustes en el Alquiler (Rent Adjustment Program, RAP) que limita )os 
aumentos en el a)quiler (Capitulo 8.22 del C6digo Municipal de Oakland) y cubre a la mayoria de las 
unidades residenciales en alquiler construidas antes de 1983. Para mas informaci6n sobre las viviendas 
cubicrtas, contacte a la oficina del RAP. 

• A partir del 1 ° de febrero de 2017, un propietario debe presentar una petici6n ante el RAP para todo 
aumento en el a)quiler que sea mayor que el aumento general anua1 en el alquiler f'aumento CPr') o 
permitido que Jos aumentos en el alquiler sean "'invertidos". Estos incluyen mejoras de capital y aumentos 
en los gastos operativos. En lo que respecta a este tipo de aumentos, el propietario puede aumentar su 
alquiler solo despucs de quc un funcionario de audicncia haya autorizado el incrcmcnto. Ningim aumento 
anual en el alquiJer podra exceder el 10%. Usted tiene derecho a disputar el aumento en el alquiler 
propuesto respondiendo a la peticion del propietario. No es indispensable que usted presente su propia 
petici6n. 

• Como disputar un aumento en el alquiler: Puede presentar una petici6n ante el RAP para disputar 
aumentos ilicitos en el alquiler o la disminuci6n de servicios en la vivienda. Para disputar el aumento en el 
alquiler, debe prcscntar una petici6n ( 1) en un plazo de (90) dias a partir de la fecha del aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si el propietario tambien proporcion6 este Aviso a los lnquilinos con la notificaci6n del 
aumento en el alquiler; o (2) en un plazo de 120 dias a partir de la fecha de recepcion del aviso de aumento 
en el alquiler si este Aviso a los lnquilinos no fue entregado con la notificaci6n de aumento en el alquiler. 
Si el propietario no entrego este Aviso a los lnquilinos al inicio del periodo de arrendamiento, debera 
presentar una solicitud en un plazo de (90) dias a partir de la fecha en que recibi6 por primera vez este 
Aviso a los lnquilinos. Encontrara informaci6n y formularios disponib)es en la oficina de) RAP en el 
Centro de Asistencia de Vivienda: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6° Piso, Oakland; tambien puede visitar: 
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdiustment. 

• Si usted disputa un aumento en el alquiler, debe pagar su alquiler con el aumento disputado hasta que 
prcsente la petici6n. Si el aumento es aprobado y usted no lo pag6, adeudara la suma del incremcnto 
retroactivo a la fecha de inicio de vigencia del aumento. 

• Oakland tiene controles de desalojo (Ordenanza de Desalojo por Causa Justa y Reglamentos, O.M.C. 8.22) 
que limitan los motivos de desalojo en las viviendas cubiertas. Para mas informaci6n contacte la oficina 
RAP. 

• Oakland les cobra a los propietarios una Tarifa de Servicio del Programa de Alquiler (Rent Program 
Service Fee) por vivienda al ai\o. Si la tarifa se paga a tiempo, el propietario tienc derecho a cobrar la mitad 
del costo de esta tarifa al inquilino. No se requiere que los inquilinos de viviendas subsidiadas paguen la 
porci6n del inquilino de la tarifa. 

• Oakland posee una Ordenanza de Protecci6n al Inquilino (Tenant Protection Ordinance, TPO) para impedir 
el comportamiento abusivo por parte de propietarios y para ofrecerles a los inquilinos recursos legales en 
instancias donde han sido victimas de comportamiento abusivo por parte de propietarios (O.M.C. 
8.22.600). (Ordenanza del Concejo Municipal No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

• El propietario Il tiene JlL no tiene permitido establecer el alquiler inicial de esta vivienda sin 
limitaciones (por ejemplo, de conformidad con la Ley Costa-Hawkins). Si el propietario no tiene permitido 
establecer el alquiler inicial sin limitaciones, el alquiler vigente cuando el inquilino anterior desaloj6 la 
vivienda era de 2016 

Modificado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap201702b SP 

000105



INFORMACION A LOS INQUJLINOS SOHRE LAS POLiTICAS PARA FUMADORES 

• Fumar (encierre en un circulo) ESTA @TA permitido en la Vivienda ____ . la vivienda que usted 
pretendc alquilar. 

• Fumar (encierre en un circulo) EST A ~TA permitido en otras viviendas de su edificio. (Si hay disponibilidad 
de ambas viviendas, fumador y no furn • en el ediflcio del inquilino, adjunte una lista de las viviendas en donde se 
permite fumar.) C7:J 

• (Encierreen un circulo), HAY o~Y un area designada al aire libre para fumar. Se encuentra en ___ _ 

Rccibi una copia de este aviso el Z -2.-4 - \J M 0. 'f \ G\ Am~II j.fa 
(Fecha) (Finna dcl inquilino) 

Jli:6UiW-(Jl:Jl■) ;:f;ffl~ffi~Jill~•Pn~c:p Xlli*o RD:11 (510) 238-3721 fHl'jtllJ,tto 
La Notificacion del Derecho del lnquilino esta disponible en espanol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 

Modificado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap20 I 702b SP 

000106



RECEIPIENT:

May Fong

LOCATION:

1791 28th Ave

Oakland

SENDER:

Michael Mehreteab Electric

6119 Market St, Oakland, Ca 94608

Phone: (510) 978- 2489

Replace burnt outlet in living room due to overloaded circuit.  Checked circuit breaker for damages.         $200 

Received payment 5/9/18

Job #29

RECEIVED 05/10/18MICHAEL MEHRETEAB
ELECTRIC

EXHIBIT B

000107



SPECIAL SERVICES CUSTOMER INVOICE
Notice of Cancellation (see Exhibit A) may be sent to this address:
HOME DEPOT U.S.A., INC.
Store 0639 COLMA II
2 COLMA BLVD
COLMA, CA 94014

Phone: (650) 755-9600
Salesperson: kxh6ggf
Reviewer: sv995

S
O

LD
 T

O

Name Phone 1

MAY FONG        MAY FONG (415) 812-9908

Address 358 CERRO CT Phone 2

Company Name

City DALY CITY Job Description 1791
State CA Zip 94015 County SAN MATEO

REPRINT

2018-05-09 14:00

WILL-CALL MERCHANDISE PICK-UP

		Will-Call items will be held in the store for 7 days only.

Check your current order status online at

		www.homedepot.com/orderstatus

FOR WILL CALL
 MERCHANDISE PICK-UP

 PROCEED TO WILL CALL OR
 SERVICE DESK AREA

(Pro Customers, Proceed To The Pro Desk)

-

CUSTOMER PICKUP #1 MERCHANDISE AND SERVICE SUMMARY We reserve the right to limit the quantities of merchandise
sold to customers

REF # W02 SKU # 0000-515-664 Customer Pickup / Will Call
S.O. MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: S/O MILGARD MFG INC REF # S01 ESTIMATED ARRIVAL DATE: 05/30/2018 P.O. #39505099

REF # SKU QTY UM DESCRIPTION PI TAX PRICE EACH EXTENSION
S0101 0000-301-390 0.00 EA NA / SINGLE SLIDER 29.5 X 47.5 VINYL XO / SINGLE SLIDER29.5 X

47.5VINYLXO{#1}
A N $269.07 $0.00*

SCHEDULED PICKUP DATE:  Will be scheduled upon arrival of all S/O Merchandise MERCHANDISE TOTAL: $0.00
END OF CUSTOMER PICKUP - REF #W02

CUSTOMER PICKUP #2
REF # W04 SKU # 0000-515-664 Customer Pickup / Will Call

S.O. MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: S/O MILGARD MFG INC REF # S03 ESTIMATED ARRIVAL DATE: 05/31/2018 P.O. #39505130
REF # SKU QTY UM DESCRIPTION PI TAX PRICE EACH EXTENSION
S0303 0000-301-390 1.00 EA NA / SINGLE SLIDER 29.5 X 47.5 VINYL XO / SINGLE SLIDER29.5 X

47.5VINYLXO{#1}
A Y $220.57 $220.57*

SCHEDULED PICKUP DATE:  Will be scheduled upon arrival of all S/O Merchandise MERCHANDISE TOTAL: $220.57
END OF CUSTOMER PICKUP - REF #W04

* Indicates item markdown

Page 1 of 2

Page 1 of 2 Customer CopyNo. H0639-111901

No. H0639-111901EXHBIT C

000108



TOTAL CHARGES OF ALL MERCHANDISE & SERVICES
ORDER TOTAL $220.57

SALES TAX $19.30
TOTAL $239.87

BALANCE DUE $0.00

   Policy Id (PI):
   A: 90 DAYS DEFAULT POLICY;

   'The Home Depot reserves the right to limit / deny returns. Please see the return policy sign in stores for details.'

END OF ORDER No. H0639-111901

Page 2 of 2

Page 2 of 2

Name: MAY FONGSPECIAL SERVICES CUSTOMER INVOICE - Continued

Customer CopyNo. H0639-111901

No. H0639-111901

000109



10/7/19, 8)01 PMAT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue

Page 1 of 2about:blank

Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue

From: May Fong (mayfong@pacbell.net)

To: HBarron@oaklandnet.com

Date: Friday, June 15, 2018, 9:55 AM PDT

Hi Hugo! 

The inspection passed on Wednesday. 

Please confirm the case has been abated. 

Thx 

May
Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 6, 2018, at 8:33 AM, Barron, Hugo <HBarron@oaklandnet.com> wrote:

Not, you need to call 238-3444 and schedule a final inspection once the permit is final
please call me and let me know. Hugo.

 

From: May Fong [mailto:mayfong@pacbell.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 05, 2018 12:47 PM
To: Barron, Hugo <HBarron@oaklandnet.com>
Subject: Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue

 

Hi Hugo!

 

I wanted to find if you are able to pass my inspection for my windows since you were at the unit
yesterday?

 

Thanks.

 

May

 

From: May Fong <mayfong@pacbell.net>

EXHIBIT C

------- --- -- -------

-- --- -------

000110

mailto:HBarron@oaklandnet.com
mailto:mayfong@pacbell.net
mailto:HBarron@oaklandnet.com
mailto:mayfong@pacbell.net


10/7/19, 8)01 PMAT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue

Page 2 of 2about:blank

To: "hbarron@oaklandnet.com" <hbarron@oaklandnet.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 2, 2018 2:49 PM
Subject: Case 1801330 1783-28th Avenue

 

<image001.jpg>

 

To Inspector Barron,
 
I received the above reference complaint.  Please find attached the notice I sent to the tenants
regarding a violation you have included.  I was made aware of the dumping on April 18th by a tenant,
not by Luis Ayala.  I verified the issues and contacted Luis regarding the violations he has caused  and
sent over the notices.  Mr. Ayala has never complained to me regarding electrical or cabinet issues.  I
was made aware of the window and my handyman will repair the drawers in the kitchen and window
well as today.  My electrician will take care of the electrical on Friday and I already had made
arrangements for bulky item pickup next Wednesday.  I warned the tenant with the red van not to park
at the lawn and I installed yellow parking bumpers to prevent cars from entering the lawn as per
picture.  I also installed security cameras in hopes to prevent the dumping and illegal car parking.
 
I will send you the confirmation that everything is taken care of and you can reinspect by May 14th.
 
Thanks.
 
 
May
 

 

 

000111

mailto:hbarron@oaklandnet.com
mailto:hbarron@oaklandnet.com


EXHIBIT D
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7OC44AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 

Owner rents to Tenants and Tenants rent from Owner the Premises subject to the following terms and conditions. 

Owner 

Agent for 
Rent & Notices 

Tenants 

Premises 

Rent 

Parking 

Storage 

Rent Payments 

Security Deposit 

Late Charge 

Returned 
Payment 

Term of Tenancy 

Pets 

Owner's Utilities 

Tenant's Utilities 

Appliances & 

Fixtures 

Use and 
Occupancy 

Terms of Tenancy 

J O 5 e... r \, -s. m 0- v- \) vl c__ 3 

los~os 
~(}Jf 12/29/2014 

.Sct....,.\,V\;:€.....- Q-5 a:..\) cc.J-e (Name) 

I e, I 4- ·z_g TC\ I~ tJ L Oa.-KlCL vv::l C < (L ' Ot % C, I . (~I~) 

sz O -3 qk - i 9 i:\-:::J, .J s \~'\ G ~ \ d ~__\,\ \Ao U,,,,\1"<':, 1£ G i!V!C(.c I (Phone & Email) 

~la.. • 0-.. V. N e ... J..J o,_v--Q,· (Name) I I -2I;'·- 1 'l (DOB) 

-L.....>...--'-----'--~'-""-"~--'r=~~:..,.._-e...5.'--"""-------
(Name) ~5_-_l 'l~--9~':J~·-___ (DOB) 

-----'i==-----'-e;=-:--,r---'--,l--'-=\0......-=-=\A.'-==-'"..c_.-\__._--"'·e_=-u=-Q.--"---'\-r-'e...,~----(Name) ___._i 0-'---·, __ -_,_I """S_·_· L--'-.1-J1'----- (DOB) 

_C...~e...=s~·~G,)~><-__ N'-1-"'--e~,u_"_a.....~Y-_e...._:3 ________ (Name)-----'l_c,'-----;t~t.1_-_0_, t.t ............ __ (DOB) 

______________________ {Name) _________ (DOB) 

X \ '1 9 l 2..S 7v\ ii.\ 0e__v\ Ll:€ .. t O a,\: ~ Q ,v\ c\ C 0, 94:lo I (Address) 

$ 8 9 5 < ~ per month payable in advance on the l 6 t day of each month. 

Parking space assigned -0'+->-~s ___ . Monthly charge$ N A 

Storage space assigned -~+.e__,_£.......,. __ . Monthly charge $ N f'.\ 
D Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) 

m'Personal check 

rn'tashier's check or money order 

~sh 

$ 800:_q_,. 

, payable with monthly rent. 

. payable with monthly rent 

'0'\ 
if Owner does not receive rent in full v.iithin b days after the due date. 

2.C- __ OC> 
$_~-:;~ •" ___ in the event any check or other form of payment by Tenant is returned for lack of sufficient 

funds, a "stop payment" or any other reason. 

The Tenancy begins on De(,, I ~() (8..and ends on •/Y)o:.¼'. 3O,J,Ol'2.and thereafter continues on a month-to-

month basis until terminated. . 

Approved pets __ ...... \\!....i..;tJ=---'?----"e.....=......c\-s ___________________ _ 

Owner pays for __ W-~Q~L,;=~~'.£,~1~-----~--8-c---1-. _CL_'r __ \o_Qfj_:--+-~r::-===~------------
1 -, \ I <.. 

Tenant pays for G CL<;,. G I:=. -e__c_.r: \~LG 

Owner provides S to_ U ~ f! (3' e...G V tg ~Y u...,+; Y-

General Terms and Conditions of Tenancy 

The Premises are to be occupied and used only as a private residence by Tenants, without Owner's prior written 

consent, subject to applicable state and local laws. Occupancy by additional persons for more than two weeks in 

any six-month period is prohibited without Owner's written consent. Violation of the provisions of this Section is a 

substantial violation of a material term of the tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

I have reviewed this page_ N .-1l_ _____ (Tenant initials) 

Page 1 of4 

000112



DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Rent 

Late Payments 

Returned 
Payments 

Individual 
Liability 

Failure to Pay 

Security Deposit 

Subletting 

Parking 

Storage 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
Rent will be paid in full to Owner or Owner's agent without offsets, deductions or credits Tenant bears the risk of 
loss or delay of any mailed payment. Owner reserves the righl to refuse any partial payment. Payment will be 
applied to any outstanding obligation of Tenant to Owner, notwithstanding any other designation by Tenant. 

Tenant will pay Owner a late charge if rent is not received on time. By accepting a late charge, Owner does not 
waive the right lo insist on payment of the rent in full on the due date Tenant and Owner agree that the late 
charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of costs incurred by Owner in this circumstance. Tenant and 
Owner agree U,at paying rent more than five days late on three separate occasions in any 12-month period is a 
substantial violation of a material term of the tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

Tenant will pay Owner a returned payment fee In the event any check or other form of payment offered by Tenant 
to Owner 111 payment of ren1 or any other amount due under this Agreement is returned for lack of sufficient funds, 
a "stop payme111" or any other reason. Tenant and Owner agree that this amount represents a fair and reasonable 
estimate of costs incurred by Owner in this circumstance. A returned check may constitute late payment of rent. In 
the event of a returned check, Owner reserves the right to demand payment by money order or certified funds for 
the current and all future payments. 

Each person who signs this Agreement, whether or not they remain in possession of the Premises, will be jointly 
and severally liable for the full performance of this Agreement, including the payment of all rent due and the 
payment of costs to remedy damages to the Premises caused by Tenant. guests or invitees. 

As required by law, Tenant is notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit record may be 
submitted lo a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations, such as your 
ob!igations under the terms of this Agreement. 

Tenant may not apply the security deposit to the last month's rent or to any other sum due under this Agreement. 
Within two weeks after Tenant has vacated the Premises, Owner will furnish Tenant with an itemized written 
statement of the reasons for, and the dollar amount of, any of the security deposit retained by the Owner, along 
with a check for any deposit balance. Under Section 1950.5 of the California Civil Code, Owner may withhold only 
that portion of Tenant's security deposit necessary to: (1) remedy any default by Tenant in the payment of rent; (2) 
repair damages to the Premises exclusive of ordinary wear and tear; and (3) clean the Premises if necessary. 
Under state and local law, no Interest payments are required on security deposits. 

Tenant will not sublet any part of the Premises or assign this agreement without the prior written consent of 
Owner. The named Tenants are the only "Original" Tenants. No person other than the named Tenants will be 
permitted to regularly or continuously use or occupy the Premises unless all of the following conditions are met: 1) 
Tenant notifies Owner in writing, signed by every Tenant, stating a request to have a new person occupy the 
Premises; 2) said prospective occupant completes and gives to Owner Owner's rental application; 3) Owner 
approves of the prospective occupant's creditworthiness and references from prior landlords; and 4) the new 
occupant signs Owner's Change of Tenant Agreement for such occupancy before occupying the Premises, which 
agreement will include a provision that the new occupant will abide by and perform all the obligations of this 
Agreement. The rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last Original Tenant(s) moves from 
the Premises. 

In the event that Owner consents to any sub-tenancy, it is hereby agreed that the Original Tenant may not charge 
more to the sub-tenan1(s) than that proportional share of the rent which is being charged by and paid to Owner. 

No action or inac ·on or acceptance of rent or knowledge on the part of Owner will be deemed to be a waiver of 
the provision of this Section on the part of Owner and will not be deemed an approval of any person as a 'sub
tenant" for any purpose. 

The assigned parking space Is for the exclusive use of the Tenants and may be used for the parking of motor 
vehicles only. No vehicle longer than 20 feet may be parked in the Space. Any motor vehicle maintenance or 
repair performed in the Space, or any other use of the property without the prior consent of Owner, is prohibited. 

Owner will not be liable for any damage done by bursting, leaking or running of any gas or water or any plumbing 
fixture in, above, upon or oboul the parking lot; for damage by water, snow or ice being upon or coming off the lot; 
damage arising from acts or neglect of other occupants of the lot or other motor vehicles; or theft or vandalism by 
others. It is encouraged that Tenants purchase insurance to cover the above-mentioned instances. 

Tenants release Owner from any liability for loss or damage to Tenants' property while stored on the Premises. 
Any property stored in designated storage areas shall be removed on or before the date of termination of tenancy. 
In the event such property is not so removed, Owner may dispose of same without any liability to Tenants. 
Tenants waive any rights as defined in Civil Code Section 1980 et. seq. Owner reserves the right to inspect all 
such storage areas and require necessary removal or clean up as deemed necessary for the health and safety of 
the Premises, the building and/or its occupants. No storage of any kind will be permitted on fire escapes or in 
other common areas. 

I have reviewed this page __ _l"1 ~-----(Tenant initials) 

Page 2 of 4 

-------- -----
000113

mayfong
Highlight

mayfong
Highlight



DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Condition of 
Premises 

Appliances and 
Fixtures 

Pets 

Trash 

Owner's Access 

Extended 
Absences 

Quite Enjoyment 

Repairs and 
Alterations 

Financial 
Responsibility 

Water-filled 
Furniture 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
Tenant agrees to: (1) keep the Premises clean a:id sanitary and in good repair and, upon termination of the 
tenancy, to return the Premises to Owner in a condition identical to thal which existed when Tenant took 
occupancy, excep for ordinary wear and tear; (2) immediately notify Owner of any defects or dangerous 
conditions in and about the Premises of which they become aware; and (3) reimburse O 1mer, on demand by 
Owner. for the cost of any repairs to the Premises damaged by Tenant or Tenant's guests or invitees through 
misuse or neglect. 

Tenant acknowledges u1at all appliances, window and floor coverings. attached light fixtures. and other attached 
or semi-attached items are the property of Owner. 

Only Approved Pets are allowed on or about the Premises. Owner may require a photo of all Approved Pets. No 
other animals are allowed even temporarily or with a guest, without Owner's prior written consent. excepting 
guide, service or signal dogs pursuant to California Civil Code Sections 54.1 and 54.2. Stray animals shall not be 
kept or fed in or around the Building Strays can be dangerous and Owner must be notified immediately of any 
strays in or around the Building. 

Approved Pets are not permitted outside Tenant's unit unless on a leash. Tenant agrees to immediately clean up 
any defecation in a sanitary manor. tf Tenant fails to prevent any infestations of neas, ticks, or other creatures. 
Tenant may be charged for cleaning, de-fleaing, deodorizing or shampooing any portion of the building or 
Premises. Tenant shall not permit the pets to cause any discomfort, annoyance, nuisance, or in any other way 
inconvenience any other Tenant. Any "mess" created by the Pet(s) shall immediately be cleaned up by Tenant. 
Tenant shall be liable to Owner, and shall defend Owner, hold Owner harmless, and indemnify Owner for all 
injuries. damages, expenses. losses or obligations of any kind incurred by or in connection with the pet. 

Tenant agrees to dispose of their ordinary household trash by placing it in the Waste Management containers for 
periodic collection. Tenant agrees to dispose of extraordinary trash, such as damaged iurniture, broken 
appliances and the like, by immediately hauling it to the dump themselves or by paying someone else to remove 
it. In the event that Tenant's trash is left outside the Premises, Owner will arrange to have ii removed at Tenant's 
expense. 

California law allows Owner to enter the Premises for certain purposes during normal business hours. Owner will 
provide written notice to Tenant prior to entering the Premises whenever required by state law (Civil Code Section 
1954). 

Tenant agrees to notify Owner in the event that Tenant will be away from the Premises for 14 consecutive days or 
more. During each absence, Owner may enter the Premises at times reasonably necessary to maintain the 
property and inspect for damage and needed repairs. 

Tenant will be entitled to quiet enjoyment of the Premises. Tenant and Tenant's guests or invitees will not use the 
Premises or adjacent areas in such a way as to: (1) violate any raw or ordinance, including raws prohibiting the 
use, possession or sale of illegal drugs; (2) commit waste or nuisance: or (3) annoy, disturb, inconvenience or 
interfere with the quiet enjoyment and peace and quiet of any other tenant or nearby resident. 

Tenant will not. without Owner's prior written consent. alter. re-key or install any locks to the Premises or install or 
alter any burglar alarm system, Tenant will provide Owner with a key or keys capable of unlocking all such re
keyed or new tocks as well as instructions on how to disarm any altered or new burglar alarm system. 

Except as provided by law or as authorized by the prior written consent of Owner, Tenant will not make or allow to 
be made any installation or modification of cable or telephone wiring, decorations (such as painting and 
wallpapering), alterations, or repairs (inclusively, "Changes") to the Premises. Tenant agrees to pay all costs of 
correcting any unauthorized Changes. 

Tenant agrees to accept financial responsibility for any loss or damage to personal property belonging to Tenant 
and Tenant's guests and invitees caused by theft, fire or any other cause Owner assumes no liability for any such 
loss. Owner recommends that Tenant obtain a renter's insurance polic;y from a recognized insurance firm to cover 
Tenant's liability. personal property damage and damage to the Premises. 

No waterbed or ofher item of water-filled furniture wilt be kept on the Premises. 

Smoke Detectors The Premises are equipped with functioning smoke detection devices. Tenant will be responsible for testing the 
devices weekly and immediately reporting any problems, maintenance or need for repairs to Owner. Tenant wiU 
not remove their batteries or otherwise disable them. 

Termination The tenancy may be terminated by Tenant by serving a 30-day written notice of termination upon Owner. and by 
Owner by serving a 30-day written notice of termination upon Tenant if Tenant has been in possession of the 
Premises for less than one year, or by serving a 60-day written notice of termination upon Tenant if Tenant has 
been in possession of the Premises for one year or longer. Any termination notice is subject to applicable local 
rent control ordinances and regulations. If the Premises are damaged by fire, flood. earthquake or any other 
cause so as to render them uninhabitable and therefore destroyed, the tenancy is terminated. 

I have reviewed this page_ Ji_~------- (Tenant initials} 

PageJ of4 

000114



DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Attorney Fees 

Megan's Law 

Notices 

Validity of Each 
Part 

Captions and 
Headings 

Application 

Attachments 

Entire 
Agreement 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 

In any action or legal proceeding to enforce any part of this Agreement, each party will be responsible for their 
own attorneys' fees and court costs, subject to subject to local rent control ordinances and regulations that may 
apply. 

Pursuant to Section 290.46 of the California Penal Code, inforrnation about specified regisiered sex offenders is 
made available to lhe public via an internet web site maintained by the Department of Justice at 
www.rneganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on an offender's criminal history, this information will include either the 
address at which the offender resides or the. community of residence and the ZIP code in which he or she resides. 

Any required notices may be delivered to Tenant at the Premises and to Owner or Agent for Rent and Notices. 

If any portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, its invalidity will no\ affect the validity or enforceability of any 
other provision of this Agreement. 

The captions and headings in this Agreement are included to improve readability and are not part of the terms or 
provisions of this Agreement. 

Any rental application or related document submitted by Tenant is incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 
Any misrepresentations contained therein will be considered a substantial violation of a material term of the 
tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

The following attachments are incorporated as part of this Agreement: 

Disclosure of Information on Lead-Based Paint and Lead-Based Paint Hazards 

Move-In-Move-Out Checklist 

Oakland Notice to Tenants 

EPA booklet entitled ''Protec\ Your Family from lead in Your Home• 

This document and Attachments identified above constitute the entire Agreement between the parties, and no 
promises or representations, other than those contained here and those implied by law, have been made by 
Owner or Tenant. Any modifications to this Agreement must be in writing signed by Owner and Tenant except that 
Owner may change the, terms of the tenancy and this Agreement pursuant to Civil Code Section 827. 

By: 

~0/4uti \i1j cXa'\; I I - 2,l,- IL 
Ow or Ag'fll Date 

-----------------
Te_ n t Date Tenant Date 

, \ ,! 11-;)_~ - 19-- ----------- ----
Tenant Date Tenant Date 

Tenant Date Tenant Date 

Tenant Date Tenant Date 

Receipt 

By signing above, Owner acknowledges having received, and Tenant acknowledges payment of, the following: 

Security Deposit: $ 

Rent. s for the period to 

Other: $ for 

Total received: $ payment method 

,<@\EB RH A 
~ EST.1939 .com 

Form provided by the East Boy Rental Housing Association"' 
www.ebrho.com -

Form Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month)© (06/11) 

Page 4 of 4 

@ 
HilJ4l lOQ.&llt 
OFPORTUHITT 

000115



NOTICE	  TO	  TENANTS	  AT	  28TH	  AVENUE	  

Dear	  Tenants,	  

I	  am	  writing	  in	  regards	  to	  the	  rules	  and	  maintenance	  of	  the	  building	  for	  1783-‐28th	  
Avenue.	   	  Thank	  you	   for	   those	  who	  have	  been	  doing	  their	  share	   in	  maintaining	  the	  
cleanliness	   of	   the	   building	   and	   property	   including	   the	   carport,	   yard	   and	   garbage	  
areas.	   	   Unfortunately,	   there	   seems	   to	   be	   some	   big	   problems	   we	   have	   been	   having	  
with	   the	   garbage	   and	   some	   tenants	   have	   been	   throwing	   diapers	   down	   their	  
windows	   to	   the	   back	   and	   sides	   of	   the	   building.	   	   I	   hope	   all	   tenants	   are	   aware	   that	  
garbage	   that	   is	   thrown	   on	   the	   property	   and	   not	   put	   in	   the	   proper	   containers	   will	  
cause	    huge	    rodent	    problems.	   According	    to	    the	    lease,	    each	    tenant	    has	    a	  
responsibility	   to	   maintain	   the	   property.	   	   As	   a	   courtesy	   to	   all	   the	   other	   tenants,	   
please	  do	  your	  share	  in	  keeping	  the	  property	  in	  good	  condition.	  

I	  want	  to	  clarify	  the	  rule	  that	  there	  is	  only	  1	  carport	  space	  per	  unit.	  	  If	  you	  have	  more	  
than	  1	  car,	  you	  must	  not	  park	  it	  in	  any	  of	  the	  carport	  space	  or	  yard.	  	  Your	  car	  must	  
be	  parked	  outside	  the	  gated	  area.	  	  	  

Since	  there	  seems	  to	  be	  some	  problems	  with	  the	  moving	  of	  the	  garbage	  container,	  I	  
will	   be	   looking	   into	   having	   individual	   garbage	   cans	   where	   each	   tenant	   would	   be	   
responsible	   for	   moving	   out	   their	   garbage	   container	   outside	   on	   garbage	   day.	   	   We	   
have	  recycle	  bins.	  	  Please	  be	  sure	  to	  use	  these	  for	  recycling	  plastic,	  glass	  and	  paper.	  	  
This	  will	  help	  the	  environment.	  

I	   will	   be	   slowly	   making	   repairs	   and	   improvement	   to	   the	   building	   to	   make	   the	   
property	  more	  beautiful.	  	  Please	  do	  your	  part	  in	  helping	  to	  improve	  our	  building.	  

I	  will	  be	  meeting	  with	  each	  tenant	  to	  sign	  leases.	  	  I	  do	  want	  to	  remind	  all	  tenants	  to	  
write	  down	  their	  unit	  address	  on	  the	  deposit	  slips	  when	  making	  your	  rent	  deposits	  
so	   I	   can	   credit	   you	   correctly.	   Please find attached the RAP sheet as required by the 
Oakland rent board in regards to your tenant rights.

Thank	  you	  for	  your	  attention	  and	  cooperation.	  

Sincerely,	  

May	  Fong	  
415-812-9908

EXHIBIT E

-----------
--.... 
~
 

000116



 

Revised 11/18/14 
 

    

    CITY OF OAKLAND 
 
P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Department of Housing and Community Development TEL  (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program  FAX (510) 238-6181 
  TDD (510) 238-3254 
 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

 

 Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 

Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized 

units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units. For more information 

on which units are covered, contact the RAP office.  

 You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual 

general rent increase (“CPI increase”). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits, 

for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases (“banking”). 

No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the 

reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing.  If the owner decreases 

your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial 

problems with the condition of a unit. 

 To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is 

later:  (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice 

To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, 6
th
 Fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment  

 If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 

After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have 

to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent 

you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will 

owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

 Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 

which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office. 

 Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 

owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent. 

Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenant portion of the fee. 

 Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance (“TPO”) to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 

tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 

8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

 
TENANTS’ SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 

 

 Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in Unit___________, the unit you intend to rent. 

 Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant’s building, attach a list of units in which smoking is permitted.) 

 There (circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ___________. 

 

I received a copy of this notice on _____________________       ___________________________ 

      (Date)   (Tenant’s signature) 

 

此份屋崙 (奧克蘭) 市租客權利通知書附有中文版本。請致電 (510) 238-3721 索取副本。  
La Notificación del Derecho del Inquilino está disponible en español. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 
Baûn Thoâng Baùo quyeàn lôïi cuûa ngöôøi thueâ trong Oakland naøy cuõng coù baèng tieáng Vieät. Ñeå coù moät 
baûn sao, xin goïi (510) 238-3721. 

17918 

000117

http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment


California Apartment Association Approved Form 
www.caanet.org 
Form 5.1-SV – Revised 12/14 - ©2014 – All Rights Reserved 
Page 1 of 1 

THIRTY-DAY NOTICE OF CHANGE OF MONTHLY RENT 

TO:           
All Residents (tenants and subtenants) in possession (full name) and all others in possession 

of the premises located at: 

  , Unit # (if applicable)
(Street Address) 

 , CA     .
(City) (Zip) 

You are hereby notified, in accordance with California Law, that 30 days after service upon you of this Notice, or 

  , whichever is later, your monthly rent which is payable in advance on or before the  
(Date) 

  day of each month, will be the sum of $   , instead of $  , the current monthly  
rent. 

Except as herein provided, all other terms of your tenancy shall remain in full force and effect. 

If you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations, a negative credit report may be submitted to a credit reporting agency. 

  
Date Owner/Agent

Proof of Service 
I,  the  undersigned,  being  at  least  18  years  of  age,  declare  that  I  served  this  notice,  of  which  this  is  a  true  copy,  on  the  ______  
day  of      (month),    (year),  on  the  above-mentioned  resident(s)  in  possession,  in  the  manner  indicated  below. (Select 
one) 

 BY MAILING by first class mail on said date a copy to each resident by depositing said copies in the United States Mail, in a sealed 
 envelope, with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the above-named resident(s) at their place of residence 

Place of Mailing:                                   Date of Mailing:                      

 BY  DELIVERING  a  copy  of  the  Notice  to   the  following  resident(s)   PERSONALLY:    
 BY LEAVING a copy for each of the above-named resident(s) with a person of suitable age and discretion at the residence or usual 

place of  business of the resident(s),  said  resident(s)  being  absent  thereof; 
AND  MAILING  by  first  class  mail  on  said  date  a  copy  to  each  resident  by  depositing  said  copies  in  the  United  States  
Mail,  in  a  sealed  envelope,  with postage  fully  prepaid,  addressed  to  the  above-named  resident(s)  at  their  place  of  

 residence. 
 BY  POSTING  a  copy  for  each  of  the  above-named  resident(s)  in  a  conspicuous  place  on  the  property  therein  described,  

there  being  no  person  of  suitable  age  or  discretion  to  be  found  at  any  known  place  of  residence  or  business  of  said  
 resident(s); 

AND  MAILING  by  first  class  mail  on  the  same  day  as  posted,  a  copy  to  each  resident  by  depositing  said  copies  in   the  
United  States  Mail,  in  a  sealed envelope  with  postage  fully  prepaid,  addressed  to  the  resident(s)  at  the  place  where  the  
property  is  situated. 

I  declare  under  penalty  of  perjury,  under  the  laws  of  the  State  of  California,  that  the  foregoing  is  true  and  correct  and  if  called  
as  a  witness  to  testify  thereto, I could do so competently. 

Executed this     day of    (month),     (year), in ____________________________ (city),    (state). 

 
Name of Declarant (Print) (Signature  of  Declarant)

San Francisco

Oakland

June Ca

2016

6/30/16

945

2016

1791-28th Avenue

May Fong

Nazana Nevarez, Teresa Vazques, Fernando Nevarez and Cesar Nevarez, et al

30th

San Francisco

6/30/16

995

✘

8/1/16

Printed Using formsRus.com On-Line Forms Software 12/14

1st

94601

30th

May Fong

June

/~ 

Unauthorized Reproduction 
of Blank Forms is Illegal. 

000118



 

Revised 11/18/14 
 

    

    CITY OF OAKLAND 
 
P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Department of Housing and Community Development TEL  (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program  FAX (510) 238-6181 
  TDD (510) 238-3254 
 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

 

 Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland 

Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized 

units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units. For more information 

on which units are covered, contact the RAP office.  

 You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual 

general rent increase (“CPI increase”). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits, 

for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases (“banking”). 

No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the 

reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing.  If the owner decreases 

your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial 

problems with the condition of a unit. 

 To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is 

later:  (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice 

To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, 6
th
 Fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment  

 If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition. 

After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have 

to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent 

you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will 

owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase. 

 Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22) 

which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office. 

 Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the 

owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent. 

Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenant portion of the fee. 

 Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance (“TPO”) to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give 

tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C. 

8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.S.) 

 
TENANTS’ SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 

 

 Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in Unit___________, the unit you intend to rent. 

 Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units 

exist in tenant’s building, attach a list of units in which smoking is permitted.) 

 There (circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ___________. 

 

I received a copy of this notice on _____________________       ___________________________ 

      (Date)   (Tenant’s signature) 

 

此份屋崙 (奧克蘭) 市租客權利通知書附有中文版本。請致電 (510) 238-3721 索取副本。  
La Notificación del Derecho del Inquilino está disponible en español. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. 
Baûn Thoâng Baùo quyeàn lôïi cuûa ngöôøi thueâ trong Oakland naøy cuõng coù baèng tieáng Vieät. Ñeå coù moät 
baûn sao, xin goïi (510) 238-3721. 

E3 
1 1 

000119

http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Government/o/hcd/o/RentAdjustment


TEXTS FROM LUIS 8/17/17 ESTABLISHED ILLEGALLY STAYING AT UNIT 

EXHIBIT F

< • Luis 

Aug 18, 2017, 5:50 PM 

Hey this luis I just had a 
question if is possible if 
you can change the 
apartment name under 
our name because my 
social worker is asking 
for the papers I was just 
trying to see if you can 
do us that favor 

Ok please send me the 
names of everyone on 
lease 

Aug 19, 2017, 7:09 AM 

Can you send the name 

tu1n 1Q ?n17 Q:.d:fl AM 

3:46 
◄ ...... 

< • Luis 

Aug 19, 2017, 9:40 AM 

Maria Amezquita Arceo 

Luis Cervantes 

Jovani Ayala Amezquita 

Linda Ayala Amezquita 

Luis David Ayala 
Amezquita 

Ruby Ayala Amezquita 

Jessica Ayala 
Amezquita 

7 people are living 
there? 

Aug 20, 2017, 6:02 AM 

3:46 . ...... 
< • Luis 

Aug 20, 2017, s,02 AM 

Luis I'm looking at the 
old lease and I don't see 
any of the names on the 
lease. I thought you 
were the son of Nazana 
Nevarez. 

How are you related to 
nazana? 

Aug 20, 2017, 10:SQ AM 

Hi Luis! Per my 
conversation with you 
and Nancy you are 
residing in the unit 
illegally as Nancy 
cannot allow or sublet 

3:<7 

< 

GJ 6') 0 GJ 6') 0 A 0 GJ 
aoee 

3:47 

< 

GD Q 

0 
Luis 

•• r. 

.,,? 

< 
3;47 

GD Q ee 
.,,? 

0 
Luis 

At this time there's 7 
people living in the unit 
and that is endangering 
the lives of you and 
ihose residing in the unit 
as well as my other 
tenants in the apartment 
complex. You must not 
allow more than 3 in the 
unit as it against 
housing code and a 
possible fire hazard. 

This is against the fire 
code 

Hey we are waiting for 
my mom to get out of 
work and I was trying to 
ask if we can pay less 

o a e> o 
aoee.~ GDoeer. 

r. 

< 
3;47 

• Luis 

Hey we are waiting for 
my mom to get out of 
work and I was trying to 
ask if we can pay less 
because we really want 
to stay here 

I will meet you on 
Thursday at 9am 

H~1e are l;Ome non 
profit organizations that 
can help you per our 
conversation 

Season of sharing 
Catholic charities 

Ok thank you 

.., '$'.,.ID 

• Luis 

Aug 20, 2017, 1039 AM 

000120



9/3/19, 5(33 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 07/08/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0262910428

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0262910428

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

EXHIBIT G
Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000121

javascript:void(0);
mayfong
Highlight



9/3/19, 5(34 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 06/05/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1476793191

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1476793191

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000122

javascript:void(0);
mayfong
Highlight



9/3/19, 5(34 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 05/06/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0317314036

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0317314036

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000123

javascript:void(0);
mayfong
Highlight



9/3/19, 5(35 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 04/05/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1750389378

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1750389378

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000124

javascript:void(0);


9/3/19, 5(35 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 03/06/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1789276445

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1789276445

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000125

javascript:void(0);


9/3/19, 5(36 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 02/05/2019

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 2740017444

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 2740017444

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000126

javascript:void(0);


9/3/19, 5(36 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 12/05/2018

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000127

javascript:void(0);


9/3/19, 5(37 PMBank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

Page 1 of 1https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear…e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351

Post date: 03/05/2018

Amount: 1,200.00

Type: Deposit

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0511268718

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 0511268718

Transaction
category:

Income: Deposits

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details

Bank of America~ Online Banking 

? 

000128

javascript:void(0);


CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING• 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board (HRRRB) 

CASE NUMBER: 

APPEAL HEARING: 

APPEAL DECISION 

T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong 

September 23, 2021 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

APPEARANCES: May Fong (Owner/Appellant) 
Samantha Beckett (Tenant Representative/Respondent) 
Maria Amezquita (Tenant/Respondent) 

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

On June 12, 2018, tenants Maria Amezquita and Luis Ayala Cervantes filed a 
petition contesting rent increases and claiming code violations and decreased housing 
services. The contested rent increases included the following: 

• 4/26/18 - from $1 ,200 to $1 ,400 
• 10/3/17 - from $945 to $1 ,200 
• 9/5/17 - from $945 to $1 ,233 

On October. 3, 2019, the Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision, denying the 
rent increases in the 2017 lease ($1,233 for the first three months, $1,400 thereafter) on 
·the grounds that the owners did not seek prior approval from the Rent Adjustment 
Program of increases in excess of CPI or banking, and stating that the tenants' base 
rent remains $945.00. The Decision ordered restitution for rent overpayment and past 
decreased housing services in the amount of $6,965.25 ($6,729 for rent paid 9/1/17 to 
11 /1 /17 and 12/1 /17 to 10/1 /19; $236.25 for problems with electrical outlets, windows, 
and drawers, 3/1/18 to 7/1/18), amortized over 24 months. The Decision denied the 
remaining decreased housing services claims. 

000129



Owner May Fong filed an appeal on October 9, 2019, on various grounds, 
including asserting that the rent was $1,400 per the 2017 lease, that the original tenant 
had sublet the unit to the petitioners without the owners' consent, ·and that. the owners 
were unaware that the petitioners were illegal subtenants until August 2017. 

The owners also denied that they told the tenants that their rent would be 
increased because there were so many people living in the unit. On October 17, 2019, 
the Hearing Officer issued a Corrected Hearing Decision, removing the sentence on 
page 3 of the Hearing Decision stating "The owner also told the tenant her rent would 
be increased because there were so many people living in the unit." 

On January 16, 2020, the Owners' 2019 appeal was heard by an Appeal Panel of 
the HRRRB. The Panel remanded the case to the Hearing Officer to address when the 
tenants' tenancy commenced, state the reasoning as to when the tenancy commenced, 
and restate the base rent, without considering any evidence submitted after the hearing. 

RULING ON THE CASE 

On November 24, 2020, the Hearing Officer issued a Remand Hearing Decision, 
finding that the tenancy commenced in August of 2015 at an initial monthly rent of $945, 
due to rent paid directly to and accepted by the owner, based on evidence in the record 
including rent receipts. The Decision noted testimony indicating that the owners ·were 
aware that the tenants were living in the unit as of 2015 and that the owner did not 
realize the lack of a lease until 2017. The Decision was served on the parties on 
December 18, 2020. 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

On December 28, 2020, Owner May Fong filed a timely appeal on the following 
grounds: 

• the decision is inconsistent with Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22, Rent 
Board Regulations, or prior decisions of the Board; 

• the decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers; 
• the decision violates federal, state or local law; 
• the decision is not supported by substantial evidence; 
• denial of a sufficient opportunity to respond to the petitioner's claim. 

The owner further contended that the rent was $1,400 per the 2017 lease, that 
the original tenant had sublet the unit to the petitioners without the owners' consent, and 
that the owners were unaware that the petitioners were illegal subtenants until August 
2017. 

2 

000130



APPEAL DECISION 

After parties' arguments, questions, and Board discussions, T. Williams moved to 
remand the case to the Hearing Officer to determine base rent and commencement of 
tenancy based on more than just rent receipts and testimony. B. Scott seconded. 

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye: T. Williams, R. Nickens, Jr., B. Scott, C. Lieu, S. Devuono-Powell 
Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

The motion was adopted. 

~r~~I!, 

CHAN.EE FRANKLIN MINOR 
BOARD DESIGNEE 
CITY OF OAKLAND 
HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT 
AND RELOCATION BOARD 

November 18, 2021 
DATE 

3 

000131



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number T18-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a 
party Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in 
Alameda California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 
5th Floor California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
Appeal Decision 

Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
3 5 8 Cerro Court 
Daly City, CA 94015 

Tenant 
Maria & · Luis Cervantes 
1791 28th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94601 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson, Centro Legal de la Raza 
3022 International Blvd Ste. 410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and· p 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above 
and correct. Executed on November 19, 2021 in Oakland, CA. 

dv--
Merna Attalla 
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 000132



CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

SECOND REMAND HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

DATE OF HEARING: 

DATE OF DECISION: 

DATE OF CORRECTED DECISION: 

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING: 

DATE OF APPEAL DECISION: 

DATE OF REMAND DECISION: 

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING: 

DATE OF APPEAL DECISION: 

DATE OF SECOND REMAND DECISION: 

T18-0311 Cervantes v. Fong 

1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

June 3, 2019 

October 3, 2019 

October 17, 2020 

January 16, 2020 

March 10, 2020 

December 18, 2020 

September 23, 2021 

November 18, 2021 

February 1, 2022 

INTRODUCTION 

A Hearing Decision in this case was issued on October 3, 2019. A Corrected 
Hearing Decision was issued on October 17, 2020. The Hearing Decision partly 
granted the tenant's petition. Specifically, the Hearing Decision denied the rent 
increases in the 2017 lease ($1,233.00 for the first three months, $1,400.00 thereafter), 
on the grounds that the owner did not seek prior approval from the Rent Adjustment 
Program for increases exceeding the CPI and banking, and stated that the tenant's 
base rent remains $945.00. Additionally, the Hearing Decision granted restitution for 
rent overpayments and past decreased housing services in the amount of $6,965.25. 
The owner filed an Appeal, which was heard by the Board on January 16, 2020. The 
Board remanded the case to the Hearing Officer to address when the tenant:s tenancy 
commenced, and state the reasoning as to when the tenancy commenced, and restate 
the monthly base rent, disregarding any evidence presented on appeal. 

000133



On December 18, 2020, the Hearing Officer issued a Remand Hearing Decision, 
finding that the tenancy commenced in August of 2015 at an initial monthly rent of 
$945.00, based on rent paid directly to and accepted by the owner. This finding was 
based on evidence in the record, including rent receipts. The Remand Hearing 
Decision also noted testimony indicating that the owner was aware that the tenants 
were living in the unit as of 2015, and that the owner did not realize the lack of a lease 
until 2017. On December 28, 2020, the tenant appealed the Remand Hearing Decision. 
The appeal was heard by the Board on September 23, 2021. The Board remanded the 
case back to the Hearing Officer to determine the base rent and commencement of 
tenancy based on more than just rent receipts and testimony. 

EVIDENCE 

A review of the record at the underlying hearing, including the documentary 
evidence, the audio recording of the hearing, and the Hearing Decision shows the 
following: 

The only evidence received into the record pertaining to the base rent and 
commencement of tenancy were rent receipts submitted by the tenant, the 2017 lease 
signed by the parties with accompanying RAP Notice, and the testimony of the parties.1 

The owner did not file any timely documentary evidence prior to the underlying hearing 
on June 3, 2019. At the June 3, 2019, hearing, the owner attempted to introduce 
documents into evidence but the documents were not admitted into the record as they 
were untimely. All documentary evidence submitted by the owner on appeal was new 
evidence that was not admitted into the record at the underlying hearing. 

Additionally, a review of the audio recording of the June 3, 2019, hearing shows 
that the tenants testified they paid rent directly to the owner when they moved into the 
unit in August of 2015. The tenants testified that they moved into the unit with the 
understanding that the prior tenant, Nancy Nevarez, and the owner had agreed to allow 
the tenants to move into the unit. That's why they set up a direct deposit with the owner 
for all rent payments. The tenants never paid rent to a master tenant as subtenants. 
The owner did not dispute this testimony regarding the payment of rent and did not raise 
any issues with the rent deposits at the underlying hearing. Further, at the underlying 
hearing, the owner never raised the argument that the original tenant had moved out 
and that she was raising the rent to market rate for subsequent occupants pursuant to 
California Civil Code Section 1954.53(d)(2). This was a new argument presented for 
the first time on appeal. At the underlying hearing, the owner only testified that she was 
not aware that the tenants were not listed on the original 2012 lease. She only became 
aware that they were not listed on the 2012 lease in 2017, when the tenants asked for a 
new lease. That's when she determined that they were illegal subtenants and decided 
to enter into a new lease with the tenants. 

1 Exhibits I and 2 

2 

000134



FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance states that "Appeals shall be based on the 
record as presented to the Hearing Officer unless the Appeal Body determines that an 
evidentiary hearing is required. If the Appeal Body deems an evidentiary hearing 
necessary, the case will be continued and the Appeal Body shall issue a written order 
setting forth the issues on which the parties may present evidence."2 

Based on a review of the underlying record the Hearing Officer finds that there is 
no additional evidence to consider beyond the rent receipts and the testimony of the 
parties in determining the base rent and the commencement of tenancy. 
Since the Board has not directed the Hearing Officer to reopen the case and conduct an 
evidentiary hearing based on new evidence pertaining to the commencement of tenancy 
and the base rent, the underlying Hearing Decision and the first Remand Hearing 
Decision are hereby affirmed. 

ORDER 

1. The first Remand Hearing Decision is affirmed. 

2. The subject tenancy commenced in August of 2015 and the monthly base rent 
is $945.00. 

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed 
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be 
received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the decision. The date of 
service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is 
closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. 

Dated: February 1, 2022 

5t~¼LU1 ?/26/22-

2 O.M.C. 8.22.120(C)(4) 

Maimoona S. Ahmad, Hearing Officer 
Rent Adjustment Program 

3 

000135



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number TlS-0311 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
Second Remand Hearing Decision 

Owner 
May & Grant Fong 
3 5 8 Cerro Court 
Dali City, CA 94105 

Tenant 
Maria & Luis Cervantes 
1791 28th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94609 

Tenant Representative 
Xavier Johnson 
c/o Samantha Beckett 
3022 International Boulevard, Ste.# 410 
Oakland, CA 94601 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on July 28, 2022 in Oakland, CA. ·/4/ ~// 

1/~~r::~ 
/2obert F. Costa 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000136



CITY OF OAKLAND For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

I 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

Appellant's Name 

May Fong 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711
www .oaklandca.gov/RAP

APPEAL 

Property Address (Include Unit Number) 
1791-28th Avenue, Oakland, Ca 94601 

Q Owner 

Appellant's Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number 
358 Cerro Court, Daly City, Ca 94015 

T18-0311 

□ Tenant

Date of Decision appealed 

7/26/22 
Name of Representative (if any) Representative's Mailing Address (For 

notices) 

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must 
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed 
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation. 

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. {Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) 0 The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior
decisions of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section,
Regulation or prior Board decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.)

b) 0 The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your
explanation, you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is
inconsistent.)

c) □ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your
explanation, you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be
decided in your favor.)

d) '21 The decision violates federal, state, or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a
detailed statement as to what law is violated.)

e) 0 The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must
explain why the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

Revised January 10, 2022 

000137



f) 0 I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner's
claim. (In your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your
claims and what evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every
case. Staff may issue a decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not
in dispute.)

g) � The decision denies the Owner a fair return on the Owner's investment. (You may appeal on
this ground only when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically
state why you have been denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) 0 Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Supporting documents (in addition to this form) must not exceed 25 pages, and must be received by 
the Rent Adjustment Program, along with a proof of service on the opposing party, within 15 days of 
the filing of this document. Only the first 25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the 
Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(4). Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of 
pages attached: �-

• You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties, or your appeal may be dismissed. •
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on August 17 , 20-22_, 
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial 
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first-class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, 
addressed to each opposing party as follows: 

t&om 

6ddllllil 

�IW Slilll Zig 

Maria Amezquita Arceo 

1791-28th Avenue 

OAKLAND, CA 94601 

t&om 

6ddc111 

�llX Slilll Zig 

8/17/22 

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

Revised January 10, 2022 

I I .. • l 

I I .. l a I 

000138



ADDENDUM TO APPEAL CASE NUMBER TlS-0311 

a) The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior
decisions of the Board. The Rent Board abides and upholds the rules and regulations under City
of Oakland Rent Levels and Rent Regulation (O.M.C. 8.22.070 et seq.), where it describes the
Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act, a property owner may set the initial rent and associated
housing services for new tenancies beginning on or after January I, 1996. The initial rent becomes
the new rent ceiling, which may be changed only by allowable increases under the Rent Ordinance.
Any change in housing services from that provided at the beginning of the tenancy may be grounds
for an adjustment of the lawful rent ceiling. Nazana Nevarez was the original tenant with written
lease December 2012 as attached hereto "EXHIBIT 1" and TENANT CERVANTES was an illegal
subtenant that not allowed under said lease.

Under the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, it allows Before the unit is rented, the property owner 
has the right to: 

1. Offer and advertise vacant units for rent.
2. Screen potential tenants.
3. Select the tenant who is to reside in the rental unit.
4. Collect first month's rent and security deposit.

Because TENANT CERVANTES moved into the unit without my knowledge or consent sometime 
in 2016 or 2017, Owner was denied these rights. 

As an illegal subtenant, TENANT CERVANTES became a new tenant 8/24/17; therefore, Owner 
is allowed to set initial rent which we agree at $1400 per month that was negotiated for hours and 
finally mutually agreed and signed to agreed terms on 8/24/17 hereto attached as "EXHIBIT 3". 

b) The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. The hearing
officer did not allow the original lease as attached hereto "EXHIBIT 1" and the tenant notices that
LANDLORD served to the original tenant as additional documents as attached hereto "EXHIBIT
2". These were emailed to the Rent Board case worker Margaret Sullivan on May 14, 2019 which
was at least 14 days prior to the hearing as per rules by the Oakland rent board as attached hereto
"EXHIBIT 4". Emailing legal documents for the hearing was an accepted delivery by the rent
board at that time. At the hearing June 3, 2019, LANDLORD brought original lease and increase
of rent for Nazana Nevarez as additional evidence, but hearing officer claimed they did not receive
these documents via email and would not allow it to be provided as the crucial evidence of lease
terms that explicitly prohibits subtenants.

c) 

Moreover, I had several cases where the hearing officer allowed the nonprofit attorney for the tenant 
additional evidence to provide for their case at the day of hearing, such as in case No. L16-0083. 

d) This decision violates federal, state, or local law. On, 6/12/18 Tenant Cervantes filed petition to
reduce his rent based on fraud. The hearing officer's decision violates Ca state law 2007 California
Civil Code Article 2. Rental Agreement CA Codes ( civ:798.15-798.23.5) CIVIL CODE SECTION
798.15-798.23.5. Nazana Nevarez with her 3 children Teresa Vazques, Fernando Nevarez and
Cesar Nevarez were the original tenant that signed a valid lease on 11/28/12 for $895 and lease
states clearly subletting is strictly prohibited attached hereto "EXHIBIT l ". This lease evidence

000139



and was submitted on time attached "EXHIBIT 4". Original TENANT Nancy was the one that 
received all legal rent increase for rent to $990 effective 8/1/16 and RAP Notices as "EXHIBIT 
2". TENANT Cervantes claim they should be paying $945 rent as did the original tenants in 2015, 
but by their own acknowledgment and admission at the hearing, they were illegal subtenants which 
was strictly prohibited as per ORIGINAL LEGAL Nevarez lease. 

This ruling violates the state law of Costa-Hawkins Act, California Civil Code Sec. 1954.50-
1954.535, under which a property owner may set the initial rent and associated housing services 
for new tenancies beginning on or after January 1, 1996. The initial rent becomes the new rent 
ceiling, which may be changed only by allowable increases under the Rent Ordinance. Any change 
in housing services from that provided at the beginning of the tenancy may be grounds for an 
adjustment of the lawful rent ceiling. Nazana Nevarez was the original tenant with written lease 
December 2012. TENANT CERVANTES was an illegal subtenant that not allowed under original 
lease as attached hereto "EXIDBIT l". 

e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. All tenants in the building have written
leases while TENANT Cervantes did not prior to 8/24/17 because they were not authorized tenants.
The hearing officer ignored critical fact and the fact that TENANT did not provide any evidence to
show they were original tenants while ignoring the mutual agreed upon lease for new TENANT
Cervantes for $1400 rent with $2000 security deposit where small claims court on 3/6/20 ordered
the security deposit as per lease and as well as $1200 to be paid to me for electrical and plumbing
damage Tenant caused in the unit. Tenant were ILLEGAL subtenants and acknowledged they
moved into my unit illegally without my knowledge, consent or my authorization verbal or written.
This is fraud! They also told me there were only 3 to reside in the unit when they had 7. This is a
safe and hazardous condition in the unit that could lead up to issues that occurred with the ghost
ship fire. This was acknowledged in the unlawful detainer lawsuit on 1/22/20. This was another
fraud.

The hearing officer only considered the rent deposits TENANT Cervantes provided. However, the 
hearing officer ignored reviewing thoroughly the rent deposit details. From TENANT "Exhibit 
A" hereto attached as "EXIDBIT S" CERVANTES in Tenant Evidence Submission (LANDLORD 
never received a copy prior to appeal) are documents I never received. On their page 4 of 50 shows 
the deposit slip LANDLORD provided to Nazaria Nevarez and they wrote on the slip Nazaria 
Nevarez, not CERVANTES for a cash deposit of $990 which correlates to the rent increase for 
8/1/16 as found in "EXHIBIT 2". The rent receipts with cash deposits to the bank does not indicate 
who is depositing the rent. Therefore, the rent cash deposits can only be assumed to be deposited 
from the original tenant Nazana Nevarez as shown on CERVANTES submission on page 4 of 50 
"EXIDBIT 5". LANDLORD only sees a transfer when CERVANTES deposited cash for rent into 
Bank of America as attached hereto "EXHIBIT 6." Therefore, rent receipts provided by 
CERVANTES cannot determine base rent. 

On 8/17/17 when TENANT disclosed to LANDLORD they were residing at the premise without 
permission as illegal subtenants. After sending eviction papers to Nazana Nevarez as attached 
hereto as "EXHIBIT 7", CERVANTES requested to stay and to obtain a new lease as new tenants. 
As per lease dated 8/24/17, $600 was received for September 2017 rent and on page 9 of 50 in 
"EXHIBIT 5" shows a cash deposit of$633 to total the $1233 as per lease. On 8/24/17, we spent 
hours negotiating the market rent from $1700 to $1400. CERVANTES expressed their strain in 
coming up with the $2000 security deposit we agreed to; therefore, I agreed to accept $1233 for the 

t. 000140



first 2 months and CERVANTES would have to pay the full $1400 effective 12/1 /17 as per verbal 
and written mutual agreement. 

f) I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner's
claim. Please refer to b) as hearing officer did not allow me to use submitted additional
documents that were emailed prior to the 14 days rule.

g) The decision denies the Owner a fair return on the Owner's investment. The hearing officer
did not take into account any banking in her calculations. As new tenant, LANDLORD has right
to establish base rent at market rate. In 2017, market rate for 1 bedroom is $1900. As The Oakland
Rent Adjustment Ordinance allows an annual rent increase based on the regional Consumer Price
Index (CPI) which was

August 1, 2022: 3% (current CPI) 

• July l, 2021: 1 .9%
• July 1, 2020: 2. 7 %
• July l, 2019: 3.5%
• July 1, 2018: 3.4%
• July 1,2017:2.3%

h) The hearing officer did not comply with the Boards' order to "determine base rent and
commencement of tenancy based on more than just rent receipts and testimony" attached
hereto as 'EXHBIT 6". On the contrary, the hearing officer only relied on testimony and rent
receipts and did not comply with the board to take into account the signed mutual lease 8/24/17
submitted with LANDLORD ANSWER TO PETITION as 'EXHIBIT 3" where there is an
establishment of new tenancy of unit at new market rate by a new tenant that would fall under rules
of the Costa Hawkins Rental Housing Act.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

000141



DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-70C4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 £x (A I J1 r( I 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-Month) 
owner r�ts to Tenants and Tenants rent from owner the Premises subject to the following terms and conditions. 

owner 

Agent for 
Rent & Notices 

Tenants 

Premises 

Rent 

Parking 

Storage 

Rent Payments 

Security Deposit 

Late Charge 

Returned 
Payment 

Term of Tenancy 

Pets 

owner's Utilities 

Tenant's Utilities 

Appliances & 
Fixtures 

Use and 
Occupancy 

Terms of Tenancy 

J":sE..f� -s. O\a.v---bv1.e__3

l
os 

�
os 

c73l\( 12;29;2014

S4::�::Ek:: CL..5 a . ..\o o c.J-E'. (Name) 

ietll-- z.g"ft.\ At,e.., O�a...J Ca,. °i¼O( . {�ess)

S10 -3> � - \ 9 't.3 J 5 \IV\(, (D \ de_\?\ \Ao 4,YSr @_ G Wla..� ( (Phon� Email)

� a. V. N e..lJ Q y-e_· (Name) ( ( -25""'·- 11 (DOB) 
.fLJ (Name) --=5_-__,_l __.'l_-_q_._s __ • __ (DOB) 

F' e_,y V\ 0...... { ·e_ 0 °'-ye_, (Name) ---..i O_··__.!_..';) __ -_q_._'] _____ (DOB)

C.e....So.....V-- }:\e_,L)�y-::.3 (Name) "° - ,iq - 0':\ (DOB) 
_____________________ (Name) ________ (DOB) 

X \ 1 9 l e.B 7v\ JI.\ ue_v\ lli€ < 0 a. k � Cl 1\A c\ C Q q 4:lo l (Address)
. � a 

5 
oo , 

I -s-t-$ OJ o __,,. per month payable in advance on the_..._ __ day of each month. 

Parking space assigned _ye......,_ 
..... ,6....__ __ .. Monthly charge$ N A 

. Monthly charge $ N ·t\Storage space assigned 
: 

�-e,b 

□ Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)
efpersonal check
c:etashier's check or money order
arfash

. payable with monthly rent. 

. payable with monthly rent 

rf,,\ 
$ 5 3 o 7 Q if Owner does not receive rent in full within b days after the due date. 

$ 2 5: 0 0
in the event any check or other form of payment by Tenant is returned for lack of sufficient 

funds. a •stop payment• or any other reason. 

The Tenancy begins on De (
,- \ J. 0 r e..and ends on f(\ et..L{) 30 ?Ol"2,-and thereafter continues on a month-to-

month basis until tenninated. 
\ 

�pproved pets N L) ? � \-s 
OWner pays for W CL\.-f/"� i �CL\(""'° Cl.@- € -

r l _,, : e. 
Tenant pays for S3 CL$ £, & � \- l (__,

0wner provides s .\-o u-i_ ¢ B, e.G-= �
8' e_\,. c..:b IC

General Terms and Conditions of Tenancy 

The Premises are to be occupied a_nd used only as a private residence by Tenants, without Owne(s prior written 
consent, subject to applicable state and local laws. Occupancy by additional persons for more than two weeks in 
any six-month period is prohibited without OWne(s written consent. Violation of the provisions of this Section is a 
substantial violation of a material term of the tenancy and is a just cause for eviction. 

I have reviewed this page _ _tl� _____ (Tenant initials)

Page 1 of 4 

----------

,. 

000142



("'"'-
DocuSign Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-A644-8787E6164433 

Rent 

Late Payments 

Returned 
Payments 

. lndl.vidual
Llabliity 

Failure to Pay 

Security Deposit 

Parking 

Storage 

Rental Agree_ment (Month-to-Month) 
Rent will be paid in run to Owner or Owner's agent \Yllhout offs�ts. deduclions or credits. Tenant bears the risk of 
loss or delay or any mailed payment. Owner reserves tlie righl to refuse any partial payment. Payment will be 
applied to any outstanding obligation of Tenant to O�ner, notwithstanding any other deslgnalion by Tenant. 

Tenanl will pay Owner a late charge if rent is not received on time. By accepting a late chqrge, Owner does not 
waive th� right to insist on payment of the rent in full on the due date. Tenanl and Owner agree that the late 
charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of costs incurred by Owner in this circumsl;ince. Tenant and 
Owner agree that paying rent niore than five days tale on t_hree separate occasions in any 12-month period is a 
substantial vlolatlon of a material term. of the tenancy and is a jusl cause ror eviction. 
Tenant wm pay Owner a returned payment Jee in lhe ·event any check or other form of payment offered by· Tenant 
to Owner in payment of r�nt or any other amount due under this Agreement is returned (or lack of sufficient funds, 
a •stop payment" or any other reason. Tenant and Owner agree that this amount represents a fair and reasonable 
estimate of costs Incurred by Owner In this circumstance. A returned check may constitute late payment of.rent. In 
the event of a returned check. Owner reserves the right to demand payment by money order or certified funds for 
the current and all future payments. 
Each person who signs lhis Agreement, whether or not they remain in possession of the Premises, will be jointly 
and severally liable for the ruu performance of this Agreement. Including the payment of all rent due and the· 
payment of costs to remedy damages to the Premises caused by Tenant, guests or invitees. 
As required by law, Tenant Is notified that a negative credit report reDecUng on your credit record may _be 
submitted lo a credjt reporting agency If you fail. to fulfill the terms of your credil obligations, such as your 
obfigations under the terms of this Agreement. 

Tenant may not apply the security deposit to the last month's rent. or to any other sum due unde"r this Agreement.
Within two weeks after Tenant has vacated the Premises, Owner will furnish Tenant with an itemized written 
statement of the reasons fo_r, and the dollar amount of. any of the security deposit retained by the ·owner, along 
with a check for any deposit balance. Under Section 1950.5 of the California Civil Code, Owner may withhold only 
lhal portion of Tenant's security deposit necessary lo: (1) remedy any default by Tenant In the payment of rent; (2) 
repair damages to the Premises exclusive of ordinary �ear and tear; and (3) clean the Pr • necessary. 

any pa o out the prior written consent 
Owner. The named Tenants are the only "Original" Tenants. No person other then the named Tenants will be 
permitted lo regularly or continuously use or occupy the Premises unless all of the foOowing conditions are met: 1) 
Tenant notifies Owner in writing, signed by every Tenant, slating a request to have a .new person occupy the 
Premises; 2) said prospective occupant completes and gives to Owner Owner's rental appllcalion; 3) Owner 
approves ef the prospective occupant's creditworthiness and references from· prior landlords; and 4) the new 
occupant signs Ovmer's Change of Tenant Agreement for. such occupancy before occupying the Premises. whic;h 
ag_ree.ment will include a provision that tpe new occupant will abide by and perform all the obligations of this 
Agreement. The rent for the Premises may be raised to market rates when the last Original Tenant(s) moves from 
the Premises. 
In lhe event that Owner consents to any sub-tenancy, it ls hereby agreed that the Original Tenanfmay not charge 
more to the sub-tenant(s) than that proportional share of the rent which is being charged by and paid to Owner. 
No action or inaction or acceptance of rent or knowledge on the part or Owner will be deemed to be a .waiver of 
the provision of this-Section on the part of Owner and will not be deemed an approval of any person as a 'sub-

nant" for any purpose. 

veh1ce 
repair performed in the Space, or any other use of the property without the prior consent of Owner, is prohibited. 
Owner will not be liable for any damage done by bursting, leaking or running of any gas or water or any plumbing 
fixture in. above, upon or about the parking lot; for damage by water. sn.ow or ice being upon or coming off the lot; 
damaga arising from acts or neglect of other occupants of the lot or olher motor vehicles; or theft or vandalism by 
others. I t  is  encouraged that Tenants purchase insurance to cover the above-mentioned instances. 
Tenants release Owner from any liat>ility for loss or damage to Tenants' property while stored on the Premises. 
Aily property stored In designated storage areas shall be removed on or before the date of termination of tenancy. 
In the event such property is not so removed, Owner may dispose of same without any liability to Tenants. 
Tenants waive any rights as defined in Civil Code Seclion 1980 eL seq. Owner reserves the right to inspect ail 
such storage areas and requl�e necessary removal or clean up as de!lmed·necessary for the health and safety of 
lhe Premises, the building and/or ils occupants. No storage of any kind will be pennitted on fire escapes or in 
other common areas. 

I have reviewed .this page _ _l'-J_ � ____ (Tenant Initials) 

Page 2 of 4 

-·--···-···-·· � 
··- -···OOOQ48·····-·-·-

··--····----·····---------

000143



r� 
Ooc:uSfgn Envelope ID: 487EC307-7DC4-4AFA-AS44-8787E6164433 r· 

Condition of 
Premises 

Applfances and 
Fixtures 
.Pets 

Rental Agreement (Month-to-:Month) 
Tenant agrees to: (1) keep the Premises dean and sanitary and fn 900d repair and, upon termination of the 
tenancy, to retum the Premises to Owner in a condition ldentrcal lo that which existed when Tenant took 
occupancy, except for ordin·ary wear and tear, {2) Immediately r,oUfy Owner of any defects or dangerous 
conditions In and about the P.remises of which they become aware; and (3) reimburse qwner, on demand by 
Owner, fQr the cost of any repairs to the Premises damaged by Tenant or Tenant's guests or fnvitees through
mlsuse or neglect. 

• • 

Tenant acknowledges that all appfiances, window ar,d Roor coverings, attached light fixtures, and other attached 
or semi-attached Items are the J>.roperty of Owner. 
Only Approved Pets· ar� aUowed on or about the Premises. Owner may require a photo of all Approved Pets. No 
other animals are auowed even temporarily or With a guest, withoul Owner's prior written con�ent, excepting 
gufde, se1Vice or signal dogs pursuanl lo Callfomla ClvR Code Sections 54.-1 and 54.2. Stray anlmals sh'11 not be 
kept or fed In or around the BuRding. Strays can be dangerous and Owner must_ be notrfied lmmediately of any 
strays In or around the BuHding. 
Approved Pets are not pennitted outside Tenant's unft unless on a leash. Tenant agrees. to in\medlately clean up 
any defecation In a sanitary manor. If' Tenant fafts to prevent any fnfestatians of fleas, ticks, or otlier creatures, 
Tenanl may b� charged tor cleaning, de..fleaing, deodorizing or shampooing any portion of Ula bultdlng or 
·Premises. Tenant shall not permit the pets to cause any discomfort. annoyance, nuisance, or In any other way
Inconvenience any other Tenant Any 11mess• created ·by the Pet(1$) shall lmmedlately be cleaned up by Tenanl 
Tenant shall be Dab1e to Owner, and shall defend Owner. hold Owner harmless, and indemnify OWnar for an
injuries, damages. expenses, losses or oblfgat�ns of any kind Incurred by or In connection with the pet 

Trash.. Tenant agrees .to dispose of their ordln�ry househofd trash by placing lt in the Waste Management containers for
periodic collection. Tenant agrees to dispose of extraordinary trash, such as da�aged furnitura, broken
appfiances and the like, by lmmedlately hauDng it to the dump themselves or by �ying someone else to remove
it. In the event that Tenant's trash is left outside the Premises, Owner will arrange to have il removed at Tenant's
expense.

Owner's Access Calffomia law· allows Owner to enter Q,e Premises f9r certain purposes during normal business hours. Owner will 
provide written notice to Tenant prior to entering the Premises whenever required by state law (9ivft Code Section 
1954). : 

Extended Tenant agrees tQ notify Owner in the event that Tenant wlU be away from the Premises for 14 consecutive days or 
Absences more. During each absence, Owner may enter lha Premises at ltmes reasonably necessary t<> maintam lhe 

property and Inspect for damage and needed repatrs. 
Quite Enjoymen! Tenant wilt be entitled to quiet enjoyment of the Premises. Tenant and Tenant·s guestJ Qr Invitees win not use the 

Premises or adjatent areas in such a Way es to: (1) vfolate any law or ordfnance, including laws prohibiting the 
use, possession or sale pf filegal drugs; (2) commit waste or ·nuisar;ce: or (3) annoy, disturb, inconvenience or 
interfere with the quiet erijo:Yfflent and peace and quiet of any othe"r tenant or nearby resldenl 

Repairs and 
Alterations 

Flnanclal 
Responsibility 

Water.filled 
Furniture 

Tenant wlll not, without Owner·s prfor written consent, alter, re-key or install any locks to the Premises or Install or 
alter any burglar alann system. Tenant wiU provide OWner wl1h a key or keys capable of unlocking au such re
keyed or new locks as well as lnstructfons on how to disarm any altered or new burglar alann system.-
E>ccept as provided by law or as authorized by the prior written consent of Owner, Tenant will not make or allow to 
be made any Installation or modlRcatlon of cable or telephone wtring, decoraUons (such as painOng and 
wallpapering), a.Iterations, or repairs (inclusively, "Changes") to the Premises. Tenant agrees lo pay an costs of 
correcting any unauttiorized Changes. 
Tenant agrees to accept financial responsibility for any loss or damage lo persona! property belonging lo Tenant 
and Tenant's guests and fnvitees calJSed by theft, fire or any other cause. Owner assumes no Habfllty for any such 
loss, OWner recommends that Tenant obtain a renter's Insurance policy from a recognized Insurance firm to cover 
Tenant's lfablUly, personal property damage and damage to the Premises. 
No waterbed or other item of water-filled furniture wifl be kept on the Premises. 

Smoke Detectors The Premises are equipped wHh functioning smoke detection devices. Tenant will be responsible for testing the 
devices weekly and Immediately reporting any problems, maintenance or need for repairs to Owner. Tenant wm 
not remove their batteries or otherwise disable them. 

Termination The tenancy may be terminated by Tenant ·by setving a 30-day written notice of termination upon Owner. and by 
Owner by serving a 30-�ay written notice of temtination upon Tenant if Tenant has been In possession of the 
Premises for less than one year, or by serving a BO.day written notice of termination upon Tenant if Tenant has 
been in possession of the Premises for one year or longer. Any termination notice is subject to eppRcabte local 
rent control ordinances and regulaUons. If the Premises are damaged by fire, flood, earthquake or any other 
cause so as to render them uninhabitable and therefore destroyed, the tenancy is terminated. 

I have reviewed this page _ _tl_� ____ (Tenant initials)

Page3 of4 

---------------

000049 ·----· ·---· ·· ·-···--------------

000144



r·"' 
OomSlgn Enverope ID: 487EC307-70C4-4AFA-A644.a787E6164433 

Attorney Fees 

Megan's Law 

Notices 
Valfdlty of Each 
Part 
Captions and 
Headings 
Appllc�tion 

Attachments 

Entire 
Agreement 

. Rental Agreeme�t (Month.-to-Month) 

In any action or legal proceeding to enforce any part of this Agreemen� each party will be responsible for their 
own attomeys' fees and court costs, subject to subject to local rent control ordfnances and regutallons lhat may 
apply. 
Pursuant to Section 290.46 of the California Penal Code, information about specified registered sex offenders Is 
made available lo the public via an intemet web slle maintained by the Department . of Justice at 
www.meganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on an offender's criminal histoiy, this tnformatfon wiP indude either the 
address at Which the offender resides or the comml.fflllY of resfdenca and the ZIP code in which he or she resides. 
Any required notices may be delivered lo Tenant at the Premises and to Owner or Agent for Rent and Notices. 
If any portion of this Agreement is held to be lnvalld, its fnvalidJty wllf nol affect the validity or enforceabHlty-of any 
other provision of this Agreement • ,
The captions and headfngs In this Agreement are Included to Improve readability and are not part of the terms or 
provisions of this Agreeme,:it. 
Any rental application or related document submitted by Tenant Is incorporated herein as though set forth� full. 
Any misrepresentations contained· th�ln will be considered a substantial violation of a material term of the
tenancy end is a Just cause for eviction. 

The following attachments are incorporated as part of this Agreement 
Discfosure of Information on Lead-Based Palnt and Lead-Based Pafnt Hazards 

. Move--ln--Move-Qut Checklist 
OakJand Notice to Tenants 
EPA booklet entitled "Protect Your Family from Lead fn Your Home· 

This document and Attachments identified above constitute the entire Agreement between the parties. and no 
promJses or representations. other than lhose contained here and those fmpfiecl by law, have been made by 
Owner or Tenant. Any modifications to th(s Agreement must be tn wrillng signed by Owner and Tenant except that 
Owner may change tht; terms or the tenancy and this Agreement pursuant to CivD Code Section 827. 

I l - it,-- I .2_ 
Date 

Date Tenant Data Tert 

�CVJA�> f\u;tl1¼2✓ 

Tenant i) t] 
1\-,�x- ,a 

Date Tenant 

Tenant Date Tenant Date 

Tenant Date Tenant Date 

Receipt 

By signing above. Owner acknowledges having received, and Tenant acknowledges payment of, the following: 
Security Deposit: $ ____ _ 
Rent $ _____ for the period ____ to ___ _ 
Other: $ _____ for ____________ _ 
Total received: $. _____ payment method ________ _ 

l�EBRHA
�est,saa .com 

Form provided by the East Bay Rental Housing Assodatian• 
www.ebrha.com 

Form Rental Agreement (Month-to-Manth}CO {06/11} 

Page4of4 

---··---

--- · ·- · -000050 
-----. ·--------·· . ---·· -- ---···· ·--··- ---. ------

r 

• ' 

000145



r 

N OTICB TO TENAN TS AT 28TH.AVENUE

. Dear Tenants, 

I am writing in regards to the rules and maintenance of the building for 1783-28th

Avenue. Thank you for those who have been doing their share in maintaining the 
cleanliness of the building and property including the carport, yard and garbage 
areas. Unfortunately, there seems to be some big problems we have been having 
with the garpage and some tenants have been throwing diapers down . their 
windows to the back and .sides of the building. I hope all tenants are .aware that
garbage thaf is thrown on the property and not put in the proper containers will 
cause huge rodent problems. According to the lease, each tenant has a 
responsibility to maintain the property. As a courtesy to all the other tenants, 
please do your share in keeping the property in good condition. 

I want to clarify the rule· that there is only 1 carport space per unit. If you have more 
than 1 car, you must not park it in any of the carport space or yard. Your car must 
be parked o·utside the gated area. 

Since there seems to be some problems with the moving of the garbage container, I 
will be looking into having individual garbage cans where each tenant would be 
responsible for moving out their garbage container outside on garbage day. We 
have recycle bins .. Please be sure to use these for recycling plastic, glass and paper . 

. This will help the environment. 

I will be slowly making repairs and improvement to the building to make the 
property more beautiful. Please do your part in helping to improve our building.. . 

I will be meeting ,with each tenant to sign leases. I do ·want to remind all tenants to 
write down their unit address· on the deposit slips when making your rent deposits 
so I can credit you correctly. Please find attached the RAP sheet as required by the 
Oakland rent board in regards to your tenant rights. 

Thank y9u for your attention and cooperation. 

Sincerely, 

MayFong 
415-812-9908

000051 

:::, 

000146



P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 
Departmen_t of Housing and Community Development 
Rent Adjustment Program 

CITY OF OAKLAND."' 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
TDD (510) 238-3254 

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTL\L RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

• Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP',) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the QaklandMunicipal Code) and covers most residential r�ntal units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidizedunits, most single family dwellin�, condominiums and some other types of units. For more infonnationon which units are covered, contact the RAP Q:ffice. • • • 
• You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annualgeneral rent increase ("CPI increase"}. An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits,"for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases ("bankingj.No annual rent increase may exceed 100/4. The owner must provide you with a written summary of thereasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing. If the owner decreasesyour housing services, this may be an increase in your rent Decreased housing services include substantialproblems with the condition of a unit• ro contest a r�nt increase, you must file a petition.with the RAP within sbrty (60) days of whichever islater: (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this NoticeTo Tenants. Information and. the petition fonns are available from the RAP office:·tso Frank H. OgawaPlam, 6th fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www2.oaklandnet.com/Govemmeni/o/hcd/o/RentAdlustment• • If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition.After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you havet� pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the.CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rentyou ·were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you willowe the amognt of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase.• Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.MC. 8.22)which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office.• Oakland cliarges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, theowner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the_ annual fee is not part of the rent . Tenants in subsidi7.ed units are not required to pay the tenant. portion of the fee.• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance ("TPOj to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to givetenants legal recourse in -instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C.8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 1326S .C.�.S.)

TENANTS' SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE 

• . • Smoking (circle one) IS o!!!ennitted in Unit, 1791 , the unit you intend to rent. .• Smoking (circle one) IS o ennitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units exist in tenant's building, of units in which smoking is permitted.) • There (circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at ___ _
I received a copy of this notice on _______ _ (Date) (Tenant's signature) 

4ti91HU!lltll) ilillfr■,1JiA••M�PP Jtli*o lfflt11 (510) 238-3721 *•l!J*o La Notiflcad6n del Derecho del lnqullfno esta disponlble en espaftol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721. BaQn Tholing Bai.lo quyelln 16ii cuQa nga&fi thuea trong Oakland natty cu6ng coi.a balmg tleclng Vlelt. Rei coi:I molt baQn sao, xin goil (510) 238-3721. 

Revised 11/18/14 
000052 

°t 

r 

000147



\ 

r�(XK1t?1r z·· 
r•, 

THIRTY-DAY NCJT�CE OF CHANGE Of MONTHL 1 RENT 

TO: ----���N�aza='-n=a..:..N .. e __ vmi=--ez_,,,_li-::;;e;:.;::resa=-=-"'.::;;az=qZl,llu;.;e=s--=, F...;:e:.:.m�a=n.:;::do::..:.N=-=e_va=rez-=--=an:.:.:d=-C=e:;;::s=a::..r;:.;;N=e'Vi�a;:.rez=r., ..::;et.:..;al=------
AD Residents (tenants and subtenants) In possession (full name) and all othe(S In possesslon

of the premises locat� at: 

------�--_.,1....,79K,,,11 .... -2.r.38_thl.&.IAl..&y_e,...n .. ue __________ __,. Unit# (if applicable) ___ _ 
(Street Address) 

Oakmnd ,CA __ 946 __ 0_1 __
(City) {Zip) 

You are hereby notified, In accordance with California Law, that 30 days after service upon you of this Notice, or 

8/1/18 , whichever Is later, your monthly rent which is payable in advance �n or before the 
(Date) 

___ 1 s_t __ (fay of each month, will be the sum of$ 9.,.9_5 ____ . instead of $_9_45 ______ . the cu�nt monthly 
rent. 

Except as herein provid�. all other terms of your tenancy shall remain in full force and effect. 

If you fail to fulfill the terms of you� credit oblfgations. a negative credit report may be submitted to a credit reporting agency. 

8130MB --�����..-=------------------Date awnjiiAfen� 

Proof of $ervice 

I, the undersigned, being at least 18 years of age, declare that I served this notice, of which this is a true copy, on the _3.0.ttL 
day of June (month), 2016 (year), on the above-mentioned resldent(s) In possession, In the manner Indicated below. (Select 
one) 

■ BY MAILING by first class mail on said date a copy to each resident by depositing said copies in the United States Mall, In a sealed
envelope, with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the aboYe-named resldent(s) at their place _of residence

Place of MalllnQ: ______ __.Sa_n....._Fra...._.n .. ci-.:isco _________ _ Date of Maillng: ____ 6_/3�0-/1_,6 _____ _ 

Ci. BY DELIVERING a copy of the Notice to the following resldent(s) PERSONALLY: __________ _ 
□ BY LEAVING a copy for each of the above-named resldent(s) with a person of suitable age and discretion at the residence or usual

place of business of the resldent(s), said resldent(s) being absent thereof; .
AND MAILING by first class mail on said date a copy to ea� resident . by .depositing said copies in . the UnHed States
Mall, In. a sealed envelope, with postage fµlty prepaid, addressed to the above-named resldent(s) at their place of
residence.

□ BY POSTING a copy for each of the above--named resldent(s) in a conspicuous place on the. property therein described,
there being no person of suitable age or discretion to be found at any known place of residence or business of said.
res��� . • 
AND MAILING by first class mall on the same day as posted, a copy to each resident by depositing said copies In the
United States Mail, In a sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid, addressed to the resident(s) at the place where the
property Is situated.

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the· foregoing is true and correct and If called 
as· a witness to testify thereto, I could do so competently. • • 

Executed this ...3mlL day of Jyne • (month), ..20.1.a. (year), In ____ s�a:1,1,,10..1.E.:.:1£8:u.0=ci=sco=-__ (city), _ca_ {state).

May Fong
Name of Declarant(Pdnt) (S/gnalun, of Declatant) 

y� catlfomla Apartment Association Approved Form 
'. �::� .. WNW.caanetorg 
c•·��/i!!• Form B.1-SV- Revised 12114 - @2014-AII Rights Reserved
,,.��•.�, Page 1 of 1 

Unauttwrizeci Reproduction 
of Blank Forms is Illegal. 

i11oclatloil 

Pl1nted Using formsRUl.cam Qn.Une Forms Soflwant 12/14 

A• \b

000053 
□ 000148



. �- ix01-e,( > (<"""' 
J f iaof • il�f lr

�
v-

.... OAKLAND RENTAL-AGREEMENT AND/OR LEASE .. 

1. TIiis flll1fll Agraematl ancMlr Lao shall Ndera Im � - and eandilfGnl under lfllch Ille para. .._ llgnala8I IIIIPIII' belaw 11M agraad.
LadloRULIIIOrlAgent ehaD be lllanld fD a 'OWNER8 and T� lhall III leliad to a ,ams«: M omtlfdlndlcn far tis ipement. OWNBl agraa ID
renlealeioREStDENTand RESIDENl'agreas loredlease hm OWNER lr•SOI.B.Y M APRIVA1E RESIDENCE. Iha ...-aac111111Mt. REBIDENTactnollfedgea Iba!
"" fatsa l1alllnardl bnl rn RESIDENrl 8pplica1Jon 8haD Cllllftdl. non-aalJll lnach of tis agruement. RESIDENT' ..., agrees ID camplela � updalecl apsiUCailn.
,fncfcdngaCIIIIIUl•lolhtoccupants fnlle Wlltupan 1Mndaysmquastof0WNER. . • . • :
2. PAYl!Nll:Renlald:roladllrgesanfDbepaldattllealce•lplltmlrdoflhlrnanagardll811U1Cna•at•a111ar---rn--1rtOWNER. Farllll i \ 

.-1, 

:a1
.'"'(ffl

fdl'""""'"":::•ma111.i:=r�--�=�=;r�� � °'' \ ''{ 
ADPl)'fflBllllaralobemadl.JIVpC&Ck=Qng ....... ;;;;;:r:i;a ____ __. anddllivmed tA3 _ �g tou�ly (Jty � 
Telephone Numll8r l 1 � -. • � w11o1susuan,avdable an lhefallolflvda'js: fypn, cbfal lhefallalfll 11DUS 9arii-$am . 
3. LA'IE CHAREFm: riteldtc._.,..mnauatnolad a11ove. nat lo al8d81 dlhe montfd1 lllll.111a11 be added loanypqmentalranlnalmade onlll rmml duedate«b'
-•defdent(Nunc:ed)chack&hal hMbeanglnn. TenaataDbollllllellr$25eadlllmo1dleCklamun,edlDatmER..._O,dllClcmdllha11CRd. Afeed-■oo 
wfD be lncumldlldl btleCWNER IIRlqll!rad fDIBIVe aS-Da,Nalce toPa,lhe Railtdua toa. T..-nt'a fdantopay rnmlhtdlyfllldfldue. . . 
4. 8£CIIRITYDIP08fflt 11188aCllftrDepmftsllallrd__.ta._.118�-lirunbnlshedaparfl1ii!tlllcrthraetfamlmmanflyllldfarlllnfllledapafrnenll. TIie
totatofthaallovedepoeiltlllal18C1Acompiaadl IIOternandcandillanlifl11faa;raenallandlhaU berdlldedloREBIDENTllllhm21 dapaftertlle....,..._baan 
�YIClllcllesaltl/8fflom1llllCIIIIIJfDP110WNElta)arr,unpaldrent.b)deanfngCX1118,c)teyrapacamanlCDlll.d)aallllirl8Plftdcfamlgaatoapadmenlancfb' 
camman.,..abcMlanflraywaarandtaar,anda)qalleramountCepDydawdllaundarllttermaoflhls�A�accaun1fngof.uldc:1aptnlmpraauctto 
RESIDENT-'tin 21 dlyaof ....._ lfcfepaatldonolCIOverubcaetl Ind damagal. lhel&DENT lhall lmmadlalaly payllld lddlllonal.ca&tllwdamlgllaCDOWNER. Durrng 
lllllrmaftllllnW,REBIDENT1f8811,lnaallollladepalltupon30cra,allltlennaGqellJanumdequal toqlllnbrlll8Sbranllldoranamamdl)ICBl1IIJIDCIMlrlhe 
costof---a,c11mapar.,...rar11t11c11RE11DENT1&11f1PC1111111. 8-allydapolllllnoti,musedalatmanlilrent. . 
s. U1DJ1tE1: RE81DENTIIP88lto111111rd u111e1andb ... .._. uponaccupencJdtte 118111f1aamap1 aarbaoe . . 
8. OCCUPAN'II: Gaast(a) -. over 14 clap aanulallva ar fanger dwfng sn, 12-nlOldh pedod. llfllm ht OWNERS wrlllln canat. nB be ...... a lnach cf 1h11 
IJSll8ffllllL ONLYlflerololfng MldfnctMdullsandlaranfmals.AND N001HERS 111111 am,prlle-apllflplalllrmoretllan 14 dapualoallll ..... llllfellooneaalof

• OWNER ladltafnad In..._ (la 14 day padod fflllbe llf8ndld IJ/ loclll Ren1 CGnfzd Law): �and .. RESIDENT 111111 
parldd!lanlJllnlll lie a ofS1GO.CI llfl'manDI or251 (or .. anauntallolllll undlr NatOOllml) oflll antmanlhlylint--amauntll giaalur, ltrlhe pmtof 
U.lhateacll._...pstln--oflhD.,_namedlhalGCafJlla---. REBIDENl'lhallpaythe111mtaldfllonalmaatlt,rantllreadladcfllDnal811fmatlnaxa1SSof 
fha .,_ named anfmal(l). llllldl nll OCCUW a......._ AcDlfllU8 of lddflanll rent Cl' .llppRMII d • pat nll nal ..... rac;ufllftllnt of Na 8ll8Clllllnl arCXIMII Ille 
atarus af -,._-Irma RESIDENT. · · • · 
7. PfflAND fURNl8IDNGI: Fumlllt!np• No8qukMilad bnftul8 af any lllnd ma,be '8pton 811 pram1sa. If thesfndlrawas bultrn 1973or.faferRESIDENT may pass8Sl a
wafarbed lfhemafntalalwalmmdlnsurlnmvmed atSUJO.OOO.OOarmore. RESmENTIUI llmflll OWNERdP'GQfof uJdfnlllrancl. RESIDENT must IIIIDcamplf Wlh CM
CodltSICllontNU.Rlllllantlhallnatta,ponpnlnflaa.....,aantalnlagmara#llnllnaalanaoflquld.fllgNJcambudlamallrllla•ollarlllrnl•nr--• 
llarmdorafeclflmrafaluhat.ffltlllcalfnltnlmant.llflm(l)dumlwaf&1110,:dlmanllart. RESIDENTallo8'881lDC111Jfnlulnedaellled1p11updafabyoneRID 
coverposalllaro..CllllldllJuafagllldllems. Pata-KoanllllL IJll,lah.ilple.mdarpatof qldCldallbellepton•a!IXdtlll....._fota,amauntaffmt,dlaul 
obtalnlngllllpdardln caentllldfflllffng Ole n,qunm•oftJta CMNER. Saldcansent. If gllllled.lhal be nwoc:ellleatOWNERBapllmlupan gMnge30GJWlflrlrlnallae. 
tntll8Mtla111 passad•pemdaalanllgrantedtolllVaanyffamllGh[lllfedbJNsagraemant«rtraranymasanlUCh lamedltlonlla--. hnlfll!llllmfn!lrium 
adlmlonalllntd$2&.m amanlh far each ah Ian If analleramauntlsnatlfafldll lllaaan,ement. rn lheevantfawaarapaslld orpermllllan IIQftWICI tobavaapelaniar . 
nnalof an,ldml. Maddillanaldepaallfn lhlamauntdl 3 0QQ 111111 be llqU(ledablwllh lhlalpfngafOWNERS'PET AGREEMENT.• 
8. PARICINGIIRJIWEWhan andlf RESIDENl'lll&llfplld 1paddngapaon 0WNER'8""""1 llllparlcq 1111C1 lllllllllused.....,farpdngdpasan;er 
IWIIIGIID_,,.lme .... wtdclaalllladCIIREIIDEN1'8�fDRedlalll9•lllldlad..._REBIDENTma,nal .. awpafr,Cl'palntlnlllfspallmgsp1a1«1l 
an,alhercamman-anltapramlses. (RE&IDENTa,IIClllllfgrl.sullllt.cralla9�gcml(l)jD ... lflllcraa,aa.palfrltpal.)REBIDENl'lloapanallllatwall 
fllD andalher\'lhfcledlldages farwllfcll RESIDENTlhlDbecflllgadfor daaJng lfdeemedaicasaJybf CMNER. Ont,wldcfela.tnaperdanal 11111'Jpadclnlhafrllllgrlld
apace. . • 
9. NOIE:RESmNTlfPIIII naltocausea-dalriqnalse·•ac:tMt/anlhD pimdsafllatmlgtddl&llrblbepaaceendqufatof analllrRESQJENT. 81111 nolsealarecl,llystllll
be I ...,,of lllll,.__._ • • . • · 
10.LOITIIDIAND PLAY: Launafal. � •unnacasarlallllfnalnlbellllll.cmdlthntlllps,arln a.camman ... rnab1wa,a1Dlnlertlrlvftlleaehe•and 
---P111181••.-del..-ofenalmrREBfDENTlsp&ddli2ad. 
11. DE81RUCTlGNGFPREMIIE8: lflllpmdsaabacxma fDlally•parlldydalqed duJfng Iha tannaftil,.__solllltRESIDENl'8usellafaullyfmpa!rad. RE8UJSNT.
•OWNERma,tllmfnafalhllApeementfmmadlatettupaa thet,day\Wllan nallce Co ltseolhar.
12. CONDfflONO, PREIIU8: RESIDENT IClcnawfadgas that ha llasmmfned Utepnnfsas and Iha! Slfd pnsmtses.all fumlsllfnp. lxrulat. llmftln. plumlmtg.llratlng. electrlcal
flcllllal.dlllmla..lcmO.dadlad lnVlllfalylheat, Han,,andlaraDolharlilmapnwldedbJOWNER• ddaan. and tngaadlllllllctalyClllldllanmeptamaylllblcdad
efsMlarlflilllfl,.__., RESIDENTlflD ..,...,.,.premlsasllldaDllerllllngoad-andcandilonandfDfmmadialelrpa,faralllOl8Plfrandlar ... llf'/pcdanof
18alaadamaaedby�,llfsgllllllandallMflal.eaapt•pnMladbf law.Allhttannrna11on afflda.-,ant. allafa.abGvHnumallledllelrll btllll� lball

AOAflonNo.101oQM&AND(RMleadffl7)•eop,,f;lll�OM!eraMIClalflcllld�IDG ---1a1 1rcnm 
•IDrca.adDV.UO,(lll)tll.fZCIO•LDl"--OUlffl.all•LaaJ ... CSGl597-MD•a..tGnMl(7M)5JNCIDl•lmDqc»(6191.,_1111D7•'Nldlclat'lllllalilC,ICQ119-7DI 

.�.,. A'f/u ( �iJ 1i, '(Jw-,/L •J�-<r:�· j1eur � • 
7 000036 . 

\\ 

~A~ • --Nulablr J19J 

::: cii~~~&!:;~ ~ .. ,~ A11-ti,..:.tA • , Vt 
Aplnamdrtanller. 1191 \1''." 
,__,__ iZ9J-28tb Avenue • ,r"' ·, A .A 
~ Oakla~ fi-~21p946Q1 • \\1-\d> fV1. 
ManlldfRenlllRldl: .,,,.,3 ~ . ..--111111--· 0/JOZ ,llldGllllllnul:(cfllct•6at ----a a.rwil" .a..·- .. -- •• 
8lcudlfDeplllllt S:):(.,-A a.liZL 1t11118AOfl8 • • at.tlldlblllllllallaraDIIIICCnte.-lD 

taiea■ge: I 7 . mdh IIIIBJ, lfTenanlll!GUldlllOVI lnp!IIIIINlpdarlOU._.. -• 11111.111 

Padtng&pam: ------ -llallllllrda.1111taflllllldllat118aparlMlllocaupladlifl.8ndlllnl-eppnllllldllnl 
--- Q ldrtllll(rllllofllfdlnlllldld..._,. .. _.,_ 

. I 

000149



be
 IICumed

toOWNER
fndaan

 and
 goad

 conditJan
 excepa

rar
leasanallle

 ...
 a

rear,
 118

,enaes
ltlall

 be
he

of
d

pellorlll
prope,ty

and
tlalh

not
lJelqrng

 to
 OWNER.

Ills
 

sgreed
lhal

d
clt.

 llala.
 llml.

bums.
ar

slafns
ol

any
•

•
amount

tnlt
ec:erpeSa.

.--.
 waus.

 ldmes.
andlar

my
olhar

pad
ol

the
,nndsal.

do
not

mndUe
rrm

de
war

an
cU

ear
. 

• 
• 

13.
 IIAfNIENAN

CI
MD

AL
TERA

1lGNS
: RESID

ENT
 lhall

 nal
pafnt.

 wdpaper
, att

er
or

recfacorate.
 cllange

or
fnstd

focb.
 fnltaD

,numnt
or

oUtar
equf

pment.
 1C18W1s

 falf.8nlng
..._

__..,,
large

nalls
,«

ad!IISMt
mafedall.

placa
sips

,dlsplap.
or

dll8t
dllbltt.

 an
 ar

m any
parJan

of
llle

anm1181
.alOUt

lha
wdltan

cansant
d

lfle
OWNER

mapt
a

 
ma,

be
pcowfad

by
law

. RESID
ENT

shall
dDposil

d
garbap

and
wasf8

fna
deln

end
ll1lllary

ftllllllf
fnlo

lhe
prapar

aamptacla
•

lllwdad
llld

lbll
cooperafa

lntaapq
lll

 
gadN!gt

1111
 fllll

llld
deln.

 RESmENT
 lhd

be
apcx

lllllle
b

dil'posfng
d

lrema
af

 suc:h
 llza

ot
nan

 •
•not

 ftQIINIUy
aompllllle

 by
ll8

galllp
 haufer

for
Gll

buffdlng.
 

REIIDENr
•

bl
re1

pu
11lillle

b'
lraepfng

lB
gadmge

cllsposal
claln

d
cl\tdal

ba1181.
 faal;ldla.

math
ltlclcs.

 cellry
,pill

,gw.
 melal

wgela1te
tlel.

 and
all

•
llaml

ltlal
 

ma,
fend

tocauae
1'°"898

of
tllll

medlanlsn
LRESrDENT

sbd
pay

for
the

deadng
au

taf
 any

phan111ng
 11atura

lhat
may

need
 IO

be
dearad

of
stappaga

and
a

lha
...,.

,.
 

damage
caueed

lrf
lhe

atDppm
r,of

..,
ptpes

or
ovarlow

tam
bd\tlibt.

 �
 lallerl.

or
sfnb.

lfcausad
lf/

nagUgance
«

mfw
by

RESIDENl'
ur

tllefr
guala.

 T
enant

11111t
 

natif/
landronl

llfth
awdlln

nub
lCalfng

wlllt
bem(l)

need
_..

«
llplt

llld
p,t

landad
a1

easanat11&
CJAXIUIIY

CO 
....

 «
nJplfr

that
ftllm(t).

 Shcdd
any

dmps
be

 
tnamed

bJ
tlle

CllJ
•

• l8allt
clf

 nut
�

llla
l.lndbd

lndng
of

 auc:h
needed

_..
or

rapeb.
 1anant

lllall
lle

NIPClftl(ble
llr

1 atilWm
 uf

SIH
.IO

b'
am

uccmnn:e
prus

 
an,

addilDna1
Dnal

or
lnspacllan

,_
ln..-,d

lF/
aQM11

U11111t
dlce

a
arld

uf 
RESrDENT

nat
noat,ing

 OWNER
bMftbtg

ol
an,

deflclel
ldas

d
Clle

l8Sldance.
 

14
.8IOKIICARBCJN

 IIONOXIDE
DIBTORS:

 Tlle
nintal

 11111
11 

�
\ilh

 prapedy
lmc:tlonfna

 smak8
 &nd

caban
 manmdde

 delaclorB.
 Resldenl

agzeea
 to

flll
the

 sno
ke

and
 carban

 monoxlde
deteclara

 fn 
Iha

 nldal
urt

 ITIClnllllJ
b'

praper
ftmcllan

. Relldant
8'181

not
f0

fntedre
wflh

 lhllfr
nonnal

bldlan
 or

dllatlla
any

detacbn
b"'l

maraa
.

15.
 HOUll,

POOL,
AND

LAUNDRY
RUl.ES:

RESIDENT
all

mmlll,
'11111

 aD
houso,

pod.
pet,

 and
laundly

ndes
altldlad

fo
dlfs

apament
lLtllctl

ma,
N

clllflPll
lam

Cfme
to

lrme.
llaa

ndel
lhaD

IPllf'l
to.

but
111

aat
Umled

fD.
nalll.

adall.
dlsposal

of
trash.

•
parllfng,

usa
of

carnmDn
·meas.

a1
s11Xaga

of
lDJl.

llqdal.
blls.

and
oll8f

,-anal
ffams

 
(fndudfng

-
and

lltmdlJ)
, lllddl

 must
 bl

 kapl
fnllde

 and
Olll

rl
vlew

. OWNER
lllaB

 nat
ba

 Bafe
lD

 RESmENT
far

llf/
\tialan

of
 such

 mfea
l,y

any
other

 RESt
DEN18

or
pn,ns.

 
R1Stm

ol
uaage

and
matnlananca

af
lhe

rud,J
100111

andlar
pool

and
poal

araa
ma

gra!ullous
and

sulject
lD

nwaca
lln

by
CMNER

at
q

8mL
 

18.
 CHANGE

OP
11R118

: Tlle
fams

and
cxnlrb'ls

af
lNs

agraement
n

-.
lOldln

c111nge
 by

OWNER
der

llll
m;lrallon

ol
tlle

81P98d
'8all

pedad
upan

30
dap

..man
nollce

ldng
fadh

ah
cllqe

lDll
d6wed

lD 
RESIDENT

.MJ
c:blDgel

a
lldlject

tD
lawl

fl..,._
al

lha
lfme

rl
lha

Nalfca
 Of

Cllln,,
Of

Terms.
 

17
.1ERIIDIA

1lON:
MII

.,..
 of

 Iha
 laalfng

pmtod.
 this

 &plnll1t
lsm

dffld:aDJ
 ......

 tom
 ma1

11Hoofflon11.
 bul

fR/
be

lllmfnlrad
 tr,

eftller
party

, Tlla
CMll8t

glwlng
 a 60-

cfay
 ROlbt

 and
 lll

rllldll\t
f'ng

a 3Ddaf
 vdall

aob
ol

lnt9nlun
 tD

cermtnale.
 Wlm

 lnl
reqma

 'Jusl
 causa

,• IUCh
jusl

 C8UII
 lhaD

 be
so

llallcl
m

 said
 nab.

 'De
pnmllses

 
shaD

 be
 cansklarad

 vacalall
 only

 after
 aD

 ara
 fndudfitQ

 llarar,8
 meas

 me
 dear

 of
 au

 RE8IDENl'8
 belongfRgt.

 and
 1rays

 8Rd
 au,a,

 snsaat,
 tmllhad

 b'
 IBDENl"S

 use
 ma

 
relUmld

 to
 OWNER.

 Shodd
 118

 RESI
DENT

 bdd
 a.

 lleyaRd
 a.

 eennfnalfoll
 date

 ar
 fal

 ro
 vacala

 111
,a

1 s 
a 1s

fa11
1 en

«
 babe

 Ill
 tsndndan

 dale.
 REBIDENT

 nl
 be

 lallle
 for

 
adllklllll

18111
and

damlgas.
 wtllch

may
fnduda

damapl
cbt

COCMNER'S
loss

d
prospedlve

 new
 RENTERS.

 
18.

 PO
ll
■

SION:
 If CMNER

II anabre
lD

 de!Mw'
' O

 11
 a H

ien
 of

 lbe
Aparfrneat

 ID
 RESIDENT

 an
 8M,

 apal
 dale

, baclule
 of

 1118
 m

 Cl
 dancllon

d
b9

 Apa$nent
ar

because
af

 lie
. falJUII

 of
 Iha

 pdar
REIUENl'

tDVll:afe
 ar

fur
an,

aller
llllCln.

 Ole
 RE8fDENT

 ancf/ar
 OWNER

 may
lmmedllralJ

cancel
 and

 Clrmfnata
 11111

 agamanl
lf'II

 wdllan
 nolce

 to
 the

 Ulher
 

pa
rt,

at
llllr

raat
 1cnown

 addNsa.
 aceupmi

ndher
pmty

lhall
hava

lfallDr
 to

 lhe
otm

, and
 an,

an
 pa!d

undir
ltlfa

Afplernenl
shaD

be
 rdmded

 fn
ful

. ff
nelltlar

pa
rty

cancm
, 1h11

 
Agraanent

lhall
be

PR>fllld
llld

 begln
 e11

11'8
dale

of
 lCblal

po
 11 a

11i
a..

 
19

.INSI
IIMCE:

 REIIDBfl'
acfalaEdgel

llll
OWNER'S

fnllnnce
does

nal
cavar

pallalll
prqaty

damage
 caused

 bf
 le,

 lleft.
 rain.

•
• acll

 af
Gad,

 ads
al

olm.
 andlar

any
 

o11,w
--.

 nar
lball

 CMKER
lll

hald
llallle

for
am

lDaes.
 RESID

ENr
HEREBY

 AGREE8
10

QBT
AIN

 HIS
 OWN

INSURANCE
 POUCY

10
 COVER

Nlf
 PERSONAi.

LOSSES.
1'1111

 dall
nal

walVI
 OWNER'S

 duty
 ID

 prMlll
personal

 f1$11y
ur

praperty
damlge

wtl
ent

llll
ctut,

falmpasod
 by

Caw
, hllweu

, RES
tD&N1'8

 fdale
to

ma
lntam

sald
sat,

ellall
be

 a 
complati

_.
cf

RESIDENT'S
rfghtl

to
seek

damaps
agalnat

OWNER
 lar

ebcwa
ataled

loaes.
 

20
. RI

GHT
 OF

 EN1RY
 AID

 INSPECfflON:
 OWNER

«
CWNER'S

 ltenl
 by

ttlamllMt
ar

wfth
 alhla.

 ma,
emar

, lnlpecl
 mdar

rapafr
lha

 �
at

any
 lfme

ln 
CIII

 of
 eanergll

lCJ
or

suapaclad
ab

an
da

nn
nt.

 OWNER
nD

gtva
24

houra
ldvance

ft01fcl
 llld

rmr,
..,

fur
lha

pu1pc111
ol

lhalq
tha

premll88
cbeng

ft0ffaal
bunls

lrm
1D

�
cen-.

 
lu)1n,

 llnlell.
 Car

lllde
atarm

 lnspacllans.
andlor

lar
nanna:l

lnspactbl
and

 .,._
 OWNa

fspeadted
 ta

mue
all

 aDDraUans.
 ,apall8

and
 1namtar

m
 lhal

fnOWHER'S
 

Judlpnant
llMOIIIIIIJ

ID
pestbrm.

 rn
addftlan.

ONHER
flll

tha
lWlt

Coentar
purauant

to
CM

C'de
�

 1954
. lf

llll
m

pdlnned
 ....

 118l
RE8IDENl'

llfl
tpCNllily

vaca18
the

 
un

it, Dian
RES

IDENT
lllll

vacate
llr

lds
tempanay

pllfod
upan

being
NMd

a 7
G'l

nalfce
bJ

OWNER.
REStDENT

IQl88l
lhat

balUdl
8¥11lt

RE8fDENT
wlD

 be
ldlly

campnatad
 

bJ
•0111111P!ld

• ....,
fntha

llld
 b

thaae
man,

-,s
 Uat

RESIDENT
•

 lamJmdly
dlslllaaad,

 No
ollar

canqlGlllllllaa
 ltd

be
 u

Co
flla

 RESIIJENT
. lf

lha
m

 fo
be

 
perfucmad

--
llle

wu
p1111

1liJ
Haf

lla
RESIDENT

1D
perbrn

catm
taoa.

 aien
REStDSfl'

nu
pasfmm

blSl
 ....

 upan
llC8Mng

1ZMluur
lldllan

 nob.
 (EXAMPLE:

 
nmNng

bxl
ftanl

tom
adline1s

so
Chal

l'8
mil

may
lll

&plllJed
fur

peatl.
) Upan

Z4
holoa

nolce,
 REBIDENT

_.,
ll'lll

to
land

OWNER
a.

-,s
to

tbe
panta

far
lll

 
pwposo

of
ba\fn9

1tltpBca1e
made

 far
 OWNER'S

-.
 

21
.AlltGN

IENT:
 RlltDENr

1gt111
not

1D
bansrer

, aasfp
ar

lU!llet
 lhe

)lfem1ses
or

an,
part

hnof
and

herlby
appafrdD

and
aufhad211

ht
owmt

as
lda

agent
andlar

lay
OWNER'S

G111
1U111adlJ

ID
evlcl

a,
penon

 clllmilg
pa

111
11E

111
 ti,

n,
of

 an,
alllged

 llll
p

me
nt«

sulalng.
 

22.
 PARnAL

 INV
AIJDIIY

: Noltlrng
cxllflfnad

 fn 
llda

....,_
lhaD

 be
 CUlllfrUed

 •
 waMng

any
af

 AEaDENT'S
 or

OWNER'S
 rfFtl

 under
lie

 law
. If

 any
 pad

 of
 1111

.,.,_.
 

lll1all
 be

fnOORl!cl
lllll

Dle
 larl.

 llat
 pad

lhaD
III

VDld
 fO

lhe
eant

thal
HII

 fn 
codld.

 but
all

nol
lnvddate

ldl
Agreament

nar
al

a affecl
the

 vdlly
«

dlatalllly
of

 any
-

pnMllaR
 af

�
Agarneal

 
.•

 
. 

23.
 NO

 W
AIVER:

 OWNIR'8
 acceptance

 of
 rant

wflh
 llnoladp

 Df
 an,

 dafaull
by

 RE8(
0ENT

 ur
walw

by
OWNER

 of
 any

lnacl'l
of

 any
 Cean

ur
candillan

d
ltda

,._.i
na

 nat
 

constiluta
aWSMr

cf
 aublequant

lnac:has.
 Falme

to 
requlrl

mnplance
or

 ID
8'llldle

any
,wat

sl1all
 not

ba
 canalrUld

 as
 awalver

 t,r
OWNER

d
llld

 tarm.
 candlan.

 llldlar
rfgld.

and
lhlll

nat
dlct

le
wlfdlly

ar
mt

buuallilf
wl

mr,
ofher

pca.lllDn
af

lNI
A(plament.

 
24.

 A1TORNIY'8
 FIE8:

 lf-,
--

acdan
ar

pwclrrg
 be

 brqtd
 br

ebr
.,_

lo 
lda

agreement.
 the

pnwailfng
 party

 nD
 ba

 llfmlmad
 llr

lll
 i11101

lltlle
 mane,s8

 faea
 up

to
bul

not
mn

aian
ao

rn 
lddllxl

 to
aller

damagas
awardad.

 
•

26.
 ABANDO

NIENI':
 Calfumla

 Clvll
Code

 8eclan
 195

1;2
 lh

aD 
gowm

 Ab
an

dol
11111

11t.
 lf any

 R1111
 baa

 llffllfned
wipafd

 b
 14

 or
mcn

 cansecutl¥a
 daJH

nd
 118

 OWNER
 has

 a
nrasonablt

blllef
 ol

ablndul
vnaat

of
 Iha

,...._
 OWNER

 lhaD
l#VI

 18
-

Wlilen
nallal

 ID
REIIDENT

 lt
any

pface
 (lncludfng

 lll
med

pramllel
)lhal

 CMNER
lia

llllGR
fo

 
belM

l&IDENT
ma,

_..
llld

nolel
of

GWNER'B
fn1an1iaa

lD
dadara

lat
..--

lbandanad.
 RESmENrS

faba
�

RJSpDnd
lD

ldl
aub

■
IIQUfrld

bJ
law

lhall
daw

 
OWNER

CO
lldlfm

lle
pamllel.

 
28

. 1be
 mdll

llg
Hed

 RSaN18
 ant

Job!Y
mtd

 saven1IJy
 raspor

lllble
 and

 lfa1lle
 fcr

al
 obllptloaa

vnder
Cllls

apeme
ntand

ehaD
 fndemlllfJ

OWNER
 far

lillilty
causad

 bJ
Che

acUGIII
(omisslon

•
commtssb

@d
l&DENll.

 thelr
guests

and
&Mttal.

 
21

.Pmulnt
CO

laclfun
tJIUl

of
tlla

Callamfl
Cflll

Codl.
•

IIClufrad
bf

law
,,o1.1

111
_.,

no11ad
flllt

1 neplve
ad

rapart
clldng

on
 ,aur

credft
hlllolr

ma,
ba

 
dml!llll

lo1
a8dll

rapcdng
lQ8DGY

,lf
,UU

fd
fo

lllllJ
lha

tarms
af

,-
ncB

GMgdua.
RE81DENT

mpesslf
aullallll

OWNERIAGEN1'
(1ndudlng

1culledDll
...-,)

IO
aldlfls

Resfddl
---

CRdft
"IIQll.

 whtll
OWNBV

AGSCT
ma,

use
lfdemplng

lD
colllcl

pat
a

Nld
paymmdl.

 lale
fees.

 •
oDmr

dmges
ftan

Rllldant.
 ldl

dullng
 the

fllm
al

 
lie

 Agreement
 and

 tllereaftlr
. 

. 
. 

28.
 Llld

Wl
mfna

8tatnln
t Huulfng

 llullt
bafar8

197
8 may

cantaln
 fud.Nsed

 pafnt.
 Lead

 tam
 pafnl.

 painl
-

and
du&l

pao
healtb

llllardl
 If nol

managed
JIIIIPIIIY

. Lad
fDPUIUl8

1aespacldJ
hamllzl

to
,auag

chlcbq
and

pregnat
waman.

 Beln
reralng

P19-
1978

haul!ng.
 OWNERS

muat
dlldost

the
 sr-

of
--

leld
 tll

lld
pa!Rt

lmlnll
b 

lhe
dweDfll.

 REStDEN18
musl

allo
racehe

a�
apprlMCI

PlfflllNal
un

laad
pdlolq

lllMllflDn.
 

�
DIICLGSURE

 (rnla)
 

�
 �

 rslBllla
 (on

 lefQ
 mean

 OWNER
 has

 no
 lcnMdge

 of
 lead-bned

 palnl
 ardor

te �
 hat8!ds

 fn
 or

un
 the

 Premfs8S
 and

 OWNER
 flD

no
 IBpmfl

 «
iimrdl

pntnrng
 fo

leld
 balld

 palnt
lRdlw

laad-balad
pafnt

 hazardl
ln

 ar
an

 a.
 PramJas.

-i
 

UNTBR
�s

 mlUal
 (an

 left
) Indicate

 dlll
 llBNTBR

 11111
 

realwccl
 a

 ocapy
 of

 a 
"Protect

 Y
ou

 ramDy
 1nm

 Lead
 ID

 Y
tar

 ....
. ml

 lbt
 RENTIR

 111111
 D8Clfy

 OWNER
 prmaplly

 In
 ..,,.,,

 GI
 IDJ

 
ddcdcn111C

adlar
 peellna

plllst.
 

•• 
2l

 MOLD:
 lhe

OWNER'AGENT
la

 fnlpecled
 Iha

 unll
prlor

to
faase

 8Rd
 nn

 af
 no

dlmp
cw

wet
buldfng

 malBrlala
and

 llna
of

 no
mdd

 w
dl

11lli
l.1iJI

L Rarldant
a,-

to
 

aapt
tdl

 -,ansDJl&lf
 anct

 llll1rdldn
 11a

 premises
 fn 

11111M1r
11at

 preven11
 tse

 OCC111111D
 or

 an
 lnfestdan

 of
 maid

 rn
 the

 pc11111aa.
 Rtslden

tlfso
 qna

 to
 fmmedlalatt

 
NPart

loChe
 OWNERIAGENT

q
.,._

of
watar

lam.
 excmlva

fllGll1we
ar

llclc
ol

pniper
ventilllfan

and
Nlance

of
mdd

 a.t
c:amal

be
rlfflCMld

bJ
deanfftg.

. 
<ii)

 
. 

�
Fonn

Nca.
 1

0
WMICLAND

(JM!lld
7

n
7)

-Cllpl'IIN
l010

•
--

0...
AIIOCIIIDrll

fl
CIIIIDmla.

rno.
--

_,,,
.,,..

 
• S..

rtllllalll
 VdlDr

ll
ll)

-.-
• 
Lol

Aaplia
CJD

l'IJMI
II

 .
....

 Bmdl
lf611

5W.zm
•

Glllllm
0...

('1
14

)DMGOO
•IID

Dkp
(6

19)
Z

IOo
1GD7

 •
Naldlcm

C'llllnia
C5

IOl
 ,._

7SZ
I 

0
0

0
0

3
7

 

000150



so. �.=.:czDt!&!eagaa:\Wt5'v1! reoalrs and renlacements of all aoolfaores

31. N011CE8: All nalcel CD RESmEN1' shall be ind al RESIDENT'S apadment/llGUl8 wllehr« not RESIDENl'ls preraltat Ille time of delivery end 89 nolcal lo OWNER/
AU1HORIZED PERSON llllllbe lllvedbJ&ll dallmallngto:

PerlonAulllorlledTolllllapPfapldy: . 
Nam1111..... ________ Adcfilll�-----------------------
PhanaNmnber., _______ _ 
OWnwof.....,araptJ1GJ111bolladlodlllllollllfarlllclonlllllalfoflllt-fortbpmpaseofanlclofpnN11111lllfarllllpmpo11ofraMngudllOllpClaa 
llrlllndCllmldlmlndl. 
Nama._ _______ Addlaa. _______________________ _ 
PhaneNuniber., __________ 
Fll'IGll•EalilrAatllorlzldfD .... Pa,mentofRenl: 
Naina"---_______ Addnlsa 
PllllleMmdler. , ·------------------�-----
��1118...-cadafnslllfablfngftemlrar•11rRESIDEN1':11.-1·stalliU.ll¥UiP...uref'da:u.a1i11erator;;aa ...... _________ _ 
RESIDENT Ida •iiM1lldgal 1111118 .. pmltea are lanllhed d Iba adllanal bnfsNnp Blfad m 1111 dlched fnvenlaly and l1ll ml alldlad 1a1n1D1J II 1--, 
lll8dl part af 111118fllfflllll. • · • 
33. Pnlpollllan&SNDtm Wlmfll= Same-ma,oonflfncllemfa!llrnownlDlll8tatadCdaadatoC11U11ccar,lllrlldefacll«Gllir�hlrm.
34. Nalbtlsbnlf SM11aflhaexlalenmdlbe RBfflltlat RefttAdlilratlan Baat-(RRAB) and llePallMtbllonAaglan,altear,dOallfand.Clla olced.ttilfslaadld at
& Frink H. � Pim. P Roar, Odrand. CA. 9C812. phone1U1111er(&tO)m3721. Thi RlldMiaaall Pnlpn(OlllllndMlridpllCadl. Qlpelr&22) lellladdendumll
allaclladCo DIis leae and adinCMfedged fn 1Unber35 below a I lease addenlbn � fanlfttl af dl8 Nallce ID Tenan!s "8IRlfn8 Oelllnd'I RtntAdjuslmentPropm).111 lie
eventlflatOwnar/AQenlelecllllDllomplementanannualcantld)llfmant. llloOll .. dl--,acMsesTenantfllltOlaedaQent._fDlllldcanylllCblanl .... toftdare 
)'ltlr(a)IXIIIUIIIICOlhepramlmmofllmOaldlndRIAIMlnlalOnlnance. 
Nall: T-andllndlotdladapled.and1&110IDCIOIIIPIJwfthMealuleEE•JatCBuseEn:lan•Qdnance1ar81aatyafOallland.CA..llhlchraqunslan1tbdsdlpec(lled 
rasfdenllatpniperlfes.lhar\J111l>l\'ldafnlltonlrbt111C111llpld!edblflemeasure,lllchanan,pa,-orna.lnachdlaaal.dalllagfngpill'l!llel.dzug«alharlllpl. 
actlvllJ, dlsmfedJanblt.llllllllilalanaf unit. lanclbdor.,...occupanc:y, emiplln Cllllfnclraimstanoeswla_alhafenanllsdidad, eldafycr �m. Altber, lhe 
anlnance pnr.tfel far damages. penaltlaamd atlamera'alpfnatlandlaldl11how:ilallllllfaw. SmdTenantwlllflany pcdanof lltaanlna:nce. LaadlDntmayexen:lseldllher 
rfgldloer.fclfnntllrcflmlpl.pendlasadatlomep'faa. . . . • 
35. REIDSll'aclam!edgesaafpt of the falllMfng, l\fllchshaDbe � a paltof ltlls Aplemant (Plaasecllack)

I
' HauseRulal 
LaundryRufes 
� .. iPelAgraenmt 

PooJRules 
lflrlmantl(tp iGlrapDaarOpener 

NobloTalllU: 0alland'I
. 
ReftlA@lslmlntPror,lffl 

lnfal'nldonAbaut BedBup stlNI 

38. ENTIREAGREEIIEN'F: TIiis AgralmantcanstJ1utes lheenlle Agieement between OWNER and REStDENT. Noord agnNlilarda have been enfalld Into. andall modlffcalonsor
MIIC88 lhallbeln wdlfng lo be valid. TIie undellJ;ned R8l!denta n )olntly and l&Wllly respmd& faraD obllption8 unclll'thfs agreement aid 8tlaU � Onrforflatlfty
caused lr/lrelCGall (omlalanorcamnuslon)drealden� 11e1r.-111d lndNI. Rlnterha rtlfad m hflonJuiflmal1lln entadrl lntotltlsegllllfflllRt.
37.NOIICl:AlrlulnllDSacllaa280.48ofl8Pene1Code.fnfmmalfonllloutlpeclfiildllQlltnd•oflndnllmldlavallllllefDthapulllc\'li anlnlemelWablffamalnlamdbJ
Iha Dapatmentof Juslfcealww.1111g11m.cap. � an mofancWlafmlnal Nstmy, lfllltnramallon .u fnclude elllsbtaddrlll at Vetddllla oflndllrlllldes ,.._
canmurdlyofnllfdalceandztPCodaln�ha0tshlraafda
38. RECEIPT GF AGRIEIEN'I: Tlleundarllpled RE81DENTherlbf artlSa ltll1 tie/she le lluentln Iha l:n;lllh languagD and has nsad aml aomplatllly mdelltlnds llfs ltgreemenl
andh818bJac:lril0"8dgalrace1ptof aawot1t11s9RentalAgreemantacfAwl.ealt.■L--) RllmEN1"8bdlflll:
ORPUllulnlCDCIBfondlClvD Codi 1812, "111c11 rteplfllllrlllllallon oftplCllldconlrldlor .... tbd111 nepld1dfn8plallll.ctdnlll, Vlotnlawlt, Tqatog 

���-1111..., ........ 11111•11111W111•ivij· �(1a111e1rfaralp11npapot sponi,rh
�VfAl'U�lP\ , 'J'OV __ JI\,� , Di/2y//1 
PrfntedNamed� Spaueoffnllqllllr Dall 

� 
Mana �ii, K�'l-l,- Resident ;- Date 

� .,. J:. ti . '-� v�f:.e. $.

Olnarlltant Data 
�VOt,n t½,allt u!•?. Y�rt 

NOREFREBENrA110NISAMDEAB 10 &Law. VAUDffl'ORTliEMJIEQUACYOPMl'IPROVIBIONINDIISAGRESIENT.IFWJUDEBIRELEGALADVIC& CONSULT 
W>CIRA11DRNEY. 

• • 
, • MMl'onnNca.101-cMICI.MD(Rllelld 1'ff7)•CClpJlfgtll�O...Allaclllland� -•-COCVIOfflffl 

•llll�V.U.,(lll)...,._•l.aaA.-tm,9J7ollll•Lolls._.CS611ffl44D•Gabate.t7MJSJ9.ao•S.Dqo(61,,JID.711Qf•NmdallNllll'IIIICSI0)»7DI 

000038 

I 

:::::Jll24/1 Z · 

000151



\ 

CITY o. OAKLAND . � 

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 84812·2043 � 
Department.of Housing and Community Development TEL {610) 238•3721 
Rent Adjustment t:»rogram • FAX (610) 238-8181 

TDD (610) 238�3264 

NOTICE TO TENANTS-OF THE RESIDENTIAL 

• Oakland has a Rent AdJuslment Plograill ( .. RAP") 1bat limbs increases (Chapter 8.22 of die Oakland·
Municlpal Code) and cown most resktendal rental units built fore 1983. For more Information on
which units are covered, contact the RAP office. 

• Starting on F� I, 2()17, an owner must petition the RAP ti any rent Increase that la more. than the 
annual ·genera1 rent lnc:reaso ("CPI increase") or allowed .. bank rent increases. These include capital . 
improvements and operalins expense incrasu. For these types f rent lmnases. lhe owner may raise your .
rent only after a hearfns officer has apprpved 1he Increase. No rent increase may exceed 10%. You • . 
have a risht to contest the proposed rent increase by n,sponding the ownel''s pelition. You do not have 
to ftle your own petition. 

• Collfeltiag a ae.t lacnase: You can file a peddon with 1he to contest unlawfb1 nmt increases or
decreasecl housing services. To contest a nmt lnaease, yau must le a petition (I) within nfnety (90) clays 
ofthe notice of rent Increase if the owner also pJOVidecl ti.tis N •• to Tenants with the notice of rent 
ina-5e; or (2) whhfn 120 days of the no1ice of rent Increase If s Nodce to Tenants was not Biven with 

• the notice or rent imnase. lfthe owner did not stve this Notice Tenants at the begbmlag of your 
tenancy, you must file a petition within ninety (90) days of fint Ivins this Notice to Tenants. 
ln�nnalion and Che·peddon fonns are available tom the RAP in office at die Houafns Assislance
Center: 250 Prank H. Opwa Plaza. 6th Floor, Oakland and at:

. 

• If you contest a rent lnaease, you must pay your nml wllh the conb=tted increase until you tile a petition.
If the increase is appmved and you did not pay the increase. you ·u owe the amount of the increase . 
,etroactlve ·to the effecdw date or increase. 

• Oakland has evlcticnfc:ontmls (the Just Cause tor Eviction Oldiuince 
whlcb limit the srouncts tor evictions in covered units. For more WCJanaticm contact the RAP off'ice. 

• Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit year. lfthe fee is paid on time. the 
owner is end�fed to pt half of the fee fi'oQ1 you. Tenants in su1bsldlad units me not required to pay the
tenant portion oflhe fee.

• Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance r'TPO") to deter h 
tenants lepl iecoune in Instances where they are subjectccl to batmllilll behavior by landlords (0.M.C.
8.22.600). {Chy Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M�S.) 

• The owner D Is 1Zl is not permiued to � the Initial mnt on tld unit without lhnltatlons (such as· 
pumuant to tbe Costa-Hawkins Act). If the ownir is not perml to set the initial rent without limitation, 
the rent in etTect when the prior tenant vacated was _.17....,9 .. 1 __ . 

intend to nmt. 
llted in odlei' unhs of your bo1h smokins and non-smoldns units 
unils in which smotdns is asermlacd.·

outdoor smoking area. 

··1-1.y-r=t
(Date) 

dtft■W (--■) 11111 .. flilmGJU• • x.-. ■aa CS10) � 21 IIU*• 
la Notlftcad6n del Del'echo dal lnqufllnoestj dlsponlb!e en espaftol. SI una copla, Dame al (510) �72L 

Revised 2/10/17 

000039 

- --r .... Roplaliam, o.M.C. 8.22) 
J - -

-~~I behaviors. by landlords and to give 

• SmoJdng(cin:leone) IS or N in Unit ]79 
• Smoldng(alroleoae)ISor ----· 

cxisl fn tclllnl's bulkH,"&,IIJlill'9"USI 
• There (drc!o one) IS 

I received a copy ofcbis nolico on _____ _ 

000152



r· 

CIUDAD DE OAKLAND Jtllllla. 
P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94812-2043 • � 
Departamanto de Deaarrollo Comunltarlo y Vlvlenda 
Programa de Ajuates en el Alquller TEL (510) 238-3721 

FAX(510)238-8181 
TDD (610) 238-3264 

AVISO A LOS INQUILINOS.DEL PRC)GRAMA DI AJIJSTIS EN EL ALQUILER 
RDIDENCIAL 

• Oakland dene un Proarama de �tes en el AlquHcr (Rent Adjusament Program. RAP) que limita los
aumentos en el alquller (Capitulo 8.22 del C6dfp Municipal de Oakland) y cubre a la mayorla de las
unidades residendales en alquller construldaa antes de 1983. Pam.mis informaci6n sobre las vivlendas
c:ubiertas, contacte a la oficina del RAP. .

• A parlir clel 1° de tebren;,_ de 2017, 1m propletario debe presemar una pedci6n ante el RAP pam todo
aumento en el alquiler que sea mayor que el aumento general anual en el alquiler ('6aumento CPI") o
permiddo que los aumentos en el' alquilcr sean .. inverticlos". Estos incluyen mejoras de capita! y aumentos
en los gastos operatlvos. En lo que respecta a cste tipo de aunienios, el propietario puecle aumentar su

• aJquiler s61o clespuds de que un ftmcionario de audiencia haya autorizado el incremento. Ninpn aumento' anual en el alquUer podni exceder el 10%. Ulled dcne derecho a dlsputar el aumento en el alquiler 
propuesto respondiendo a la petfck\n del propletario. No es indispensable·que ustcd prese'ntc s11 propia 
pdici6n. 

• Cdmo cllspatar an aamento en el alquDen Puate presemar una pelidm ante el RAP pm clsputar .
aumentos ilfcJtos en el alquDer o la dismJnucl6n de servidos en la vivienda. Para disputar el aumento en el
alqw1er, debe prescmar ana pedckm (1) en un plam de (90) dfas a partlr de la fecha clel aviso cle aumento
en ·e1 alquiler sl el pn,pletario tambim proporoion6 este Aviso a los lnqui� con la notiflcacicm clel

• aumeato en el alquller; o (2) en.1n1 plam de 120 dfas a partir de la fecha de recepcion clel mso de aumcato
en el alquiler sl este Aviso a los laquilinos no fbe entrepclo con la nodticaci6n de aumento en cl alquller.
Si el propietario no entrego este Aviso a los lnqullinos al iniclo del periodo de arrendamiento. clebenl
preseatar una solicltud en ID1 plazo do (90) dfas a partir de la fecba en que recibi6 por primera w:z cste
Aviso a los laqulllnos. Encontran1 lnformaclon y formularfos disponfbles en la otlcina del RAP en el
Centro de Asistcncia de·Vivienda: 250 Fnmk H. Ogawa· Pia&, 6" Piso. Oakland; tambi6n puede visflar:
hffir.!lwww2:98kJemlnct&qgt{Ggyenmu;gt1olhcd{o/RentAdlusgnent.

• Si usted disputa un aumento en el alquUer, debe papr su alquHer am el aumento disputado hasta que
presente la petfd6n. Si e1 aumento es aprohado y usted no·to pag6. � la suma del lncremento
retroactivo a-la fecha de lnk:io de vigencfa del aumento.

• Oakland t1ene controles de cfesalojo (Orclenama de Desalojo por CausaJusta y ·Reglamentos, O.M.C. 8.22)
que limitan las motlvos de dcsalqjo en las viviendas cubiertas. Para mu lnfannaci6n contacte la oftcina

. RAP.

• Oalcland les cobra a loa propielariOS 11111 Tarifil de Servicio del Programa de Alquiler (Rent Proaram
Service Fee) por vMencta al afto. Si la tarifil se paga a liempo. el pn,pletarlo liene 4fereoho a cobnr la mltad
del costo de esta lariti al inquilino. Nose requiere que las inqailinos de viviendas subsfdiadas paguen la
porcion del inquilino de la larifa. •

• Oakland posce una Ordenama de Protecci6n al lnquilino (Tenant Protectian Ordinance, TPO) para impectir
el �iento abusivo por parte de propletarios y para oftecerles a los lnquilinos recursos leplea en·

. instanc1as doncle ban siclo vfctimas de componamiento �busivo por parte de propiecarlos (O.M.C.
8.22.600). (Ordenanza del Concejo Municfpal 'No. 13265 C.M.S.)

• El propletarlo ..0.. tiene JZL no tiene permitfdo establecer el alquller inf�lal de esta vlvlenda sin
limitaciones (par ,;lemplo, de conformfdacl con la � Costa-Hawkins). Si el propletarfo no tiene pennitido
esaableccr el a1qw1er fniclal sin limitaciones, el alquller vlgeme cuando eJ lnqullino anterior desaloj6 Ja
vivienda era de 2Q16

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap201702b SP 

000040 

---· 

000153



-r r 

INfOBM6QWi ·, LOS JNQUILINQS SOBBI IA§ POLfflCAS PARA fVMADORIS 

• .,_ {cncllllHI-UB cln:ulo) SSTA <§pTA� - la� • • la fflleadaqae Ullal
pretendealqullar. 

� • Amar (cnclerre m WI ofn:ulo) ESTA O TA permitldo ea Gtl'ls vivieJ!dalcle su edificio. (Si hayclisponibilidad
de ambas � lhmadar-y no . • en el cdiltcio dcl lnqailino. -Uuntc una llsta de las vMnfas en dancle se 
� fiamar.) 

• _(F.ndmecn 111_ cfn:ulo). HAY o�Y • irea desfpacla aJ aire libre para ft&mar. Se encuentra en __ _

a..:n.t11111,qtlac1ocs1en1soe1 z-.zY-\::i . H,gn" �.;,fa
• (Fccha) (Ffnnaclel in�)

&flllltca1&■J ........... Xii*• -(510) 2aa-3121M■*• 

La Notlfkacldndel DeredlO del lnqulffnoesbl dlsponlbla enespallol. SI clesea una copfa, Dame al (510) D8-372L 

Modlflcado el 10 de febrero de 2017 
HCDrap20170lb SP 

000041 000154



From: MAY FONG mayleefong@icloud.com 
Subject: Re: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program -T18·0311 

Date: August 14, 2022 at 9:41 AM 
To: MAY FONG mayfong@pacbell.net 

c.-f 

From: May Fong <mayfong@pacbell.net> 
Date: May 14, 2019 at 9:29:21 AM PDT 
To: 1

1Sullivan, Margaret11 <MSullivan@oaklandca.goV> 
Subject: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program - T18-0311 

Hi Margaret! 

Please find attached my additional documents for the above referenced case. 

May 

From: 11Sullivan, Margaret11 <MSullivan@oaklandca.gov> 

To: May Fong <maY1ong@pacbell.net> 
Sent: Monday, December 3, 201810:03 AM 
Subject: RE: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program - T18-0311 

Hello Ms. Fong, 

Yes I will retrieve the owner response and send it to you. 

Best regards, 

Margaret Sullivan 
City of Oakland Housing & Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program Analyst Ill 
Mailing Address: Rent Adjustment Program /250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. 
5313/ Oakland, CA 94612 
TEL. 510-238-7387 - Direct 
TEL. 510-238-3721 - Main Number 
FAX. 510-238-6181 
Email: msullivan@oaklandca.gov 

Rent Adjustment Drop-In Services are located at the: 
Housing Assistance Center, 6th Floor 

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA (near BART 12th Street station, 14th Street 
exit) 
DROP-IN HOURS: 

Monday and Wednesday: 9:00 a.m.-12:00 noon I Closed in afternoon 
Tuesday and Thursday: 10:00 a.m-12:00 noon; 2:00-4:00 p.m. 
Friday: Closed 

000155



From: May Fong [mailto:mayfong@pacbell.net] 
Sent: Monday, November 26, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Sullivan, Margaret <MSullivan@oaklandca.g.QY.> 
Cc: Costa, Robert <RCosta@oaklandca.g.QY.> 
Subject: Re: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program - T18-0311 

Hi! 

Can you please email me a copy of my response to petition? It's very difficult seeing it 
online? Also for some reason I thought I received a change in date for this hearing. Can you 
please confirm the hearing date for me? 

Thank you. 

May 

From: May Fong <rn.ayjQng@gacbell.net> 
To: "Sullivan, Margaret" <MSumvan@oaklandca,gQY> 
Cc: "Costa, Robert" <RCosta@oak!andca.gQY> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 13, 2018 2:47 PM 
Subject: Re: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program - T18-0311 

Hi! 

Can you let me know if you received the lease ? 

May 
Sent from my iPhone 

On Nov 13, 2018, at 10:40 AM, Sullivan, Margaret <MSulliyan@oakiandca goV> wrote: 

Dear Ms. Fong, 

I have received the hard copy of your online Owner Response in case 
T18-0311 from Mr. Costa. 

If you need to contact me directly, my email is: msullivan@oaklandca.gov, or you 
may call at the number below. 

Best regards, 

Margaret Sullivan 
City of Oakland Housing & Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program Analyst 111 
Mailing Address: Rent Adjustment Program /250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. 5313/ 
Oakland, CA 94612 
TEL. 510-238-7387 - Direct 
TEL. 510-238-3721 - Main Number 
FAX. 510-238-6181 
Email: msullivan@oaklandca.gov 

Rent Adjustment Drop-In Services are located at the: 
Housing Assistance Center, 6th Floor 

111 

000156



( ..

... 
•, 

(:ity of �akland Rent Adju�tment P�ogram Case Number: T18-0311 

Tenant Evidence Submission 

Exhibit A 

. ·••····· --··-···· .. _ .. ···-· _ ...... _ .. ______ , . 

3of60 

000040 

000157



4of50 

11:J1112iov 
893 

n °' 
, . C CASH - •• 

H J 

K __ J
8 . . 

CKECK6 ORTOTAL _ 
FROM 8ffl1!R � 

D SUBTOTAL -

□ U:SSCASH -

$ 

" 

f 

000041 

?P 

( 

.. 

000158



000159



Bank of America I Online Banking I Accounts I Account Details I Account Activity 9/3/19, 5:36 PM 

Bank of America♦ EXHIBIT 6 Online Banking 

Fong Investments: Account Activity Transaction Details 

Post date:. 12/05/2018 

Amount: 1,200.00 

Type: Deposit 

Description: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
#0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720 

Merchant name: CA TLR transfer Banking Ctr FRUITVALE 
• 1 #0000546 CA Confirmation# 1603915720 

Transaction Income: Deposits 
category: 

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/deposit/sear ... e5223a66d7eb492e6c9766664079117897bb194205b117fe39e175fb241a8351 

000202 

Page 1 of 1 

000160



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

0<{1r'f3ff --:r

3-DA Y NOTICE TO CURE
VIOLATION(S) OR MOVE OUT (Oakland)

Plaintiff(s): May Lee Fong , Owner(s) 
vs. 

Defendant(s): Nazana V. Nevarez , Resident 
_T_ e_ r_es_a _V _az_q_u _e_z ______ , Resident
Fernando Nevarez, Cesar Nevs, Resident 

Notice To 

Perform 

Or Quit 

To: Nazana V. Nevarez , Resident(s) 
AND ALL OTHERS IN POSSESSION, PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that you are in violation of the terms of your rental 
agreement and/or the law applicable to your tenancy at the premises located at 1791-28th Avenue 
Apartment number ___ , in the City of Oakland , California. 
YOUR VIOLA TION(S) consist of the following circumstances: 
Legal Tenants on lease abandoned unit to leave for Mexico. Tenant illegally subleased without 

authorization from Owner. This is a material breach of contract under Use and Occupancy 
general rules. Illegal tenants named 7 people living in unit causing health and safety hazard. 
WITNESS(ES) TO VIOLA TION(S): Mateo Lopez, Nazana V. Nevarez 
DATE AND PLACE OF VIOLATION($): 11 /1 /16-present at 1791-28th Avenue, Oakland, Ca 94601
YOUR FAILURE TO PERFORM THE ABOVE COVENANTS OF YOUR RENTAL AGREEMENT AND/OR CURE the above 
violation(s) OR QUIT WITHIN THREE (3) DAYS can result in legal proceedings against you to recover possession of the premises and 
PENALTY DAMAGES OF $600.00 under Section 1174 of California Code of Civil Procedure. 

Because of the above violation(s) the undersigned does hereby declare a forfeiture of your rental agreement. NOTICE: 
Pursuant to Section 1785.26 of the California Civil Code, as required by law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit 
report reflecting on your credit record may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your 
credit obligation. 
Pursuant to Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22.360.A.2 codifying the "Just Cause" for Eviction Ordinance, seeking to 
recover possession in good faith, the landlord asserts that "the tenant has continued, after written notice to cease, to 
substantially violate a material term of the tenancy other than the obligation to surrender possession on proper notice as 
required by law, provided further that notwithstanding any lease provision to the contrary, a landlord shall not endeavor to 
recover possession of a rental unit as a result of subletting of the rental unit by the tenant if the landlord has unreasonably 
withheld the right to sublet following a written request by the tenant, so long as the tenant continues to reside in the rental unit 
and the sublet constitutes a one-for-one replacement of the departing tenant(s). If the landlord fails to respond to the tenant in 
writing within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the tenant's written request, the tenant's request shall be deemed approved by 
the landlord. "[A]dvice regarding the notice terminating tenancy is available from the Rent Board." The Rent Board is located 
at 250 Frank J. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Oakland CA 94612, telephone (510) 238-3015. 

Dated this 21st day of_A _ u_g_u_s _t _________ ,20�.
Owner(s): May L Fong 

::::::::::::2:: 
7� 

By: _______________ Agent 

AOA Form No. 104A (Rev. 08/16) - Copyright 2006 -Apartment Owners Association of California, Inc.• www.aoausa.com 
• San Fernando Valley {818)988-9200 • Los Angelos (323)937-8811 • Long Beach (562)597-2422 • Gardon Grove (714)539-6000 • San Diego (619)280-7007 • Northam California (510)769-7521 

000161



 

1 
 

 
                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                 Rent Adjustment Program 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:     September 16, 2022 

To:     Members of the Housing, Rent Residential & Relocation     
                                  Board (HRRRB)     
 
From:    Oliver Luby, Deputy City Attorney 

Re:     Appeal Summary in T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong 
                           
Appeal Hearing Date:       September 22, 2022 
 

Property Address:   1791 28th Avenue, Oakland, CA 

Appellant/Owner:  May Fong and Grant Fong 
 
Respondent/Tenant:  Maria Amezquita and Luis Ayala Cervantes 
 
     

BACKGROUND 

 On June 12, 2018, the tenants filed a petition contesting rent increases and 
claiming code violations and decreased housing services. The contested rent increases 
included the following: 

 4/26/18 – from $1,200 to $1,400 
 10/3/17 – from $945 to $1,200 
 9/5/17 – from $945 to $1,233 

The owner filed a response on November 13, 2018. 

On October 3, 2019, the Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision, denying the 
rent increases in the 2017 lease ($1,233 for the first three months, $1,400 thereafter) on 
the grounds that the owners did not seek prior approval from the Rent Adjustment 
Program of increases in excess of CPI or banking, and stating that the tenants’ base 
rent remains $945.00. The Decision ordered restitution for rent overpayment and past 
decreased housing services in the amount of $6,965.25 ($6,729 for rent paid 9/1/17 to 
11/1/17 and 12/1/17 to 10/1/19; $236.25 for problems with electrical outlets, windows, 



 

2 
 

and drawers, 3/1/18 to 7/1/18), amortized over 24 months.  The Decision denied the 
remaining decreased housing services claims.  

 
On October 9, 2019, the owners filed an appeal on various grounds, including 

asserting that the rent was $1,400 per the 2017 lease, that the original tenant had sublet 
the unit to the petitioners without the owners’ consent, and that the owners were 
unaware that the petitioners were illegal subtenants until August 2017. 
 

The owners also denied that they told the tenants that their rent would be 
increased because there were so many people living in the unit. On October 17, 2019, 
the Hearing Officer issued a Corrected Hearing Decision, removing the sentence on 
page 3 of the Hearing Decision stating “The owner also told the tenant her rent would 
be increased because there were so many people living in the unit.” 
 

On January 16, 2020, the Owners’ 2019 appeal was heard by an Appeal Panel of 
the HRRRB. The Panel’s decision remanded the case to the Hearing Officer to address 
when the tenants’ tenancy commenced, state the reasoning as to when the tenancy 
commenced, and restate the base rent, without considering any evidence submitted after 
the hearing. 

 
On November 24, 2020, the Hearing Officer issued a Remand Hearing Decision, 

finding that the tenancy commenced in August of 2015 at an initial monthly rent of $945, 
due to rent paid directly to and accepted by the owner, based on evidence in the record 
including rent receipts.  The Decision noted testimony indicating that the owners were 
aware that the tenants were living in the unit as of 2015 and that the owner did not 
realize the lack of a lease until 2017.  The Decision was mailed to the parties on 
December 18, 2020. 

 
On December 29, 2020, the owners filed an appeal of the Remand Decision on 

various grounds, including asserting the same arguments raised in the 2019 appeal.  
On September 23, 2021, the 2020 appeal was heard by the HRRRB, which remanded 
the case to the hearing officer for a second time to determine base rent and 
commencement of tenancy on more than just receipts and testimony.  
 
 

RULING ON SECOND REMAND 
 

This year, the Hearing Officer issued a Remand Hearing Decision, which 
addressed review of all of the evidence in the record, including receipts, the 2017 lease 
with accompanying RAP notice, and testimony. The Decision found that the only 
evidence in the record available for determining base rent and commencement of 
tenancy consisted of the receipts and testimony. On the basis of the available evidence, 
the Decision reached the same decision regarding base rent and commencement of 
tenancy as was previously decided ($945 commencing in August of 2015). The 
Decision was mailed to the parties on July 28, 2022. 



 

3 
 

 
 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

On August 16, 2020, Owner May Fong filed a timely appeal on the following 
grounds: 

 the decision is inconsistent with Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22, Rent 
Board Regulations, or prior decisions of the Board; 

 the decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers; 
 the decision violates federal, state or local law; 
 the decision is not supported by substantial evidence;  
 denial of a sufficient opportunity to respond to the petitioner’s claim; 
 Other.   

In the addition to raising various past arguments made in the prior appeals and 
some new arguments regarding the original appeal decision, including various proffers 
of new evidence, most of which were attached to the prior appeals, the owner contends 
that the Second Remand Decision did not follow the Board’s direction. 

 
 

ISSUE 
 

1. Are the determinations in the Second Remand Decision regarding base rent 
and the time of commencement of the tenancy supported by substantial 
evidence? 

 
 

APPLICABLE LAW AND PAST BOARD DECISIONS 
 

1. Applicable Law 

a. Appeal Hearings – Oakland Municipal Code Section 8.22.120(B)(4): 

“Appeals shall be based on the record as presented to the Hearing Officer 
unless the Appeal Body determines that an evidentiary hearing is required. If 
the Appeal Body deems an evidentiary hearing necessary, the case will be 
continued and the Appeal Body shall issue a written order setting forth the 
issues on which the parties may present evidence. All evidence submitted to 
the Appeal Body must be submitted under oath.” 

 

b. Evidence at Appeal Hearing - Rent Adjustment Program Regulations Section      
8.22.120(F)(3): 

“In order for new evidence to be considered, the party offering the new 
evidence must show that the new evidence could not have been available at 
the Hearing Officer proceedings.” 



 

4 
 

2. Past Board Decisions 
 

a. Substantial Evidence 

T00-0340, -0367, & -0368, Knox v. Progeny Properties 
  
Board will not overturn factual findings made by Hearing Officer if there is  
substantial evidence to support the hearing decision. 

 

b. Acceptance of Rent 

T07-0133, Huynh v. Ly 

Board found substantial evidence to support hearing decision that new tenancy 
was created despite lack of written agreement when tenant paid rent and it was 
accepted for 20 months by owner. 

T07-0210, Generalao v. Treadway, & T07-0214, Girasolimo v. Treadway 

Petitioner is a tenant when he paid rent for four years while occupying apartment 
with knowledge of former and current owners, although unit was previously 
occupied by petitioner’s mother. 

 

c. New Evidence 

T05-0245, Hobbs v. Bernstein 

Owner request to submit new evidence denied where evidence in the record is 
sufficient to support hearing decision. 

T15-0368, Bivens v. Ali 

Board declined to accept new evidence even though the owner provided copies of 
prior RAP notices signed by the tenant in 2013 where tenant signed tenant petition 
under penalty of perjury that she never received the RAP notice. 

 

 
 
#3207399v1  


	REVISED HRRRB Agenda & Packet- Full Board Special Meeting 9.22.2022.pdf
	Board Minutes Special Meeting 9.8.2022.pdf
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING

	Tenant Petition Requirements HRRRB Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Chron. Case Report and Case Docs-T18-0311_Cervantes v. Fong.pdf
	Chron. Case Report- T18-0311.pdf
	Tenant Petition 2019.6.12.pdf
	Owner Response_T18-0311.pdf
	Hearing Decision 2019.10.3_T18-0311.pdf
	Appeal Owner 2019.10.9_T18-0311.pdf
	Corrected Hearing Decision 2019.10.17_T18-0311.pdf
	Panel Appeal Decision HRRRB_2020.3.10_T18-0311.pdf
	Remand Hearing Decision_T18-0311_2020.12.18.pdf
	Appeal_Owner_T18-0311_2020.12.28.pdf
	1791 ORIGINAL TENANT LEASE.pdf
	Scan0119


	T18-0311 Cervantes v. Fong Appeal Decision 2021.11.19.pdf
	T18-0311_Cervantes v. Fong_200.07.28_SecondRemand_HearingDecision.pdf
	Owner Appeal_T18-0311 2022.08.16.pdf

	REVISED Board Agenda 9.22.2022.pdf
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
	FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
	September 22, 2022
	5:00 P.M.
	Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Zoom
	AGENDA


	Appeal Memo- T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong - Appeal of Second Remand Decision.pdf



